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Chairman’s Statement

EFRE®|E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Shenyang Public Utility
Holdings Company Limited, | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Over the past year, the global economy sustained moderate
growth yet at a slower pace. With the Sino-US trade friction,
uncertainties over the PRC economy continued to grow. At
the same time, the Group carried out an internal adjustment.
Facing tremendous pressure, the Group remained unswervingly
committed to the spirit of maintaining stability while achieving
progress and timely adjusted the strategic moves and coped
with the austerity measures based on the market conditions
and national policies so as to actively generate more business
opportunities for its shareholders and grow with them.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the 2018 Financial Year, Chaozhou Jinshan completed the
procedures for acceptance of completion and transfer of 300-mu
construction land (2017 Corresponding Period: Nil) and recorded
a revenue of RMB69,903,000 (2017 Corresponding Period:
Nil). Zhongfang Chaozhou has completed the procedures for
acceptance of completion and transfer of 4,000-mu construction
land cumulatively. On 29 June 2018, Zhongfang Chaozhou
received an amount totaling RMB293,240,000 from Chaozhou
Finance Bureau paid on behalf of Chaozhou Jinshan.

The completion and acceptance procedures of Phase 1 of
Zhongfang Chaozhou Jin Nan Industrial Park Project were entirely
completed. The settlement work of the project commenced
in November 2018 and is expected to be finalised by the end
of December 2019. The Group will maintain communication
with Chaozhou Jinshan to actively push ahead the progress
of settlement of the project and the transfer of the remaining
construction land.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRE®|E

Business Analysis

Currently, the infrastructure construction business remains the
principal business of the Group. The Group endeavours to develop
and push ahead the project progress and has gradually completed
the procedures of acceptance and transfer and settlement in
relation to Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial Park Project.
In 2018 Financial Year, significant progress was made.

Given Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s increasingly tightened
policies on credit business, to reduce funding and credit risks,
Chung Hwa Finance completed the capital reduction in 2017 and
terminated the money lending licence in Hong Kong in September
2018. As at the date of this report, Chung Hwa Finance
recognised revenue of approximately RMB10,188,000.

COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT

Faced with the phenomenon of low growth and low volatilities
prevailing in the global economic environment, coupled with
the impacts of Sino-US trade friction affecting the economy of
the PRC, the overall economic landscape was weak. At the same
time, the Company underwent relatively major adjustments
whether the management or projects of the Company during
the year. To tackle the issues, the Company actively adjusted the
investment strategy to make steady progress and rationalised
the Company’s business to maximise development. During the
2018 Financial Year, the Company adjusted and pushed ahead
existing investment projects, including the acquisition of equity
interest in Zhong De Logistics, acquisition of the shop units and
the use rights of underground car parking spaces from San He
Jing Jiao and subscription of commercial properties according
to the market conditions. Based on the operating conditions of
subsidiaries and the Company’s strategic direction, the Company
transferred the equity interest in Shenzhen Shen Jian; disposed
of 20% equity interest in Hai Yue Real Estate; terminated the
money lending licence of Chung Hwa Finance; and reduced the
registered capital of Zhongfang Chaozhou. While rationalising its
business, the Company acquired the equity interest in Guangdong
Xinmao and Chaozhou Jiafu; and provided loans to Guangzhou
Leyou according to the market conditions and policies. Based on
the overall strategic layout, while dealing with various investment
projects at present, the Company would continue to actively
explore business opportunities in various regions in the future.

2018 EHEARREROGERLAEF
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRE®|E

RISK MANAGEMENT

During the year, the Group engaged CT Consultants Limited
to review the procedures, systems and internal control of the
respective operations of the Group on rotation basis. The Group
will take appropriate actions pursuant to the Internal Control
Review Report to rectify the weak areas in internal control
and risk management, so as to further improve its internal
risk management and replicate them to all departments and
subsidiaries to improve the risk management awareness of each
employee.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2019, given the pressure of economic downturn in the PRC
and the internal adjustment of the Company, the Group will
adhere to the development objective of making steady progress,
continue to maintain its core competitiveness and push ahead the
development of existing projects. At the same time, the Company
will rationalise or reduce the size of underperforming projects and
actively seek and attract investment projects that are more in line
with the Company’s strategic objectives with better development
prospects, and adjust the proportion of the Group’s investment
in industrial projects and financial business to fully optimise the
Group’s resource allocation. In addition, the Board will continue
to devote efforts to explore various investment opportunities and
enhance the Company’s market competitiveness both in the good
times and bad times with a view to generating more business
opportunities for Shareholders. Together we grow and make
progress.

Zhang Jing Ming
Chairman

29 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the Group for the 2018 Financial Year amounted
to RMB80,091,000 (2017 Corresponding Period: RMB15,499,000),
representing a significant increase of approximately 416.75% as
compared with the 2017 Corresponding Period. The substantial
increase in revenue is mainly due to the revenue generated from
the construction of infrastructure and development of properties
in the PRC for the 2018 Financial Year.

During the 2018 Financial Year, the Group has completed
the acceptance and transfer procedures of 300-mu (2017
Corresponding Period: Nil) construction land of the Zhongfang
Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial Park Project and recorded the
revenue for 2018 Financial Year of RMB69,903,000 (2017
Corresponding Period: Nil). The transfer of the remaining
construction land of the Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan Industrial
Park Project will be completed in 2019.

Credit business contributed the revenue for the 2018 Financial
Year amounted to RMB10,188,000 (2017 Corresponding Period:
RMB15,499,000). The revenue for credit business decreased by
34.27% as compared with that for the 2017 Corresponding
Period.

Loss before tax for the 2018 Financial Year amounted to
RMB137,282,000 comparing with loss of RMB27,714,000 for
2017 Corresponding Period.

No loss arising from the fair value changes on held for trading
investment was recorded in the 2018 Financial Year (2017
Corresponding Period: RMB42,000). A loss arising from the fair
value changes on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of RMB30,000 was recorded in the 2018 Financial Year (2017
Corresponding Period: Nil). The Group has no financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB115,000).

In addition, the loss for the 2018 Financial Year is mainly
attributable to the combined effect of (i) the share of significant
loss of an associate, Shishi Shen Guo Tou comparing the share
of profit for the 2017 Corresponding Period; (ii) the loss of
disposal of subsidiary of RMB2,003,000 incurred in the 2017
Corresponding Period comparing with a gain of RMB46,000 for
the 2018 Financial Year; (iii) decrease in the impairment losses
recognised in respect of goodwill; (iv) recorded an exchange gain
for the 2018 Financial Year comparing with an exchange loss for
the 2017 Corresponding Period; (v) due to the fair value assessment
on financial assets applicable to the Company under HKFRS 9;
and (vi) loss arising from guarantee of Shishi Shen Guo Tou, an
associate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group for the 2018 Financial
Year amounted to RMB1,779,000 representing a decrease of
approximately 5.22% as compared with RMB1,877,000, for
the 2017 Corresponding Period. The decrease in income tax
expenses was mainly attributable to the combined tax effect on (i)
expenses not deductible for tax purpose; (ii) loss not recognised
for tax purpose; (iii) income not taxable for tax purpose; (iv) tax
concessions in Hong Kong; and (v) provision for deferred income
tax assets.

Donations

The Group has not made any donations for the 2018 Financial
Year (2017 Corresponding Period: RMB200,000).

Loss per share

Loss per share was approximately RMB9.47 cents comparing with
the loss per share for the 2017 Corresponding Period of RMB2.23
cents.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Infrastructure Construction Business

During the 2018 Financial Year, Chaozhou Jinshan completed the
procedures for acceptance of completion and transfer of 300-mu
construction land (2017 Corresponding Period: Nil) and recorded
a revenue of RMB69,903,000 (2017 Corresponding Period:
Nil). Zhongfang Chaozhou has completed the procedures for
acceptance of completion and transfer of 4,000-mu construction
land cumulatively. On 29 June 2018, Zhongfang Chaozhou
received an amount totaling RMB293,240,000 from Chaozhou
Finance Bureau paid on behalf of Chaozhou Jinshan.

The completion and acceptance procedures of Phase 1 of
Zhongfang Chaozhou Jin Nan Industrial Park Project were entirely
completed. The settlement work of the project commenced
in November 2018 and is expected to be finalised by the end
of December 2019. The Group will maintain communication
with Chaozhou Jinshan to actively push ahead the progress
of settlement of the project and the transfer of the remaining
construction land.

Credit Business

Following the capital reduction in Chung Hwa Finance for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Group gradually
rationalised the credit business in Hong Kong and terminated
the money lending licence in Hong Kong in September 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWEDN

During 2018 Financial Year, an impairment on goodwill of
RMB1,320,000 (2017 Corresponding Period: Nil) in relation to
Chung Hwa Finance was recognised. During the 2018 Financial
Year, Chung Hwa Finance recognised revenue of approximately
RMB10,188,000 (2017 Corresponding Period: RMB15,499,000).

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

In addition to its existing infrastructure construction business, the
Group will adhere to the development objective of making steady
progress, continue to maintain its core competitiveness and push
ahead the development of existing projects. At the same time, the
Company will rationalise or reduce the size of underperforming
projects and actively seek and attract investment projects with
better development prospects, and adjust the proportion of the
Group's investment in industrial projects and financial business
to fully optimise the Group'’s resource allocation. In addition, the
Board will continue to devote efforts to explore various investment
opportunities and enhance the Company’s market competitiveness
both in the good times and bad times with a view to generating
greater value for Shareholders.

The Group has entered into certain agreements and letter of
intent, details of which are set out in the paragraphs headed
“Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries and Associates”
and “Events after the Reporting Period”.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group adopts a prudent financial management policy to
manage the working capital. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group's total assets amounted to RMB1,186,992,000 (2017:
RMB1,142,839,000), representing an increase of 3.86%. Non-
current assets and currents assets as at 31 December 2018 were
RMB557,519,000 (2017: RMB617,871,000) and RMB629,473,000
(2017: RMB524,968,000) respectively. The decrease in non-
current assets of RMB60,352,000 or 9.77% was mainly due to
the share of loss of an associate, Shishi Shen Guo Tou. The assets
were financed by current liabilities of RMB297,059,000 (2017:
RMB116,228,000) and shareholders’ equity attributable to owner
of the Company of RMB864,736,000 (2017: RMB1,001,116,000).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has no bank borrowings. The
Group’s current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) was 2.12
times (2017: 4.52 times) and gearing ratio (total liabilities/total
assets) was 0.25 times (2017: 0.10 times).

2018 EHEARREROGERLAEF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWEDN

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATES

Pre-acquisition of property in Beijing PRC

On 15 November 2016, Beijing Shen Shang, being the subscriber
entered into the pre-acquisition agreement with Beijing Zhong
Tou, pursuant to which Beijing Zhong Tou agreed to sell and
Beijing Shen Shang agreed to acquire a property at a total
consideration of RMB152,800,000. The property is a commercial
premise with the construction area of 2,800 sq.m. (with the
right to use 5,000 sg.m. of car parks at the basement level two
of the Beijing International Zone Convention Centre* {t R & &
B[R EREEE (the “Convention Centre”)), being part of Phase
3 of the ancillary facility project of the Convention Center to be
constructed in Beijing Shunyi District Tianzhu Airport Commercial
Zone* L mTEFEE KL= (the “Beijing Property”).
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15
November 2016 for details.

On 26 March 2018, Beijing Shen Shang and Beijing Zhong Tou
entered into a supplemental agreement in relation to the pre-
acquisition agreement to postpone the date of the acceptance
and transfer of the Beijing Property to 31 December 2019. As at
the date of this report, the transaction is still in progress. The pre-
sale permit for the project has been obtained on 17 August 2018.

Capital contribution to Zhong De Logistics

On 11 May 2017, Shenzhen Shenxi entered into a capital
contribution agreement with Independent Third Parties (the
“Capital Contribution Agreement of Zhong De Logistics”),
pursuant to which Shenzhen Shenxi shall make capital
contribution in the sum of RMB155,000,000 to Zhong De Logistics
and account for 20% equity interest in Zhong De Logistics upon
the completion of the capital contribution.

As additional time was required by Zhong De Logistics to
release the equity interest pledged with the bank, according
to the supplemental agreement to the Capital Contribution
Agreement of Zhong De Logistics entered into on 5 February
2018, the completion of registration procedures with the industry
and commerce bureau was expected to be completed by 30
September 2018. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 11 May 2017 and 5 February 2018 for details.
As at the date of this report, the model of transaction regarding
the capital contribution in Zhong De Logistics changed to 20%
equity interest in Zhong De Logistics indirectly held by Shenzhen
Shenxi and the transaction was completed. Please refer to the
“Adjustment to the model of transaction regarding the capital
contribution in Zhong De Logistics” under “Events after the
Reporting Period” for details.
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Acquisition of properties in Hebei Province

On 9 February 2018 (after trading hours), Beijing Shen Shang
and San He Jing Jiao entered into an agreement (the “Property
Acquisition Agreement”) pursuant to which San He Jing
Jiao has conditionally agreed to sell, and Beijing Shen Shang
has conditionally agreed to acquire, the properties at the cash
consideration of RMB110,000,000. The properties, comprise
11 shop units (including Shop No. 5-1-101, 5-1-102, 5-1-103,
5-1-104, 5-5-111, 5-5-112, 5-5-222, 5-5-223, 5-5-324,
5-5-425, 5-5-426) with a total gross floor area of approximately
3,168 sg.m. together with 60 car parking spaces (No. 001-005,
008-010, 012-024, 027-029, 032-034, 036-055, 059-071) on
basement level of Phase 5 of Tian Zi Zhuang Yuan (K5 E),
located at Yanjiao National High-Tech Industrial Development
Area, Sanhe City, Hebei Province. San He Jing Jiao and Beijing
Shen Shang shall have completed and performed all of their
respective obligations under the Property Acquisition Agreement
no later than 9 August 2018, or such later date as the parties
may agree in writing. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 9 February 2018 for details of the Property
Acquisition Agreement.

On 17 August 2018, Beijing Shen Shang entered into a
supplemental agreement with San He Jing Jiao to extend the long
stop date to 31 December 2018.

On 18 March 2019, San He Jing Jiao and Beijing Shen Shang
entered into the compensation agreement pursuant to which it is
agreed that San He Jing Jiao shall additionally deliver the rights to
use one car parking space as compensation for delay in processing
the real property ownership certificate. As at the date of this
report, the application of real property ownership certificate is in
progress and is expected to complete in April 2019.

Transfer of shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative*

M ERFHME RS Bl

On 20 March 2018, Zhongfang Chaozhou entered into the
share transfer agreements with three Independent Third Parties
respectively pursuant to which Zhongfang Chaozhou agreed to
transfer 3,000,000 shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative*
FIMN TR NS R AERE in aggregate to three Independent
Third Parties at a price of RMB1.80 per share. As the relevant
percentage ratio in respect of each transaction is less than 5%,
each transaction is not subject to any disclosure requirements
under the Listing Rules.
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Disposal of the entire issued share capital of Cheng He
Chuang Jian

On 15 March 2016, Shenzhen Shen He entered into the disposal
agreement with an Independent Third Party (the “Buyer”),
whereby the Buyer has conditionally agreed to purchase and
Shenzhen Shen He has conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
share capital of Cheng He Chuang Jian at the consideration of
RMB44,000,000 (the “Disposal”).

The principal activity of Cheng He Chuang Jian is investment
holding. On 26 December 2016, Shenzhen Shen He and the Buyer
entered into an agreement to postpone the completion date to
30 June 2017. On 5 May 2017, Cheng He Chuang Jian completed
the registration procedures with the industry and commerce
bureau. Accordingly, the Disposal has been completed. On 28
June 2017, Shenzhen Shen He and the Buyer entered into the
extension agreement to extend the final payment term for the
remaining amount of RMB17,000,000 to 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has received the balance of
RMB15,000,000. On 5 February 2018, Shenzhen Shen He entered
into a supplemental agreement with the Buyer. Due to the poor
operating conditions of the project invested by Cheng He Chuang
Jian, Shenzhen Shen He and the Buyer agreed that the price for
the transfer of the equity and liabilities of Cheng He Chuang Jian
be revised to RMB42,000,000 from RMB44,000,000.

Disposal of 100% equity interest in Shenzhen Shen Jian

On 23 July 2018, the Company, as vendor, and the Independent
Third Party, as purchaser, entered into the share transfer
agreement, pursuant to which, the purchaser conditionally agreed
to purchase and the vendor conditionally agreed to dispose
of 100% equity interest in Shenzhen Shen Jian and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Xiaoma Chuang Fu at the consideration of
RMB130,000. The proceeds of the disposal were included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at the date of this
report, the Company has fully received the consideration for the
entire equity interest from the Independent Third Party and the
registration procedures with the industry and commerce bureau
of Shenzhen Shen Jian have been completed. As the relevant
percentage ratio in respect of each transaction is less than 5%,
each transaction is not subject to the announcement requirements
under the Listing Rules.
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Arbitration associated with an associate, Shishi Shen Guo
Tou

Shishi Shen Guo Tou (an associate) has been performing poorly
since 2016 and is unable to timely repay bank loans. On 27
August 2018, an arbitration was filed with Xiamen Arbitration
Commission by Putian Licheng Branch of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China. For details of the arbitration, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 11 September
2018. On 18 October 2018, Shishi Shen Guo Tuo applied to
Putian City Intermediate People’s Court for confirmation of validity
of the arbitration agreement and the application was accepted
by the court. The arbitration procedures are subject to the
binding judgement of the court. Accordingly, Xiamen Arbitration
Commission decided to cease the arbitration procedures of such
case on 18 October 2018. As at the date of this report, Putian
City Intermediate People’s Court has not issued the binding
judgement instrument for the litigation regarding Shishi Shen Guo
Tou's application for the confirmation of validity of arbitration
agreement, and Xiamen Arbitration Committee has not yet
resumed the arbitration procedures for Shishi Shen Guo Tou's
litigation.

Disposal of 20% equity interest in Hai Yue Real Estate

On 12 September 2018, Tai He Chuang Jian transferred 20%
equity interest in Hai Yue Real Estate to Hou Feng Trading, the
largest shareholder of Hai Yue Real Estate at the consideration of
RMB133,000,000.

Hai Yue Real Estate owns Dongshan Plaza (3 |11/&3%) located at
No. 69 Xian Lie Zhong Road in Guangzhou comprising 166 office
units (owned property available for operation) with a gross floor
area of 22,026.54 sq.m. and 122 underground car parking spaces
(including 2-storey basement car park) with a total gross floor area
of 1,318.02 sq.m.

As of 31 July 2018, the unaudited net asset value of Hai Yue
Real Estate was approximately RMB661,932,000 and the net
asset attributable to the Group amounted to approximately
RMB132,386,000.

The transaction is expected to realise a gain of approximately
RMB1,918,000 for the Group and the actual gain is subject to the
review by the Company’s auditors.
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As the relevant percentage ratio in respect of the transaction
exceeds 25%, the transaction contemplated thereunder
constitutes a major transaction of the Company and is subject
to shareholders’ approval at the general meeting. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 12 September
2018, 5 October 2018, 1 November 2018, 6 December 2018 and
28 December 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 18
January 2019 for details.

As at the date of this report, Hou Feng Trading has paid
RMB20,000,000 to Tai He Chuang Jian and the transaction was
completed on 4 March 2019.

Reduction of registered capital of Zhongfang Chaozhou to
RMB200,000,000

On 26 October 2018, due to the implementation of the Group'’s
overall development strategy, the Board approved the resolution
regarding the reduction of the registered capital of Zhongfang
Chaozhou, from RMB400,000,000 to RMB200,000,000.

Provision of loans to Guangzhou Leyou

On 7 November 2018, the Company entered into a loan
agreement with Guangzhou Leyou with a loan amount of
RMB15,000,000 for a term of eight months at an interest rate of
8% per annum. The loan is guaranteed jointly and severally by a
competent guarantor. As the relevant percentage ratio in respect
of the transaction is below 5%, the transaction is not subject to
any disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.

Acquisition of 90% equity interest in Guangdong Xinmao

On 16 November 2018, Shenzhen Tong He acquired 90% equity
interest in Guangdong Xinmao held by Zhongtou Construction
at the consideration of RMB&,800,000. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 16 November 2018 for
details.

Acquisition of 90% equity interest in Chaozhou Jiafu

On 16 November 2018, Ju Xi Investment acquired 90% equity
interest in Chaozhou Jiafu held by Chen Sui Industrial at the
consideration of RMB3,000,000. Please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 16 November 2018 for details.
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, EMOLUMENTS, TRAINING
SCHEMES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 43
(2017: 42) employees (including directors of the Company). The
Group has entered into employment contracts with all employees,
and offered employment package according with their positions,
qualifications, experience and ability. During the 2018 Financial
Year, the aggregate salaries and emoluments amounted to
RMB4,062,000 (2017 Corresponding Period: RMB3,491,000). The
Group also provides benefits to employees, such as contributions
to endowment insurance, basic medical insurance and housing
reserve in accordance with the relevant laws of the PRC.

The Group has not adopted any share option scheme for any of its
senior management or employees.

ASSETS SECURED/PLEDGED

As at 31 December 2018, no assets of the Group were secured or
pledged (2017: Nil).

CURRENCY RISKS

Other than those subsidiaries established in Hong Kong, the
revenue and expenses of the Group are mainly denominated
in Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on
transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional
and reporting currency of the Group which is Renminbi. The
change in the exchange rate of Hong Kong Dollar against
Renminbi will affect the result of the Group. In view of the
appreciation of Hong Kong Dollar against Renminbi, the
reporting currency, an exchange gain of RMB1,532,000 (2017
Corresponding Period: loss of RMB9,861,000) has been recorded
in the results for the 2018 Financial Year. The Group currently
does not have hedging policy against foreign exchange risk. The
management will consider hedging significant currency exposure
in future should the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2017: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the total capital commitments of the
Group amounted to RMB231,064,000 (2017: RMB267,800,000).
Details of which were set out in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Acquisition of 34,420,335 shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit
Cooperative* BIMTERMEAEERIE by Zhongfang

Chaozhou

On 3 January 2019, Zhongfang Chaozhou acquired 8,700,000
shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative* /1 [2 & +7{=
A {EB##E in aggregate held by eight natural persons at RMB1.8
per share. The total consideration of the transaction amounted to
RMB15,660,000.

On 24 January 2019, Zhongfang Chaozhou acquired 25,720,335
shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative* M= EHHF
PB4 {EBt#t in aggregate held by 19 natural persons at RMB1.85
per share. The total consideration of the transaction amounted to
approximately RMB48,271,000.

Upon completion of the acquisition, Zhongfang Chaozhou will
hold 59,720,335 shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative*
FIN TR 2 AT S AA ERTE in aggregate. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 24 January 2019 and 28
January 2019 for details.

Provision of loans to Zhong De Logistics

On 24 January 2019, SHHH Development entered into a loan
agreement with Zhong De Logistics with a loan amount of
RMB8,000,000 for a term of one year at an interest rate of 2%
per annum. The loans are only used to settle the construction
costs by Zhong De Logistics. As the relevant percentage ratio in
respect of the transaction is below 5%, the transaction is not
subject to any disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.

Issuance of offshore bonds not exceeding HK$200,000,000

On 25 January 2019, the Board approved the resolution regarding
the proposal on the Company’s issuance of corporate bonds
with issue size not exceeding HK$200,000,000 and term of
bonds not more than 15 years (inclusive) and the bonds may be
products with single-term or hybrid products with multiple terms.
The interest rate will be determined based on the offshore bond
market at the time of issuance. The proceeds after deducting the
issue expenses will be used for industrial merger and acquisition as
well as replenishment of liquidity, etc.
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Adjustment to the model of transaction regarding the
capital contribution in Zhong De Logistics

On 12 March 2019, Shenzhen Shenxi, SNP Investment, SHHH
Development, Zhong De Logistics, Lu Hancai and Ma Xinan (both
being natural persons) entered into the supplemental agreement
to adjust the capital contribution in Zhong De Logistics where the
transaction to acquire 20% equity interest in Zhong De Logistics
through capital increase by Shenzhen Shenxi was changed to
acquisition of 33.33% equity interest in SHHH Development by
Shenzhen Shenxi from Lu Hancai and Ma Xinan respectively.
The transaction is deemed completed upon completion of
the registration procedures with the industry and commerce
bureau. Shenzhen Shenxi will hold 66.66% equity interest in
SHHH Development in aggregate and become the controlling
shareholder of SHHH Development and indirectly hold 20% equity
interest in Zhong De Logistics.

Proposed disposal of Shen Wu Investment and its
subsidiaries

On 12 March 2019, the Board approved the resolution regarding
the Company'’s proposed disposal of 100% equity interest in Shen
Wu Investment and its four subsidiaries, namely Kingma Overseas
(held as to 100% equity interest directly), Chung Hwa Finance (held
as to 55% equity interest indirectly), Kingma International Ltd. (a
BVI company held as to 100% indirectly) and Modern Key (a BVI
company held as at 100% equity interest indirectly).

On 26 March 2019, the Company and an Independent Third
Party (the “Transferee”) entered into a non-legally binding letter
of intent regarding share acquisition (the “Letter of Intent”).
Pursuant to the Letter of Intent, the Transferee conditionally
acquired 100% equity interest in Shen Wu Investment and its four
subsidiaries subject to certain conditions. In the event that both
parties fail to reach any material agreement within six months
from the date of the Letter of Intent, the Letter of Intent shall
terminate automatically.

Acquisition of a property in Hebei Province

On 18 March 2019, San He Jing Jiao and Beijing Shen Shang
entered into the compensation agreement pursuant to which it is
agreed that San He Jing Jiao shall additionally deliver the rights to
use one car parking space as compensation for delay in processing
the real property ownership certificate. As at the date of this
report, the application of real property ownership certificate is in
progress and is expected to complete in April 2019.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Saved as disclosed herein this section, the Group had no
significant investment held for the 2018 Financial Year.
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Profiles of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESNEREEENSR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, aged 61, graduated from Shantou Business
School. Since 1986, Mr. Zhang has successively worked as the
deputy manager of Guangdong Haining Paper Packing Company
Limited* (B BZEHMEEBFRAF]), the vice president of
Hong Kong Hai Yuan Industry Group Limited and chairman of
Beijing Zhongjin Chuangzhan Real Estate Development Company
Limited* t R EIRFHMERZEBRAF]). Mr. Zhang has
extensive experience in business management, corporate culture
and project and operational planning.

Mr. Deng Xiao Gang, aged 58, is an executive director of the
Company. He joined the Group since June 2013. Mr. Deng
graduated from the Urban Construction and Engineering
Department of Chongging Institute of Architectural and
Engineering (EEESLTIZERT) in 1983 with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering, majoring in water supply and drainage.
Mr. Deng has extensive experience in corporate governance and
management of real estate projects.

Mr. Deng has resigned as an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer effective from 4 March 2019.

Mr. Leng Xiao Rong, aged 52, graduated from the Department
of Economics of Jiangxi University in 1989 with a bachelor’s
degree in accounting. He qualified as an accountant through
the national uniform examination in 1998. He was the financial
manager of Xiushui County Forestry Industrial Company in Jiangxi
Province (T P& & /KEME T2 /2 7)) from 1989 to 1999, audit
officer of Shenzhen Petrochemical (Holding) Co., Ltd. (F3YIIH{tE
BB R A7) from 1999 to 2004, financial director of China
South City Nanning (R 22 &3) and China South City Harbin (15
B ZERY) which are the branches of China South City Holdings
Limited (ERMIZARAER A T)) (stock code: 1668) from 2004 to
2014 and investment director of Guangdong Yueshang High-
Tech Holdings Co., Ltd. (ER EmmEHERR AR A F]) from 2014
to 2018. Mr. Leng has extensive experience in various aspects
including corporate finance, audit and investment.
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Mr. Chau Ting Yan, aged 60, graduated from Nanjing
Communication Engineering Institute (B 53815 TI2E63) in
1982. After his graduation, he had successively served as an
assistant engineer and the engineer of the 54th Research Institute
(AT PIHFFEAT) from 1983 to 1993; from 1993 to 2005, he
successively served as a general manager of Fine Lee Industries,
Limited (ZFE AR AT and chairman of the board of
directors of China Hani Group (FE/EFI%[E); he has served as
chairman of Zhongjin Fuhua (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd. (F&
B (b R) B AR A A]) from 2005 to 2017; and he has been
serving as a director of Zhong Rong Jin Kong Capital Management
Co., Ltd. (PRESIZEEARETEHFRAF) since 2018 to March 2019.
Mr. Zhou has extensive experience in finance, investment and
corporate management.

Mr. Chau is appointed as an executive Director from 4 March
2019 which is approved in the election in the EGM held on 4
March 2019.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Yin Zong Chen, aged 55, is a non-executive director of the
Company. Mr. Yin graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology
(WBEYE T2 A2 with a master’s degree in Architecture and
Civil Engineering Professional. He is a member of the Shenzhen
Luohu District Committee of the CPPCC for the fifth session. He
successively served as the general manager, party branch deputy
secretary and senior engineer of Shenzhen Shenan Enterprise Co.,
Ltd. from 1997 to 2003, and the director, general manager and
senior engineer of Shenzhen Pan-China Engineering Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Pan-China Engineering Group”) from 2003 to 2007.
During his term in Pan-China Engineering Group, he obtained
the qualifications of national first class registered constructor,
registered supervision engineer and registered cost engineer. Mr.
Yin served as the general manager of the contracting division and
group vice president in Shenzhen Construction (Group) Company
Limited (RYITER (£E) ARAF) from 2009 to 2012,
currently served as an executive director of Guangdong Shiliuye
Construction Co. Ltd.* (BR+7VAERARAR]). He has over
30 years' experience in architecture design, civil engineering and
infrastructure construction.
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Mr. Ye Zhi E, aged 33, graduated from South China Agricultural
University in 2008 with a bachelor of science degree in ecology.
He graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
in 2011 with a master of laws degree and has been engaged in
real estate legal affairs since graduation. He was an assistant to
lawyer of Guangdong Zhongquan Law Firm (R & 2=
FfT) and a partner in Beijing DeHeng (Shenzhen) Law Offices (1t
REE OFYI) EEEFT), and currently holds the position of
partner of Guangdong Junyan Law Firm (B & 5 RENSE15FT).
Mr. Ye has extensive experience inbusiness fields such as real estate
development, urban renewal and renovation of old towns,old
plants and old villages.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 46, graduated from the
University of New South Wales, Australia with a bachelor of
commerce degree in Accounting and Computer Information
Systems. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of Certified Public Accountants,
Australia and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of directors.
Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in auditing, accounting,
investment and financial management. Between September
2001 and December 2015, Mr Chan was an associate director of
Go-To-Asia Investment Limited. Between July 2000 and August
2001, Mr. Chan was an investment manager with Softbank China
Venture Investments Limited. Between April 1995 and June 2000,
he worked at Ernst & Young in Hong Kong and his last position
was a senior associate with the audit and corporate finance
department.

Mr. Chan is currently (i) an investment manager of Sprint Asset
Management Limited; (i) an independent non-executive director
of China Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Xiangyu Dredging Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 871); Hao Tian Development Group Limited (stock code:
474) and Fujian Nuogqi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353), whose
respective securities are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange; and (iii) an independent non-executive director of
Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code: 8016), whose
securities are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chan was the independent non-executive director of the
Company since 12 February 2009 and has resigned on 21 June
2013. Furthermore, Mr. Chan was (i) an independent non-
executive director of Beautiful China Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 706) between March 2013 and February 2014 whose
securities are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange;
(ii) an independent non-executive director of Far East Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 36) between November 2014
and July 2017 whose securities are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange; (iii) an independent non-executive director of
Focus Media Network Limited (stock code: 8112) between April
2015 and November 2015; (iv) an independent non-executive
director of Dining Concepts Holdings Limited (stock code: 8056)
between July 2016 and December 2018; and (v) an independent
non-executive director of L&A International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8195) between September 2014 and March 2017, whose
respective securities are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Gao Hong Hong (“Ms. Gao”), aged 48, graduated from the
department of monetary banking under the faculty of finance of
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics with a master’s
degree in economics in 1998. Since 1998, she has worked
in the business division and dealt with credit business in the
international finance division of Bank of China Shenzhen Branch.
She successively served as chairman of Bank of China Shenzhen
Meili Sub-branch, Bank of China Shenzhen Meilin Sub-branch
and Bank of China Shenzhen Shahe Sub-branch. She is currently
the assistant to general manager of the asset management centre
of Shenzhen Galaxy Holdings Group* GZYI| 2 5a1Z2f% = ). Ms.
Gao has extensive experience in investment, financing and asset
management.

Ms. Gao is appointed as an independent non-executive director, a
member of audit committee and nomination committee effective
from 12 February 2018 which are approved in the election in the
EGM held on 7 February 2018.

Mr. Guo Lu Jin, aged 63, graduated from Renmin University of
China in 1982 with a bachelor’s degree. During his university
years, he was recommended to study a professional course in
sociology at Nankai University. Mr. Guo served at the General
Communication Station of the Lanzhou Military Region (E/1 &
% BT 44uh) as a soldier. Upon completion of studies, he held the
position of principal staff member of the Department of Higher
Education of the Ministry of Education GA5& 8= %% 5 7)) from
1982 to 1988. He was the director of the National Development
and Reform Commission from 1988 to 1993 and successively
became the person-in-charge of the Investment and Development
Department, General Office and Asset Preservation Department
of China Everbright Bank Share Company Limited from 1993 to
2015. He has extensive experience in various aspects including
finance, investment, macroeconomic adjustment and social
development strategies.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER :

Mr. Huang Chunfeng, aged 42, obtained a bachelor’s degree
from the School of Finance of Zhengzhou University in 2002, a
master’s degree in Business Administration from the Graduate
School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 2013 and
a master’s degree in EMBA from China Europe International
Business School (CEIBS) in 2017. From 1998 to 2010, he
successively worked in the sub-branch directly under Henan
Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (stock
code: 601398) and the Zhengzhou Branch of Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600000). From 2010
to 2013, he successively served as vice president of the Xueyuan
South Road sub-branch under Beijing Branch of Bank of Shanghai
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 601229) and Beijing Dongzhimen sub-
branch of Bank of Jiangsu. From 2014 to 2016, he was the
general manager of Beijing Guo Tai Zhong Tou Investment Funds
Management Co., Ltd. (BZEHIR(IER)RERSEEBRAQF).
Since 2016, he has been the chairman of Chuang Xing Yuan Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (BIEREEEE AR A F]). Mr. Huang
has extensive experience in the areas of finance, investment and
corporate management.

Mr. Huang is appointed as a Chief Executive Officer of the
Company from 4 March 2019 which is effective after the
resignation of Mr. Deng.
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SUPERVISORS:

Mr. Wang Xing Ye, aged 41, holds a master postgraduate
degree. Mr. Wang is currently the managing director of Beijing
Jade Bird Hengsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd., director
of Hebei Beida Jade Bird Universal Fire Alarm Device Co., Ltd.,
director of Enraytek Optoelectronics Technology (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., director of Ningbo Jade Bird Zhengyuan Equity Interest
Investment Management Co., Ltd. ()X T S IETRIEIREEIES
A 7)), director of Ningbo Jade Bird Venture Capital Investment
Co., Ltd., executive director/general manager of Ningbo Liyuantai
Venture Capital Investment Management Co., Ltd., secretary to
the board of director/chairman of union of Beijing Beida Jade
Bird Universal Sci-Tech Company Limited and the chairman of the
Board of Supervisors of the Company. He has profound experience
in investment and financing, asset and business reorganization.

Mr. Chen Jun Feng, aged 36, graduated from Southwest
University of Political Science & Law (FaFIBUA A ZR) with Bachelor
of Laws. Mr. Chen served as the assistant to the president of
Guangdong Xu Mastery Auction Company Limited (EXRBiBiE
HEFMPR A 7)) from November 2008 to January 2010, assistant
to the president and legal manager of Guangzhou Sheng Tong
property Company Limited (EMMEEEZEEGR A7) from
February 2010 to February 2012, the director and deputy general
manager of Guangdong Gung Ho Equity Fund Limited (EX L&
EEE S BRE A T]) from March 2013 to October 2015, and the
director of Zhuhai Kingma Holdings Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Shining Metals Groups, Inc) (Stock code: 400028). Since 2017, he
has been operation director of Kevin Talent Consulting (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. Mr. Chen has extensive experience in investment and
financing, asset and business reorganization.

Ms. Huang Yong Jing, aged 39, graduated from Zhangzhou
University with a bachelor’s degree in food engineering. Since
2002, Ms. Huang has successively worked as the food inspector
in Xiamen Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (&P
M A ®ERS&Z /D), executive manager and deputy general
assistant of Shenzhen Pico Investment and Development Company
Limited (RYITERIREZXEBRAT) and the executive
assistant of Shenzhen Anye Property Holdings Limited (%31
ZEMWEZERARRAF]). Ms. Huang is currently worked in the
integrated management department of the Company. Ms. Huang
is experienced in business administration and managing external
relations and affairs.
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Mr. Zhang Yun Feng, aged 54, graduated from Anhui University
of Finance and Economics (Z 1B A€ K E2) majoring in commodity
science. Mr. Zhang has worked as deputy general manager of
the marketing department in the headquarters of the Kunlun
Securities Company Limited (EmiE5 AR A F]), marketing
director of Shenzhen sale branch of the Hong Yuan Securities
Company Limited (RIREHRMD AR 7)) and the general
manager of Anhui Xin Tai Yuan Technology Company Limited (%
HERTREEAMRAF). He is currently the president of Shenzhen
Qian Yuan Kun Li Investment Technology Co., Ltd. (&I E. 7T
HHERERE AR AR]). Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in
capital management.

Mr. Fang Wei Ran, aged 33, graduated from Guangdong Ocean
University with Bachelor of Science in Financial Management.
He previously worked in Huizhou LCY Rubber Company. Mr.
Fang is currently the finance manager of Zhongfang Chaozhou
Investment Development Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Fang has extensive experience in
accounting practices and cost management.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES:

Ms. Qian Fang Fang, aged 35, is the Joint Company Secretary
of the Company. Ms. Qian graduated from the Northwest
University of professional accounting with a bachelor’s degree in
management in 2006, and was conferred a master’s degree in
management in 2008. Ms. Qian was appointed as the supervisor
of the Company for the period from 12 February 2012 to 3 March
2014. Ms. Qian was appointed as Joint Company Secretary on 6
March 2014.

Mr. Tung Sze Ho Dicky, aged 36, was appointed as Joint
Company Secretary of the Company on 1 August 2018, who is
delegated by an external secretarial service provider, Angela Ho &
Associates. Mr. Tung is an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. He has extensive experiences in
the company secretarial field.
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To the Shareholders,

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the supervisory
committee of Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited
(the “Supervisory Committee”), exercised conscientiously its
authority, safeguarded the interests of the Shareholders and the
Company, followed the principle of trustworthiness, honestly
carried out the duties of supervisors and worked cautiously and
diligently, in accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
requirements of the relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong
and the Articles for their accountability to the Shareholders.

During the year, the major work performed by the Supervisory
Committee included the attendance of the Board meetings;
reviewing the report of the Directors and reserve appropriation
proposed by the Board, if any, for the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting; strictly and effectively
monitoring whether the policies and decisions made by the
management of the Company had conformed with the state
laws and regulations and the Articles or safeguarded the interests
of the Shareholders. The Supervisory Committee has also
reviewed the performance of the Directors, general manager
and senior management in the daily operation by various means,
and seriously examined the Company’s financial affairs and its
connected transactions. After the examination, the Supervisory
Committee concluded that:

1. the report of the Directors and the reserve appropriation
proposed by the Board for the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting are in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations and the Articles;

2. the Directors, general manager and other senior
management of the Company have strictly followed
the principles of trustworthiness, worked diligently and
responsibly, and discharged their duties for the best
interest of the Company. The Supervisory Committee has
not discovered that any Directors, general manager and
other senior management of the Company had abused
their powers, damaged the interest of the Company or the
benefits of the shareholders and employees or contravened
any laws and regulations or the Articles; and
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3. the consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2018, which were audited by
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Company Limited, have truly and
fairly reflected the operating results and financial position
of the Group. The related parties transactions were fair
and reasonable and had not infringed upon the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders.

The Supervisory Committee takes this opportunity to thank the

Shareholders, Directors and all the employees of the Company for
their supports in the past year.

By order of the Supervisory Committee

Mr. Wang Xing Ye
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Shenyang, 29 March 2019
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Report of the Directors
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The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 58 and 59.

The state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2018 is set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 60
and 61.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements and consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 62 and 63, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There is no distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2018, calculated under the Company Law of the PRC,
being the jurisdiction in which the Company was established,
(2017: Nil).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
the Company and under the laws of the PRC, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The summary of the financial information of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on pages 199 and 200.

SHARE OPTIONS

As at the date of this report, no option has been granted or
agreed to be granted by the Company to any of its directors,
Supervisors or employees.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming

Mr. Leng Xiao Rong (appointed on 28 June 2018)
Mr. Chau Ting Yan (appointed on 4 March 2019)
Mr. Deng Xiao Gang (resigned on 4 March 2019)
Mr. Huang Zhen Kun (resigned on 28 June 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yin Zong Chen

Mr. Ye Zhi E (appointed on 28 June 2018)
Ms. Li Yu Xiang (resigned on 28 June 2018)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

Mr. Guo Lu Jin (appointed on 28 June 2018)

Ms. Gao Hong Hong (appointed on 12 February 2018)
Mr. He Qing Jia (resigned on 28 June 2018)

Mr. Yu Guan Jian (retired on 11 February 2018)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent to the Group in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with article 100 of the Articles, all the Directors
shall be appointed at the general meeting for a term of three
years. A Director may serve consecutive terms if re-elected upon
the expiration of the terms.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors, supervisors and senior
management are set out on pages from 18 to 24.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from his/
her date of appointment as a director or supervisor (or until the
expiration of the term of the current session of the Board or
supervisory committee) and thereafter subject to termination by
either party giving not less than one month’s written notice to the
other party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the Directors’ service contracts disclosed above, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Group was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors, chief executives
and supervisors of the Company had interests or short positions in
any securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors and
Supervisors as referred to in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As of 31 December 2018, save as the Company’s Directors,
supervisors and chief executives, the following corporations and
individuals had interests and/or short positions in the Company’s
shares, underlying shares, securities, equity derivatives and/or
debentures, which are required to be recorded in the register of
members maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO:
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Percentage of total

Interest owners Shares issued share capital
HERTRFEE

BEBBA B R Bok

1 Beijing Hua Xia Ding 420,000,000 Domestic shares 28.58%
IEREER 420,000,0000% & B% 28.58%

2 Huang Guang Fu (Note 1) 420,000,000 Domestic shares 28.58%
mREMR(MET) 420,000,0008% W& & 28.58%

3 Beijing Lichuang Future 180,000,000 Domestic shares 12.25%
LR AEIRR 180,000,0000% A& & 12.25%

4 Zhai Ming Yue (Note 2) 180,000,000 Domestic shares 12.25%
ZRA(Haz2) 180,000,0000% A & f% 12.25%

5 Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long 140,000,000 Domestic shares 9.53%
I R E 140,000,0000% A & f% 9.53%

6 Zhang Song (Note 3) 140,000,000 Domestic shares 9.53%
SRR (HTEE3) 140,000,0000% A & f% 9.53%

7 HKSCC Nominees Limited (Note 4) 605,376,000 H-Shares (listed shares) 41.2%
BERREF (RIBAN)BRRB(Hit4) 605,376,000 HA% ( =& fH 41.2%
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Notes:

Huang Guang Fu is a PRC resident who holds 100% equity interests
in Beijing Hua Xia Ding. Pursuant to section 316 of the SFO, Huang
Guang Fu is also deemed to be interested in the underlying shares of
the Company held by Beijing Hua Xia Ding.

Zhai Mingyue is a PRC resident who holds 100% equity interests
in Beijing Li Chuang Future. Pursuant to section 316 of the SFO, Di
Mingyue is also deemed to be interested in the underlying shares of
the Company held by Beijing Li Chuang Future.

Zhang Song is a PRC resident who holds 100% equity interests in
Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long. Pursuant to section 316 of the SFO,
Zhang Song is deemed to be interested in the underlying shares of the
Company held by Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long.

As notified by HKSCC Nominees Limited, as of 31 December 2018, the
following participants of CCASS had interests amounting to 5.00%
or more of the total issued H-Shares of the Company as shown in the
securities accounts in CCASS:

(1) The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited as
nominee holds 90,998,740 H-Shares, representing 15.03% of
the issued H-Shares of the Company.

2) Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited as nominee holds
67,666,000 H-Shares, representing 11.17% of the issued
H-Shares of the Company.

(3) Ever-long Securities Company Limited as nominee holds
64,648,000 H-Shares, representing 10.67% of the issued
H-Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company
has not been notified of any interests and/or short positions in
shares, underlying shares, securities, equity derivatives and/or
debentures of the Company which are required to be recorded
in the register maintained in accordance with section 336 of the

SFO.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases for the 2018 Financial Year
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as
follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 87.28%
— five largest customers combined 93.18%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 0%
— five largest suppliers combined 0%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers disclosed above.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all
the directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

None of the directors and supervisors or their respective associates
was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any right to
acquire shares or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate, or had exercised any such right during the year ended
31 December 2018.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or
sold any of the Company’s listed shares during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into
by the Group under the applicable accounting standards during
the 2018 Financial Year are set out in Note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

None of the related party transactions disclosed in the Note 43
to the consolidated financial statements constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in the
Listing Rules which are subject to the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the 2018 Financial Year
and a discussion of the Group’s future prospects are set in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 7 to 17
and the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 and 6 of this annual
report respectively.

Risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group have been
addressed in the Chairman'’s Statement on pages 4 and 6 and the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 7 to 17
of this annual report respectively.

In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Likely development in the Group’s business

The likely development of the Group is shown in the business
prospect section in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
and Chairman’s Statement in this annual report.

An analysis using financial key performance indicators

The relevant financial key performance indicators relating to
the business of the Group are set out in the “Financial Review”
section in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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Environmental policies and performance

Environment protection is critical to the long term development
of the Group. The Group places importance in the management
practice so as to minimize waste, maximize efficiencies and reduce
negative impact to the environment.

Relationships with employees, customers, suppliers and
others

The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated and
regularly reviews the employment polices on remuneration and
other benefits.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. The Group maintains close contacts with the customers
and has regular review of requirements of customers and
complaints. The Group will conduct appraisal of the performance
of suppliers on regular basis.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and risks of non-compliance with such
requirements. The Group has an on-going review of the new
enacted laws and regulations affecting the operations of the
Group. The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the laws and regulations that have significant impact on the
business of the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, nor has any other conflict of interest with
the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after the reporting period and up to
the date of this report are set out in Note 46 to the consolidated
financial statement.

AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 have been audited by Asian Alliance
(HK) CPA Company Limited, who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. The Company will propose
relevant resolutions at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company in this regard.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Jing Ming
Chairman

Shenyang, The PRC, 29 March 2019
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The Board is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics which are essential for
maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and maximising
shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time to comply with the regulatory
requirements, and to improve the in corporate governance
practice.

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the applicable code of provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout for the 2018 Financial Year, except the
following:

Code provision A.1.8 of the CG Code requires that the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its Directors. The Company did not arrange such
insurance cover during the 2018 Financial Year as Directors
considered that the risk of material legal claims against Directors
is minimal. Nevertheless, the Board will review this arrangement
from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances and
arrange for appropriate insurance coverage when necessary.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING

The Board, which currently comprises 8 Directors, is responsible
for the formulation of corporate strategy, and risk management to
protect shareholders interest. Daily operation and administration
delegated by the Board to the executive Directors and the
management.

The brief biographical details of each Director are set out in the
section headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of
this report. All Directors have given sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Group. The composition of the Board is well
balanced as all Directors have experience in their field of expertise
with a balance of skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the
operation of the Group.

The Board has three independent non-executive Directors who
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualifications. In
addition, two non-executive Directors are appointed to provide
guidance to the Board.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors of their
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers them to
be independent of the management.

The terms of appointment for all the executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are 3 years. All Directors shall be elected and removed by the
Shareholders in general meeting according to the Articles.
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The policy relating to the Board diversity of the Group sets
up the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in order to
ensure the Board has the required skills, experience, knowledge,
expertise and other qualities of the members of the Board. The
composition of the Board and its committee is regularly reviewed
by considering the benefits of all aspects of diversity. The Board
Diversity Policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS

All newly appointed Directors be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Group’s businesses and their statutory
supervision responsibilities as directors of listed companies. The
Company will update the Directors on the latest development
regarding the Group’s businesses as well as the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, where appropriate. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in training
programmes held by qualified professional people in relation to
the revised code and amendments to the relevant listing rules, so as
to develop and update their knowledge and skills.

During the 2018 Financial Year, all the Directors have participated
in proper continuous professional development trainings to update
their knowledge and skills by attending briefings, conferences,
programmes, workshops and seminars as well as by way of further
education and self-study, so as to understand their roles, functions
and responsibilities.

Attendance of individual Director at Board meetings for 2018
Financial Year are as follows:
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Number of meeting BERE 21
Executive Directors: HITEE -

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming SRARAA % A& 16
Mr. Leng Xiao Rong (appointed on 28 June 2018) RN A (FA2018F6 A28 HIEZR(T) 5
Mr. Chau Ting Yan (appointed on 4 March 2019) BEMEA (R201943 A48 EZT) N/A N R
Mr. Deng Xiao Gang (resigned on 4 March 2019) B4 S0 (FR2019F3 A4 B EHT) 19
Mr. Huang Zhen Kun (resigned on 28 June 2018) SRS A (7201846 A28 HEHT) 8
Non-executive Directors: FHHTESE -

Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRESXE 21
Mr. Ye Zhi E (appointed on 28 June 2018) HEREEA (201846 A28HEER(T) 9
Ms. Li Yu Xiang (resigned on 28 June 2018) ZEERT(R2018F6 A28 HEHT) 6
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHTESE

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan PREGEE ST A 18
Mr. Guo Lu Jin (appointed on 28 June 2018) BB A (PR2018F6 A28 HERT) 5
Ms. Gao Hong Hong (appointed on 12 February 2018) S4T41 4+ (720182 A 12 BEE(E) 16
Mr. He Qing Jia (resigned on 28 June 2018) A 1ESE A (7A2018476 A28 H BHT) 6
Mr. Yu Guan Jian (retired on 11 February 2018) AR A (20182 A 11 HEME) 2
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All Directors have access to the advice and assistance of the Joint
Company Secretaries in relation to the Board procedures and
corporate governance matters.

The minutes of the Board meetings recorded all the matters
discussed by the Board and the matters resolved. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Joint Company Secretaries and are
available for inspection by any Director or committee members.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The role of the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are segregated and not exercised by the same
individual. The chairman is Mr. Zhang Jing Ming and the chief
executive officer is Mr. Huang Chunfeng.

With the support of the Joint Company Secretaries, the chairman
ensures all the Directors are provided adequate information on
matters discussed in the Board Meeting in a timely manner.

REMUNERATION OF COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 12 February
2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The majority of committee members are independent non-
executive Directors and the committee chairman is Mr. Guo Lu Jin.
Other committee members are Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan and
Mr. Ye Zhi E.

The roles of the remuneration committee include the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension benefits
and compensation payments (including any compensation payable
for loss of office or engagement), and make recommendations to
the Board about the remuneration of the non-executive Directors.

Details of the attendance of the remuneration committee
meetings are as follows:

Number of meetings
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| | 2 2

Mr. Guo Lu Jin (appointed on 28 June 2018)
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan

Mr. Ye Zhi E (appointed on 28 June 2018)
Ms. Li Yu Xiang (resigned on 28 June 2018)
Mr. He Qing Jia (resigned on 28 June 2018)

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the
executive Directors and the non-executive Directors.

PEE KA (R2018F6 A28 HERT)
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The remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the nomination committee on 12
February 2012 and updated written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code on 29 March 2019. The majority
of committee members are independent non-executive Directors
and the committee chairman is Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, the other
members include Mr. Guo Lu Jin and Ms. Gao Hong Hong.

The duties of the nomination committee are reviewed and
updated as follows:

° to review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience, length of service and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually
and to make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

o to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualifications of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

o to identify individuals who are qualified/suitable to
become a member of the Board and to select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. Academic and
professional qualifications, business experience, expertise,
knowledge and diversity of perspectives required from
members of the Board as well as other requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited will be assessed to
determine if the nomination is suitable;

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors to determine their eligibility;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular, the chairman and the
chief executive and the policy concerning the diversity of
the Board members, and the measurable objectives for
implementing such policy;
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to review and implement the board diversity policy, as
appropriate and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy,
and the progress on achieving these objectives;

to review and implement the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate. This includes the nomination procedures
and the process and criteria to select and recommend
candidates for directorship set out in the Nomination
Policy; and

other matters authorized by the Board.

Details of the attendance of the nomination committee meetings
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are as follow:

Number of meetings ERAE 2
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming SRARAA ST A 2
Ms. Gao Hong Hong (appointed on 12 February 2018) SAAI LT (R2018F2 B 1 2B EERT) 2
Mr. Guo Lu Jin (appointed on 28 June 2018) EELE(R201856 A28BELRT) 1
Mr. He Qing Jia (resigned on 28 June 2018) AT BSR4 (7A20184E6 A28 A BHT) 1
Mr. Yu Guan Jian (retired on 11 February 2018) REARELE(R201852 8110 RE) 0
AUDIT COMMITTEE FRERY

The Company established an audit committee with written terms RARIKNLEZEZB

of reference in compliance with the CG Code and updated on 29
March 2019.

The major duties of the audit committee are reviewed and
updated as follows:

40

to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to
handle any problems of his or her resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor's independence,
objectivity, and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature, scope of
the audit, and reporting obligations before the audit
commences;
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o to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial

statements and annual reports and accounts, half yearly
reports and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them;

o to review the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate Board risk committee,
or by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

o to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external
auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has the appropriate standing
within the Company, and to review and monitor its
effectiveness; and

o to review the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The audit committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors and one non-executive Director. The chairman of the
audit committee is Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan. The audit
committee held three meetings during the 2018 Financial Year.

Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as
follow:
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Number of meetings ERAE 3
Mr. Chan Ming San Jonathan BREGLE S 3
Mr. Yin Zong Chen FRELE 3
Ms. Gao Hong Hong (appointed on 12 February 2018) SAAI LT (R2018F2 B 12BEERT) 3
Mr. Yu Guan Jian (retired on 11 February 2018) REAREE (2018528110 RE) 0

The Group’s unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2018 and audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2018 have been reviewed by the audit committee,
in relation to the compliance with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have
been made.

The audit committee has met the external auditor without the
presence of executive Directors.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing
any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor.
During the 2018 Financial Year, the Company paid an aggregate
of approximately RMB994,000 to the external auditor of which
auditing services of approximately RMB902,000 and non-audit
services of approximately RMB92,500 respectively.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, all
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code for the 2018 Financial Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statement showing a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group and in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement of auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibility to the shareholders on the consolidated financial
statement of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL CONTROL
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and the Group with the supports of finance
department of the Group. In preparing the financial statements,
the Board has applied the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and consistently followed the appropriate accounting
policies and provisions of laws.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective risk management and internal control system
within the Group. The Group's system of internal control and
risk management includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group achieve
its business objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with
relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement
of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board is also responsible for reviewing from time to time the
effectiveness of the Group'’s risk management and internal control
system, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

The Group has engaged CT Consultants Limited to provide
internal audit functions to review the control environment, risk
assessment, control activities, information system and monitoring
progress of the Group during the 2018 Financial Year and
reported its findings to the audit committee.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s risk management and
internal control system during the 2018 Financial Year, including
the report of CT Consultants Limited and the explanations by the
management. Issue raised for improvement had been identified
and appropriate actions were recommended.

An inside information handling policy is in place to enable the
Group to handle inside information. The Board as a whole
is responsible for identifying and considering the disclosure
requirements and guidelines regarding inside information.
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MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for overall corporate strategy and
monitoring and control of the performance of the Group whereas
the management is responsible for the daily hands on operation.

When the Board delegates its management and administrative
functions to the management, it has given clear directions as to
the powers of the management and the circumstances where,
the management on behalf of the Company shall obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into
any commitments.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Qian Fang Fang was appointed as Joint Company Secretary of
the Company on 6 March 2014. Mr. Tung Sze Ho Dicky, engaged
from external service provider, was appointed as Joint Company
Secretary of the Company on 1 August 2018. Mr. Zhang Jing
Ming, the Chairman, is the primary contact for external company
secretary. Each of Ms. Qian and Mr. Tung undertook not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the 2018
Financial Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) has been adopted by
the Board on 29 March 2019. Under the Dividend Policy, provided
that the Group is profitable and without affecting the normal
operations of the Group, the Company may consider to declare
and pay dividends to the Shareholders.

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its goal. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board takes
into account, among others:

o financial performance, liquidity position, business condition
and strategies of the Group;

o actual and future operation and demands for liquidity of
the Group;

o expected future expansion plan of the Group;

o gearing ratio, credit facilities and indebtedness level of the
Group;
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. gains, losses, retained profits and distributable reserves of
the Group;

o expectation of the Shareholders and investors and

industrial practices;

. general market condition;

o any restrictions against declaration of dividends; and

o any other relevant factors which the Board may deem
appropriate.

In proposing or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements, future growth and its shareholding value. In
accordance with the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company, all applicable regulations and factors above,
the Board may, from time to time, pay interim dividends or
special dividends to the Shareholders which the Board considers
reasonable after taking into account of the financial condition
and profit of the Company, and the Company may also announce
final dividends in forms of any currencies at the general meeting,
provided that any dividend must not exceed the amount proposed
by the Board.

The Board will continue to review the Dividend Policy from time
to time and reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion
to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time.
The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at
any time or from time to time.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
for investors to understand the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at www.shenyang747.com,
to provide up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, and
corporate governance practices.
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The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
its shareholders, in particular, through AGMs or other general
meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage
their participation. The Chairman of the Board as well as the
Chairmen of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee will make themselves available at the
AGM to meet with the shareholders.

The Chairman of the Board, the chairman or the representatives of
each committee together with the external auditor have attended
the AGM to answer any questions raised by the shareholders.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held in June 2019.
The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders in due course.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective
investor communication policy and to update investors on relevant
information on the Group's business in a timely manner, subject
to relevant regulatory requirement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual director.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

Two or more shareholders holding in aggregate 10 per cent
or more of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting
may, in accordance with the requirements set out in the Articles
of the Company, make a requisition to the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company stating the
objective of the meeting. The Board shall as soon as possible
proceed to convene the extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders or a class meeting after receiving the requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS ENQUIRIES

Any enquiries regarding the shareholding of H-Shares, including
the transfer of shares, change of address, loss of certificate etc,
should be sent to the Company’s H-Share Registrar and Transfer
Office, Hong Kong Registrar Limited at Rooms 1712-16, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

Any enquires relating to the Company should be sent to the
Company’s registered office for the attention of the Chairman of
the Board.

CONSTITUTION DOCUMENTS

The Articles is published on the website of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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/ ER(FE)EHEEEMERLAE
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF

SHENYANG PUBLIC UTILITY HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
BEROARRRABRALE

(incorporated in People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 198, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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OTHER MATTER

As explained in our report dated 29 March 2018 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017, we expressed a qualified opinion as a result of the scope
limitation on the impairment assessment of trade receivables and
property under development as at 31 December 2017.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEFIER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RREHER ZREEHEHREFHPEMMAEH
Recoverability of deposits paid for acquisition of B TE Y % B 35 11 57 £ 59 aT i o] 1%
properties
a) As disclosed in Note 23(a) to the consolidated We obtained the agreements to understand the

50

financial statements, on 15 November 2016, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
"Purchaser 1”) entered into an agreement with
Beijing Zhong Tou Chuang Zhan Property Limited
("Beijing Zhong Tou"), represented by the
directors of the Company as an independent
third party, pursuant to which Beijing Zhong
Tou agreed to sell and the Purchaser | agreed
to acquire certain properties located in Beijing
(the “Properties 1”) for a cash consideration of
RMB152,800,000.

At 31 December 2018, the Properties | was under
construction.

At 31 December 2018, deposit of
RMB 140,000,000 was paid to Beijing Zhong Tou,
and the remaining consideration will be payable
upon certain conditions are met.

The Group has appointed an independent valuer
to perform a valuation on the Properties | as at
31 December 2018 to assess their market value.

Given the amount of the deposit paid was
significant, we have identified the recoverability
of the deposit paid as a key audit matter.

UG A TR ERMF23()FIFE - B EA
ET%%’H%%i%JﬁEm R2016511 815
B SA52EKBAR(TEBI]) B RS
KElBEEBR AR ([LTPE )T %%
Bl R RAELERESIREREST
R IERHWE(ThE])  BREREBAARK
152,800,0007T ©

M2018512 A318  WEUDERD -

#2018 12H31H » 5]% AR¥ 140,000,000
BNFIRTE  MESRREEAE TIEEE
g AT o

SECEBE Y SEMEMEIN2018F12A
31 B#ETEENTHEETISEE -

SRR S BREKN - BAIKANETE
R AT B AR A RA SR R At R IR o

terms of the transaction.

We performed an independent check on the
ownership of the land in which the Properties |
located.

We performed site visit to the location of the
Properties I.

We obtained the valuation report related to the
Properties | and assessed the reasonableness of
the methodologies and assumption used.

We assessed the market value of the Properties |
performed by an independent professional
valuer.

We evaluated the independent valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity.

We discussed the status of the construction
process with Beijing Zhong Tou and the
management of the Company and confirmed
the year end balance of deposit paid to Beijing
Zhong Tou by the Group as at 31 December
2018.

BB EEHEARBER 5 H IR -

B E IR it AR T B L
BPIEERRYRIME -

B EGEMZIRBGERS - LT HHT
RERBRESAE

%WﬁEEW%?%E%%%TEEW%#%%Iﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁ’ﬂ‘ﬁ
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HAEHEtRFRE BERAREEEN®HIRE
HE - WHERN2018F12A318 E4A8IMAIL
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MR ER

HEFIER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EZRRFHEREFPEMAERY

Recoverability of deposits paid for acquisition of
properties (Continued)

b)

As disclosed in Note 23(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, on 9 February 2018, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Purchaser I1”) entered into an agreement
with San He Jing Jiao Property Development
Company Limited* (“San He Jing Jiao"),
represented by the directors of the Company as
an independent third party, pursuant to which
San He Jing Jiao agreed to sell and the Purchaser
Il agreed to acquire certain properties located in
Hebei Province (the “Properties Il”) for a cash
consideration of RMB110,000,000.

At 31 December 2018, a deposit of
RMB96,736,000 was paid to San He Jing Jiao,
with the remaining consideration will be payable
upon certain conditions are met.

The Group has appointed an independent valuer
to perform a valuation on the Properties Il on 31
December 2018 to assess their market value.

Given the amount of the deposit paid was
significant, we have identified the recoverability
of the deposit paid as a key audit matter.

SANER A SRR 23(b) A E - B &R
REEEABYEFE =K » R2018F2 A9
A ERF2EMBRE([EAI)E= TR
EHERZEARAR([SARM DI H:E - &
it ZARBRABEERE IR EWES TAL
PO ERE(THEN]) BEREABARE
110,000,0007T ©

R2018F12A31H » 5] & AR%96,736,0007C
BENFIAR - MEBREENE TIREEE
KBS o

BEEEE R B (HEMEYZEIN2018F 124
31 BETEENHEMISER -

ENMNHRI SR BRA - BB
Ry AT U B AR A RS A IR -

2018 BHEARREROERLAA

BUKIE M FT X (15T 269 AU O] 1% (#)

We obtained the agreements and supplementary
agreement to understand the terms of the
transaction.

We performed an independent check on the
ownership of the land in which the Properties |l
located.

We have performed site visit to the location of
the Properties II.

We have obtained the valuation report related to
the Properties Il and assessed the reasonableness
of the methodologies and assumption used.

We have evaluated the independent external
valuer’'s competence, capabilities and objectivity.

We have discussed the status of the acquisition
process with San He Jing Jiao and the
management of the Company and confirmed
the year end balance of deposit paid to San He
Jing Jiao by the Group as at 31 December 2018.

I IS pede K T 1D A B AR 22 55 O IR 3K
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R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MREiER

HEFIER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZRRFHEREFPE2MAERY

Impairment assessment on loan and interest
receivables

As disclosed in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2018, the Group’s gross
loan and interest receivables amounted to approximately
RMB119,181,000, and an allowance for credit losses
of approximately RMB11,464,000 were included in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

The impairment loss on loan and interest receivables
included in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately RMB1,826,000.

The allowance of credit losses of loan and interest
receivables represents the management'’s best estimates
at the end of the reporting period of expected credit
losses under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments expected
credit losses models.

Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
and interest receivables have increased significantly
since their initial recognition, and apply a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their expected credit
losses.

The measurement models of expected credit losses
involves significant management judgement and
assumptions, primarily including the following:

- selection of appropriate model and determination
of relevant key measurement parameters,
including probability of default, loss given default
and exposure at default;

- criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk or a default;
and

- economic indicator for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings.

We consider impairment assessment on loan and
interest receivables as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements
and the significant estimates and judgement involved
in determining the expected credit impairment losses
allowance on the loan and interest receivables.

B R 3 B 7 B a9 (ERF1E

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on allowance for credit losses of loan and
interest receivables included:

- understood and tested the key control
procedures performed by management,
including its procedures on periodic review
on overdue receivables and the assessment of
expected credit losses allowance on the loan and
interest receivables;

- understood and evaluated the modelling
methodologies for expected credit losses
measurement, assessed the reasonableness
of the model selection and key measurement
parameters determination;

- for the historical information, discussed with
management to understand the management’s
identification of significant increase in credit risk,
defaults and credit-impaired loans, corroborated
management’s explanation with supporting
evidence;

- for forward-looking measurement, we assessed
the reasonableness of economic indicator
selection, economic scenarios and weightings
application, assessed the reasonableness of the
estimation by comparing with industry data; and

- checked major data inputs used in the expected
credit losses models on sample basis to the
Group's record.
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R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

MR ER

HEFIER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZRRFHEREFPE2MAERY

Impairment assessment on loan and interest
receivables (Continued)

MU A T RRMF27ATHE - R 2018F 12 A
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TEFTA EXENGEMBARLE -

HA BEEEHZE2018F12A31BILEENGEAIER
KB EZ N F SR EEEL A ARE1,826,0007T °
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chung Chi Chiu

Practising Certificate Number: P0O6610

Suites 313-316, 3/F., Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

S A 42 3£
REBEER
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Impairment losses on goodwill

Impairment losses on other receivables

Impairment losses on loan and interest
receivables

Impairment losses on amount due from an
associate

Loss from change in fair value of held-for-
trading investments

Loss from change in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")

Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries
Financial guarantee

Exchange gain (loss), net
Depreciation

Staff costs

Other operating expenses

Share of (loss) profit of an associate

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

(Loss) profit attributable to:
— owners of the Company
— non-controlling interests

Loss per share
— Basic (RMB cents)

— Diluted (RMB cents)

Dividends

a2

EF

HAKA

BEHRERR

HAth MR B Rl (B B 18

U E R e ) B Y
VEREV R

J& W — FR] gt & R B RIREY
BB EE

FIEEEREAAEE
EFNEE

BAREBEF ARG
(MR2AREBERTA
B DH B EER
AR BEESNER
S P B B e as (&5 18)

BT HEIR

EE 3 W (518 ) R

nE

BT

HAb &R

pok =il w/N

(E18 )5 A

FRIRAIE 1R
S BRI X

FAER
FABR)RFEER

—ARBHEBA
— IR R

BRER
—EXRARED)

—#E(ARED)

BB

2018 2017

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR®TTT AREFIT
7 80,091 15,499
(64,966) (2,066)

15,125 13,433

9 257 3,013
17 (1,320) (24,459)
(124) =

(1,826) =

(5,679) =
- (42)

(30) -
36 46 (2,003)
(49,787) =
1,532 (9,861)
(156) (147)
(4,062) (3,491)
(5.318) (4,895)

18 (85,940) 738
(137,282) (27,714)
10 (1,779) (1,877)
11 (139,061) (29,591)
(139,215) (32,832)

154 3,241
(139,061) (29,591)
13 (9.47) (2.23)
N/AFREHR N/AiE A

14 - =
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REBEaRHMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

Loss for the year FERNEiI8 (139,061) (29,591)
Other comprehensive income Hth2EKRA (FX)
(expense), net of income tax MRS
Item that will not be reclassified to profit TEEN SR Em
or loss: EE :
Fair value gain on investments in equity BAREEFARMEE
instruments at fair value through other WARBRATAERER
comprehensive income AR EEWE 2,400 =
Item that may be reclassified subsequently —~ HiZ [t E# #EE
to profit or loss: HBm A -
Exchange differences arising on REBINEBREEZ
translation of foreign operations N =5 2,615 (4,748)
Total comprehensive expense FRN2EMAXZEE
for the year (134,046) (34,339)
Total comprehensive (expense) 2m (%) Ik A &8
income attributable to: RER :
— owners of the Company —ARRRIEAA (135,768) (34,285)
- non-controlling interests —IEIEfR iR 1,722 (54)
(134,046) (34,339)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2018
#2018 12A31H

Notes
HiaE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments

- non-current portion
Goodwill
Interest in an associate
Available-for-sale investments

Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")

Deposit paid for capital contribution
Deposit paid for acquisition of properties

Deferred tax assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Properties under development
Contract costs
Held-for-trading investments
Loan and interest receivables
Trade receivables

Deposits and other receivables
Amount due from an associate
Bank balances and cash
Restricted bank balances

Assets classified as held for sale

60
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e —Feifk & A BIFRIA
RITERKIIRE

PR HIR1T AR
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15

16
17

19

20
22
23
39

24
25
26
27
28
29
43
30(a)
30(b)

21

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
49,617 943
9,000 =

- 1,320
61,278 147,218
- 178,390
49,000 =
150,000 150,000
236,736 140,000
1,888 =
557,519 617,871
- 198,796
136,921 -
- 115
107,717 179,357
- 128,701
16,445 2,436
1,676 4,365
149,258 11,198
87.456 =
499,473 524,968
130,000 =
629,473 524,968
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2018
#2018 12A31H

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Contract liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Amount due to a non-controlling interest
Amount due to a shareholder

Financial guarantee contract

Deposits received

Tax liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

RENRER
& 15 B 3K
BHAE

Hi e ket &M
e — 2 IR AR R

e —RBER IR
EERA R
EdET £
HRARE

RENRERE

HESRE

BAR G

[EEN

1

ZA/NGIE 2SN
i

TR aR

REa

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 198 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Jing Ming
RE

Director

EF

20184

EELARABRROARAE

2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiet AR®TT ARBTT
31 85,324 110,825
33 84,299 =
34 52,364 1,989
43 2,061 1,952
43 1,540 -
32 49,787 =
21 20,000 =
1,684 1,462
297,059 116,228
332,414 408,740
889,933 1,026,611
37 1,469,376 1,469,376
(604,640) (468,260)
864,736 1,001,116
38 25,197 25,495
889,933 1,026,611

FES8H E198H AN A HRE  (K8S
ER2019F3 A29 B E M R#ERY - W H

THEEHRERE -

Leng Xiao Rong
R
Director

EZ
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REREBZEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 1231 B ILFE

Statutory Non-
Share Share surplus FVTOCl  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interest Total
BOARE
HAKR
EERE  2EHMA
kx  BRER e MEE  EREE  RHER #it  FEREG #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETR
(Note 37) (Note &) (Note b)
Wis7)  (WHa) (W)
At 31 January 2017 H2017E1818 1,469,376 320,476 105,028 - 1,828 (861,307) 1,035,401 85,267 1,120,668
(Loss) profit for the year ER(EB)ER = = = = = (3283) (283 3241 (29,591)
Other comprehensive expense, AfRERR
net of income tax MRAEH
Items that may be reclassified REEr 87
subsequently to profit or loss: BalBR
Exchange difference arising on translation ~~ RAZIGIERES 2
of foreign operations EXES = = = - (1,453) - (1453) (3,295) (4,748)
Total comprehensive expense for the year  ER2EREE = - - = (1453 (32832)  (34289) (54 (4339
Reduction of capital contribution from SHARRERE
non-controling interest (Note 38) (Wit38) = - - - - - - (59718)  (59,718)
At 31 December 2017 At 31 December 2017 1,469,376 320476 105,028 - 315 (894,139) 1,001,116 25495 1,026,611
Adjustment (Note 2) FB22) = = = 3610 - (4.222) (612) (3457) (4,069)
As restated on 1 January 2018 #2018F1 1R E7 1,469,376 320476 105,028 3,610 375 (898,361) 1,000,504 2,038 1,022,542
(Loss) profitfor the year ER(ElR)ER - - - = - (139215 (139219) 154 (139,061)
Other comprehensive incomne, A ZEMA -
net of income tax MRAER
Item that will not be reclasified to TEEN R
profitor loss: ZEA
Fair value gain on investments in equity EALEEIALRE
instruments at FVTOCI WARMRATANAR
B4 = = = 2,400 = - 2,400 - 2,400
Items that may be reclassified ARTRENEE
subsequently to profitor loss: EwZBh -
Exchange difference arising on tranlation ~~ RiRE iGN £
of foreign operations LEREE = = = = 1,047 = 1,047 1,568 2615
Total comprehensive income (expense) for — FRZEMA(FR)
the year a8 = = = 2,400 1,047 (139215 (135,768) 1,722 (134,046)
Release of FVTOC! reserve upon disposal of ~ HERAA BT AR
equity instruments at FVTOC] PERABRATAR
BRERABETA
AfRERANRE = = - (112 = 112 - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) YEHBAF
(hit33) - - - - - - - 1437 1437
At 31 December 2018 R2018%£128310 1,469,376 320,476 105,028 5,898 1422 (1,037,464) 864,736 25,197 889,933
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEREBZEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

Notes:
(a) Share premium

Share premium comprises surplus between the value of net assets
acquired and the nominal value of domestic shares issued as a result
of the incorporation of the Company as a joint stock limited company
and the share premium from the issuance of H-shares.

(b) Statutory surplus reserve

The Group is required to set aside 10% of its profit after taxation
prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and
regulations to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches
50% of their respective paid up capital or registered capital, where
further appropriation will be made at the directors’ recommendation.
Such reserve can be used to reduce any losses incurred or increased
the capital.

() Distributable reserve

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, distributable reserve shall
be the lower of the accumulated distributable profits determined
in accordance with PRC accounting standards and regulations as
stated in the PRC statutory audited financial statements and the
accumulated distributable profits determined in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. Excluded
Zhongfang Chaozhou Investment Development Limited (“Zhongfang
Chaozhou"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the Group
did not have any reserve available for distribution as at 31 December
2018 and 2017.

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

Bt

(a)

(b)

(c)

B iR

AR E B EKERNFEEBENARRER
B A7 A PR A AR S M 1T A E BENE 2
BVEER - AR BITHIRFTE £H R AR E -

EEBRBARS

R EEHER AR - AEEFELHIR
AP EB10%IEREERBATES - BE
FZAESEDRER B DA RASGERER
M50% ' E—THNEEEHEEER - 22
a2 R AR R A B 3 A R ) B iR g hifk
N o

S EZ S

REFHEEB AN - AIEOE 2 FRBRE
PR RHER| RARBIEETE 2 85 A BLAE L
EAZ SRR 2 RRT AT F AR B S
ARETRAUETEZ 2T AED OEFME 2
BIKE - BARR2EAWE R RFE M
BEFREBRAR([REZM) I - NEER
2018 %2017 12 A31 B E A DB 2 1%
&
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EERY
Loss before tax RERTEIR (137,282) (27,714)
Adjustments for: HE
Bank interest income HITHEMA (77) (46)
Dividend income REMA - (1,528)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W% BEREETE 156 147
Share of loss (profit) of an associate HiE &N B EECER) 85,940 (738)
Impairment losses on goodwill HENREER 1,320 24,459
Impairment losses on other receivables H iR IER R EER 124 =
Impairment losses on loan and interest receivables  FEUE K Kl S 8035 (E B8 1,826 -
Impairment losses on amount due FE I —Felfi & N B RIER
from an associate REEE 5,679 =
Loss from change in fair value of BEEERBDABEZDN
held-for-trading investments B - 42
Loss from change in fair value of BARBEGABSNUBEER
financial assets at FVTPL BEEBHEE 30 -
(Gain) loss on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR (KR EE (46) 2,003
Financial quarantee IR 49,787 -
Operating cash flows before movements in EEGEDNM
working capital BERLKE 7,457 (3,375)
Increase in properties under development BEAMEEN - (24,640)
Decrease in contract costs BHKARD 61,875 -
Increase in held-for-trading investments BEBEEREEN - (83)
Decrease in loan and interest receivables FERE T RS> 60,617 125,291
Decrease in trade receivables MR R 128,701 17,000
Increase in deposits and other receivables & R E MU M (17,292) (1,398)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables JEASBRFR OBl )12 n (25,501) 3,707
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEEM 84,299 -
Increase in amount due to non-controlling interest & E4% AR AR 3R ZUIBE AN 109 1,952
Decrease in other payables and accruals H (i FE (R R = B R m (27,979) (7,638)
Cash generated from operations REREXBHRSR 272,286 110,816
Income tax paid HRFEHR (2,202) (5,333)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERERBHLLIHE 270,084 105,483
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TT ARETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Bank interest received BUERITHE 77 46
Dividend income received RLCESCON - 1,528
Deposit received from assets B D ERRIEHENEENR €
classified as held for sale 20,000 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of properties WEMEMZ MR 2 (96,736) (30,000)
Deposit paid for capital contribution AR MEET € - (150,000)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment EEME  BELSE (252) (12)
Purchase of prepaid lease payment ERBNEENR (6,000) -
Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary HE B AR MEHRIE - 18,000
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HERBRRNRETAFE 48 =
Net cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries WERNBARMELSRAEE 28,210 -
Proceed from disposal of financial asset at FVTOCI &R ALBEFAEMEERA
MM B EENREHE 5,400 -
Proceed from disposal of financial assets at FVIPL &R AL BEFABSHSBEEE
HIPTE50E 85 -
Refund for deposit paid for acquisition of REWEREMI NS
investment - 55,000
Increase in amount due from an associate JRE Mk — g & X B FRIB S (2,990) (3,990)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES AR BEERDHREPE (52,158) (109,428)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MRED
Increase in amount due to a shareholder e —Z IR ZIBLE AN 1,540 -
Increase in restricted bank balances XRRGISRITEE RGN (84,299)
Repayment of capital contribution BRTE - (11,063)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) KA (XfHMEFEH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES Bes8 (82,759) (11,063)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRAL&SEBRIEM(RD )BE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 135,167 (15,008)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY MMB1EMRE&RRLSEEE 11,198 30,307
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net EXEHTE  FE 2,893 (4,101)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 R12A31HHEER
DECEMBER, REPRESENTED BY ReSEEH -
BANK BALANCES AND CASH DSRTRERAESKR 149,258 11,198
20185 BRARRRRAERAT 65



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

1.

*

66

GENERAL INFORMATION

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a joint stock limited company incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

On 17 April 2018, Shenzhen Jinma Asset Management
Company Limited (“Jinma Asset”) sell 420,000,000
Domestic Shares of the Company, representing 28.58%
the issued Shares of the Company’s at a consideration
of RMB189,000,000 to Beijing Hua Xia Ding Technology
Company Limited* (“Beijing Hua Xia Ding”), a private
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC.

On 25 June 2018, Jinma Asset sell 180,000,000 Domestic
Shares of the Company, representing 12.25% of the
issued Shares of the Company’s at a consideration of
RMB45,000,000 to Beijing Lichuang Future Technology
Company Limited* (“Beijing Lichuang”), a private limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC.

The address of the principal place of business of the
Company in PRC changed from 14/F., Jinmao International
Apartment, No. 1 Xiao Dong Road, Da Dong District,
Shenyang, the PRC to Room 2-12-5, Block B, Diwang
Club Apartment, No. 19 Wenyi Road, Shenhe District,
Shenyang, the PRC with effect from 17 September 2018.

The address of the registered office of the Company in
PRC is No. 1-4, 20A, Central Street, Shenyang Economic
and Technological Development Zone, the PRC.

The address of the principal place of business in Hong
Kong changed from Unit C, 21/F, Eton Building, 288 Des
Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong to 8/F,
Skyway Centre, 23 Queen’s Road West, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong with effect from 29 October 2018.

The Company is an investment holding company and the

principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 44
to the consolidated financial statements.

For identification purpose only.

—REH

BHEARBRENDBERAR (X2
BDR-REFEARKME([H
B )M ERAT -

MR2018F4 8178 » FImaEEEE
ERAERAFR( BHEE]) ML RE
ERREARAR(TIERERR]  ©
PRSI FLABREEAR)H
£ 420,000,000% & A RN & B ({5 7R
NEIDETIRMN28.58%) » KIBEAA
ER#5189,000,0007T ©

M2018%FE6A250 * £ HFEBEMILR
HaIRFREEAER AR (TdFTHE ]
R B MFLABREERAR])
! £ 180,000,000 J& A~ A B A & A% (1
ARABBEITRMI2.25%)  REA
AR #45,000,0007T °

AN BV B A 3 B EE A B bk
AR BE S T AR [/ N 1SR 2 K =
RNE 144E B 2 AR BRSO [ X
K195 i TR LB N BB AE2-12-5
= B2018F9A17THMEAER °

ARABRAFBEAEMRER U A
Fh [ 88 5 A 5 335 7l B 35 [ P SR K420
FR1—45% o

KRR BBETEEEMIEBRES L
IRESEF 2885 M ERNE21ECE
BEH L LREFREA2IFREF
D81 - B2018F 10 H29H IBARK -

RRABIRREZERAE - EHNBAF
T EEBENERE MIEHMAM 44

* EHES)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“"RMB"). Other than those subsidiaries
established in Hong Kong whose functional currencies are
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the
“Group”) are RMB.

The Company’s H-shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 16 December 1999.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments

HK (IFRIC)-Interpretation Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
("Int") 22 Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to Hong Kong  As part of the Annual Improvements to

Accounting Standards HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
("HKAS") 28
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

—RBHEE)

REMBHRRUARE (AR
R o RN BB Z F M B A FIA
BIT(IRTT]) BYEEEI - ARE
EARBLEMBRAR (RHEER
M ) EIhEEEH -

RAFEIHIRE 1999512 A16 B £
EBBAERSMER AR ([B3HR])
Ee

RRANRGRESTHEEMEE
HHEA(FRMBEER])

B 2 5F BE 5 ) 4 R0 96 0 1 Bk AE 1B ET
FRMBEREER

REBRAFEHRERAB LG
CIPN-QR - 33 - 41488 - BDFEVe=ok 0
B AR BT BB RELER T

EEMBREEARE SRIA
BEMBREENRIH BRPAOKERABEL]

BE(ERpBRS RS RBANE
REZEE)
-RE(RB)ENR
BANHREENEIE RN AR
(BFTA) RENNER:TE
BEUBREENZIE ERDEHEREEL
(IB3TA) FORLHTAR
BRI RS ER
BUREEAY
BAGER fEREBMBREER
([FHGHER ) 201455201658
F18R(EATE) NEEYE—T5
BEGI R0 RENEZES
(1BFTA)

B TLE SN - A R ERAAFT B 1 K
RIEFT BBV BREEAL BB AE
BRAFERBEFENTBREAR
R R, bR & B RR BB ERE
RERTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1

68

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments, Amendments to HKFRS 9
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
and the related consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
1) the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit
losses (“ECL") for financial assets and other items
(for example, contract assets, lease receivables and
financial guarantee contracts) and 3) general hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017
and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018
are recognised in the opening accumulated losses
and other components of equity, without restating
comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RRANRGRESTHEEMGE
SHEU(FRMBEER ) (E)

T 2 5F BE 56 ) R0 6 0 e R AR 1B T
EFEMBHEEN(E)

2.1

BFEHMBHEERFEIHLH
T RERMBEET

AEBRAFERANBT Y
BELERESREHTA &
78 B 75 5 E RIS 95k (1E 5T
KA B R G ERIIEFIT 1
RE M EE B ERE ERIE
FAHARRIER] - BARM RS
RERNFISE I T E B K 75
BEMNSREFE  QPBKE
EREMFE (FI - EHE
E - BRHEEFIE T BHER
BRDEHEEEE ([ RRAE
BER])  K3)—REFEE
SRBIAFTARE °

REBCREBEE BV HBmESE
RIIZ8 9 5% 2 51) MY 38 14 16 S e
FARZ2ER] » BN : ¥R 20184F 1
A1B(BXERABH) HMARK
IHERNTAEBWERSER
EERK(RIEEBEERE
BATHREZER) - BER
2018F1 A1 HEKRILHERHN T
BERERAZEENX - R2017F
12 A31BEREE R 201841
A1EEREEZHANZEZZRE
IR BB R EMmER D R
FLARERR + MAESLLERE R o

At - HRLBER IREE
BT EFERTHTA -
ERA ERE  ETHRE
FIRIREBR Z FILLIE ©

HErME LM B HREERFE
REHN ST HRRREE MK
HRHTEIWE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. G FSifEf REEEITHE B M IEH

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") w ([ FBHBESER |)(2)
(Continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are REFEERABNERHFBEGREEST
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued) EFEEMEREENZ)
2.1 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related 21 FEHBEBZERFIRELH
amendments (Continued) T RARIEFEST(E)
a) Summary of effects arising from initial a B B R ERA &8 A1 B3R
application of HKFRS 9 EERIEIN ELEM T
ZpE
The table below illustrates the classification TR TR EXERAB
and measurement of financial assets and BR(B12018F1 A1 8)IR
financial liabilities and other items subject BEBHBHRELERSE
to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the IR REABGEERE
date of initial application, 1 January 2018. 3CRETHNBEE R
BraEMERERBER
FEEBENEMEBEEN
/X*E&n-l—i °

Carrying amount Carrying amount
as at 31 December asat 1 January
2017 under 2018 under
HKAS39  Reclassification ~ Remeasurement HKFRS 9
BuEEei RETERE

BRIE30% EER LT
R2017%12A318 R2018%181A
HIEEE ENOE EfitE HREE
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTT AERTT AEBTR AERTR

Equity instruments at VTOCI (Notea)  RAREETARMZE

WARBAT A W) - 178,390 3610 182,000

Financial asset at FVTPL (Note b) RALBETABEN
HHAE W) - 115 - 115
Held-for-trading investment (Note b) FIERERE W) 115 (115) - -
Available-for-sale investments (Notea)  FTHEHERE (W) 178,390 (178,390) - -
178,505 - 3610 182,115
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

70

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (Continued)

a) Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Notes:

The Group elected to present in OCI for the
fair value changes of equity investments
in two PRC private limited companies
engaged in banking business and
developing construction, selling, renting
and managing of commercial building
respectively previously classified as available-
for-sale investments. These investments
are not held-for-trading and not expected
to be sold in the foreseeable future. At
the date of initial application of HKFRS 9,
RMB178,390,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale investments to equity
instruments at FVTOCI. The fair value equity
investment previously measured at cost
less impairment under HKAS 39. The fair
value gain of RMB3,610,000 relating to this
unquoted investment previously carried at
cost less impairment were adjusted to equity
instruments at FVTOCI and FVTOCI reserve
as at 1 January 2018.

BRANRGRESTHEEMEE
SHEN(FRMBEER ) (E)

T 2 5F B 56 ) A R 0 96 0 e R R 1T
FEMBHESEN(Z)

2.1 BFEHMBEBRSZERFEIREH
I REHRERT (&)

BB X RN EER 58
2 E R 935 E L 1Y

a

ZHE ()

Haz -

(@)  AEEEEEEN
B BT E R

BN D B E R
TARER &2
mHEREER
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HMETRBEFLAR
R & ER BRI REA
RENAREBEE
B H fth 2 A
PR - ZERE
WIBEEERTE
FTRAI R ARRTE
HE - REXER
BB ®REER
FOREH AR
# 178,390,000 7T
THER A ER
BEFHOEERR
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EEBRAHBKRAT
B -REABEHA
R EELIRES
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2 o B R RTIRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (Continued)

a) Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Notes (Continued)

(b) The Group has reassessed its investments
in equity securities classified as held-for-
trading under HKAS 39 as if the Group had
purchased these investments at the date
of initial application. Based on the facts
and circumstances as at the date of initial
application, RMB115,000 of the Group's
investments were held-for-trading and
continued to be measured at FVTPL.

The measurement categories and carrying
amounts for all financial liabilities at 1
January 2018 have not been impacted by
the initial application of HKFRS 9.

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

RRANRGRESTHEEMGE
SHEU(FRMBEER ) (E)

(Continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are REFEERABNERHFBEGREEST
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued) EFEEMEREENZ)
2.1 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related 21 FEHBEBZERFIRELH
amendments (Continued) T ARMEREST(Z)
b) Impairment under ECL model/ b) TERIE B IE = T A9

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses a
lifetime ECL for all contract assets and trade
receivables. Since the Group has only 1
debtor of the Group and trade receivables
have been assessed individually. The
contract assets relate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade receivables
for the same types of contracts. The Group
has therefore estimated the expected loss
rates for the trade receivables and the
contract assets on the same basis.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised
cost, including bank balances, loan and
interest receivables, other receivables and
amount due from an associate, are assessed
on 12-month ECL (the “12m ECL") basis
as there had been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, additional credit
loss allowance of RMB9,197,000 has been
recognised against accumulated losses. The
additional loss allowance is charged against
the respective asset.

AEBRATEHER
SERFEIRNBLT
FERTERBEEER
WL E G HNEEKRIE
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EE & R R IR ) B
EEBEIRI12E AR
HEEER(M12EAR
HERBR]) 2 EET
AHE - RES BV HE
REREERRIT EBRE
KB

R2018%F181H » #8
IMEEREEBARKE
9,197,000 7T B M & &t
ESE R - BINEIE
BREEBHBEE+RT
gff\\ o

Annual Report 2018 Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. G FSifEf REEEITHE B M IEH

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") aan) ([ EBHMEER ) ()
(Continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are REFEERABNERHFBEGREEST
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued) EFEEMEREENZ)
2.1 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related 21 FEHBEBZERFIRELH
amendments (Continued) T RARIEFEST(E)
b) Impairment under ECL model (Continued) b) TERIE B IE = T A9
JRIE(4E)
The loss allowances of loan and interest M2017%12 A31 B fE
receivables as at 31 December 2017 WS % ) B A 18
reconciled to the opening loss allowances as #HEL2018F 1 A1H/
at 1 January 2018 are as follows: B E R R E R BRI
™

Carrying amount Carrying amount
as at 31 December asat 1 January
2017 under 2018 under
HKAS39  Remeasurement HKFRS 9
BEEEE BEEEMHEE

RRIE308 HERISORE
R2017%128318 R2018E1A1A
HIEEE it BEE(E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AE®TTR AR®TT AE®TR

Loan and interest receivables ENETRHE (199) (9,197) (9,396)
Deferred tax asset EHEEE - 1,518 1,518
(199) (7.679) (7.878)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at
the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening accumulated losses (or other components
of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated.

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue from construction of infrastructure and
development of properties is recognised when
the project passes through the acceptance and
transfer procedure. The Group determines that the
adoption of HKFRS 15 did not result in any impact
to the financial statements as the timing of revenue
recognition on construction of infrastructure and
development of properties is not changed.

RRANRGRESTHEEMGE
SHEU(FRMBEER ) (E)

B 25 5F B2 54 15l A S B 37 98 4 % A& 4 RT
FRMBREENE)

2.2

EFEMBHREERAFEI15MER
SV

AEBRAFEERIRPNE S
B s RIS 155K - BBE
ERELERF1SHIMA TES
SEHERFEISHMA - BES
STERIE NS ZLES AR IAE
2o

REEDBPEATEYER
HAERF 155 - BN E
Al Rt ER &R R B
(BN2018F1 A1 H)#ER - RE
RER A B HA A (o] = 2R HR AT
BEHEE (MRS - a0
BA)PER - WEES|LRE
o

WA TEZAIRF[E]

ERABBEREIMNIZFE
AIFERARREER R YESE
RAOWA - AEERR - KA
BB S 2 RIS 155k I
BUBHRRERERZE @ R
AEERREER MY EER
HOU A HERR O ;PR T &2 o

Annual Report 2018 Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 1 January 2018. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not
been included.

Note

Current assets it 11-{

Properties under development ERE

Contract costs AERA

k The amounts in this column are before the

adjustments from application of HKFRS 9.
Note:

(a) At the date of initial application, construction cost
incurred for the completed construction land of
approximately RMB198,796,000 previously included
in properties under development was reclassified to
contract costs.

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

=

=
S

RRANRGRESTHEEMGE
SHEU(FRMBEER ) (E)

B 25 5F B2 54 15l A S B 37 98 4 % A& 4 RT
FRMBREENE)
22 BEHBHESEMNEISHER
SHk s (&)
BRIBER R EZ5)

HA20184%1 A1 B &4 B ik
MEFERNSREIEL AR
T - REZEHTENIEE

NEEEA -
Carrying amounts

previously Carrying amounts
reported at under HKFRS 15
31 December at 1 January
2017 Redlassification 2018*
RESEME
EAIR017E HEERESH
12A31RER #2018%1A18
HIEE(E ENRE Rk (E
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AB®FR AERTT AB®FR
198,796 (198,796) -
- 198,796 198,796

* I RE & AR RN T B Y
R EAEREOFRAHE -

Hist -
(a) REREMBE  iE%RT
ERAMEERNEERARL
A R #:198,796,000 7T 5& B
IAZERPYE  BEFH
HEESKIBA o
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year (Continued)

2.3

76

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of

financial position arising from the application
of all new standards

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Available-for-sale investments
Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Deferred tax asset

CURRENT ASSETS

Properties under development
Contract costs
Held-for-trading investments
Financial asset at FVTPL

Loan and interest receivables

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

FnpRE

ARHERE

BOrEEFARGZERA
MRATA

ELHRAE

RBEE

B

AHHA

FFEERE
BOABEFARENEKEE
EREHEHE

RERER
KRAHAAEbER

g

Carrying amount
asat

31 December
2017 under
HKAS 39
BuEEei

ERIE39%
R2017%12A318
HREE
RMB000
AERTR

178,390

198,796

115

179,357

1,001,116
25,495

RRANRGRESTHEEMGE
SHEU(FRMBEER ) (E)

B 25 5F B2 54 15l A S B 37 98 4 % A& 4 RT
FRMBREENE)

2.3

BRI AT B RTER BRI

BB AR E

HKFRS 15

FRHEEEER
$15%

RMB'000
ARBTR

(198,796)
198,796

HKFRS 9

FEHBREER
Hou

RMB'000
AERFT

(178,390)

182,000
1,518

(115)
115
(9.197)

(612)
(3.457)

Carrying amount
as at 1 January
2018 under
HKFRS 9
BETEME
HEERRM
#2018%1A1A
HIEEE
RMB'000
AERTR

182,000
1,518

198,79

15
170,160

1,000,504
2,038
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business’
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor

and HKAS 28 and its Assaciate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 1 Definition of Material’

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interest In Associates and Joint Ventures'
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

RRANRGRESTHEEMGE
SHEU(FRMBEER ) (E)

€ 7 i B 1) % 4 2 0 50 98 5 B 4E B RT
FEMEREE

AEBERARPRMACEMERRE
M FT R R AERT BB TSRS L

Al

M RGN 163
EEMBRE AR 7R
&t (ARpHReaR

%8¢) -RREBH
EEMBREEAE3R

(BF1%)
BEMBREEARIN
(B71%)
BBMBREEAF 105
RERGER8%S
(BFTA)

BEMBREEAF 15

RBA %
R RRATRT
E3 )

ARARENREH
NESHES

RABEARENA
BN i Yl
BEMERTE

EAMER

REEGEAIESHR

(fB3TK)

BB GIERIE19% HEHRE e
(fB3T)

B G iERIE28% RBENFRASLE
(B3TA) HR R

BB R R BB &
(BFTA) 20155520178

BENEELE'

! R2019F 1 A1 Z B BIRNEE
HAR AR ©

? RUHE B 83 2020F1 A1 RS 2%
b eE ST PSR S  cowdl 3= 0ES

BEHREEWBER -

3 202041 A 3k 2 1% B A Y & 2R
R o

4 R2021F1 A1 R Z BRI EFEE
HAR AR ©

> REFERT B s 2 BRI TS
FEﬁf‘E@I ©

BR T X Pt B9 Fh B M AR IER] BB
BREEAIN  ARREE([EE])
JER - FERFTA E AT R R EERT
BAMBHREENA RIS Y
RAEMBHRREEAEATE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

RRANRGRESTHEEMGE
SHEU(FRMBEER ) (E)

FEMBGHEENE165RER

BEMEHEERE 165 AR EE
ZHER A AMER AN Z T EE D
AZEER - BEMBRELERNE16
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB698,000 as disclosed
in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of RMB55,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based
on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be
considered as additional lease payments and included in
the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that were
not previously identified as containing a lease applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will
not reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease
which already existed prior to the date of initial application.
Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS
16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application to opening accumulated losses without
restating comparative information.

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirely, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate

the financial statements of the Company and entities

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see accounting policy below);
and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date.
If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liguidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is
then allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities
on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of
purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill
or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described in “interests in associates”
below.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purpose are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interests held by the Group. When the Group'’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Interests in associates (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value
upon such changes in ownership interests.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Interests in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset is
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset and its sale is highly probable. Management
must be committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant
subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate or joint venture, the investment or the portion
of the investment that will be disposed of is classified as
held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
and the Group discontinues the use of the equity method
in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale
from the time when the investment (or a portion of the
investment) is classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the
Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component.
A significant financing component may exist regardless of
whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the
parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.

Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its construction
of infrastructure and development of properties. The Group
first assesses whether these costs qualify for recognition as
an asset in terms of other relevant standards, failing which
it recognises an asset for these costs only if they meet all
of the following criteria:

(a) the costs related directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the Group can specifically
identify;

(b) the costs generate or enhance resources of
the Group that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Costs to fulfil a contract (Continued)
(0) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods and services to
which the asset related. The asset is subject to impairment
review.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

Revenue from construction of infrastructure development
of properties is recognised when the project pass
through the acceptance and transfer procedure and the
collectability of related receivables is reasonably assured.
Deposits and installments received from purchasers prior
to meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
under current liabilities.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

FEEHBEE)
BiTavesE (&)
(©  ARARATEHAKE -

M ERNEERRZAF(CEER
HERD  REERMNTPERZE
EMENEmERE—% - BEAE
TR °

I AGESZ(542018E1 B 1HEN)

WARB WK EE R ENR R EER
B WARGHEPERE OARE
AR EURRE MR

WARKA S RBEER SE5TE - KRR
EREASRATRERANEE & AR IE
HEFAREBZER (R T XA)
RFIERR o

BHEBBEARURINERF - WRATE
35 T T A B R KSR IR O T L L 1 By
NHERERREEZR M DEERAOK
A RFFE LR ARRIZERN A E
BB IES Mo BN R TIET AR A
MBARRRE THRBAE

KB A B BLE AT B R RS 3R
H R o T TE P RERR

REEBEMNBERERERALER - B
WASRREERI SEAH B - BIRER I
BEMNFEWA -

B EENN BWARIBREENA
T RERNERME - 2B IR
EWETIE - BRMEZ 15 AL (@
M EENTRMZ S ARG HARKR
ERMATEEZEER VR FERE B
FREDFEMEL X -

Annual Report 2018 Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than properties
under construction as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of
assets other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and deprecation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Properties under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When properties are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Properties under construction are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of
properties commences when they are available for use (i.e.
when they are in the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management).

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development for sale are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
takes into account the price ultimately expected to be
realised, less applicable variable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of properties under development for
sale comprises cost of land use rights, construction costs,
borrowing costs and professional fees incurred during the
development period. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development for sale are classified
as current assets unless the construction period of the
relevant property development project is expected to
complete beyond normal operating cycle.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise, except for exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s
interests in associates.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of
an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowings costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate
of interest is treated as a government grant, measured
as the difference between proceeds received and the fair
value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it recognises
any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in Note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

20184

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in OCIl and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line
item in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (Continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “loss from
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables, loan and interest receivables,
amount due from an associate and other receivables). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 2) (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

0) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEeHBEE)

Financial instruments (Continued) SMIRE)

Financial assets (Continued) HEZE(E)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 B A E A (RE AT L2098 EH

with transitions in accordance with Note 2) (Continued) BB IR ERE 918 ) (FB)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) (i) EERBEZEINE)

. existing or forecast adverse changes in J A EEREBAEE

business, financial or economic conditions BB DR ET
that are expected to cause a significant MBS BN ER A
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its STERIN T AIE L

debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant . BERALEXENER
deterioration in the operating results of the TR EIRE R
debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse U EYEBAEEEEE
change in the regulatory, economic, or WRBHEBAEE
technological environment of the debtor KBS RITIR RN ER
that results in a significant decrease in the RTEHHEANTF S
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations. 1k °

Irrespective of the outcome of the above Tam LatF T R - A&

assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk ERE - &6 0N a BB

has increased significantly since initial recognition 30K - BBV ERIAREER
when contractual payments are more than 30 BB EEEN - RIEAEE
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable BAREBBENERRTA

and supportable information that demonstrates &R °

otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the BE LA - WEBIAR

credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased HERAMEEERARER

significantly since initial recognition if the debt Rk - AIAEERFZE ?z

instrument is determined to have low credit risk at TANEERRBYVLER

the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined R EAREIE AN - 1ﬁ-ﬂu”1'fﬁMT

to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of = E'JTEWIE:%)S?%EZ%E

default, i) the borrower has a strong capacity to EREEERR : ()EFEKE

meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the AR - (i )1%%}\%*%@&5?\

near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and 7 AIREHANBITAESHER

business conditions in the longer term may, but will EMmEE T RGIEE R EBHK

not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower JUEY = HA S A BB R BR 1B R 0

to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The BHISSERABITESNE S

Group considers a debt instrument to have low MEREWEES - WEK LA

credit risk when it has an internal or external BAERS SN E BRI R R RE

credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally AR JGREBRIFERAREE) - A

understood definitions. REER7 ~§%§ﬂ‘%lﬁﬁﬁﬁ

KEER
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 2) (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

20184

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing the
financial instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition of a financial
guarantee contract, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEeHBEE)
Financial instruments (Continued) &RMTHRE)
Financial assets (Continued) HEZEZE)

B &R A (RIE Y At 2 648 K FE /T
BB B E ERFEIN L) (B)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 2) (Continued)

HBREERENTTEE

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets (iif)

108

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having

EREHMBEEEMNBEREK
REenEBKINTEN—IR
SZHENEN  ZHBEE
BIHIREERE - WEEEHR
REERENZEEEEHEIA
TEANATBRSE

. BITARMERANER
ISR EE

. ERAK - MR
HEF

. fERA R ERAZR B
&SRR 5 R 25 B HY
RBESEHNESR - [AfE

granted to the borrower a concession(s) that BAREEFRALEE
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; IR N e E R
7
. it is becoming probable that the borrower . BRABAEBERE
will enter bankruptcy or other financial SETTEM M EEA
reorganisation; or 54

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 2) (Continued)

(iv)

20184

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 2) (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which
the effective interest rate cannot be determined,
the Group will apply a discount rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks that are specific to the cash
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the discount
rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEeHBEE)
Financial instruments (Continued) &RMTHRE)
Financial assets (Continued) HEZEZE)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with Note 2) (Continued)

(v)

20184

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group’s trade and other receivables, loan
and interest receivables, amount due to
an associate, bank balances and restricted
bank balances are assessed as a separate
group. Loans to related parties are assessed
for expected credit losses on an individual

B &R A (RIE Y At 2 648 K FE /T
BB B E ERFEIN L) (B)

(v)
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o Past-due status; o BHAAAOR
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and o BIEANEE - BEK
7% R
. External credit ratings where available. J SNEMEERR(IE) -

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative
amount of income recognised over the guarantee
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, loan and interest receivables, other
receivables and amount due from an associate
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets
and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FTEEFHBE(Z)
Financial instruments (Continued) EMTRE)
Financial assets (Continued) HEEEE)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial BB EEMSIERA#A;E (72018
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) F 151 HERE L L ERE 9%
(Continued) A7) (%)

0) Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued) (i) BARBEFABRZUEE
E(#&)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

AT =R  FHIEEENB
BEUNIMMBEERNNER
R E R R AR BERTA

R

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
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recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and
is included in the “fair value change on held-
for-trading investments” line item. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note 6(c) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(ii)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-
maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.
The Group designated unlisted equity investments
as AFS financial assets on initial recognition.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period. Dividends on AFS
equity investments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established. Other changes in the carrying amount
of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(iii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
loan and interest receivables, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, amount due from
an association/a non-controlling interest and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or
disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the agreed contractual
terms, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9 on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of loan and interest receivables and
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a loan and interest receivable or
trade receivable is considered uncollectable, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written-off are credited to profit or
loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under heading of investment
revaluation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to accumulated losses.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the

substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issued
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including (trade payables, other payables
and accruals and amount due to a non-controlling interest)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payments when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1 January 2018)/
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018); and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment loss on tangible assets and contract costs

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets and contract
costs to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible assets estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Before the Group recognises an impairment loss for assets
capitalised as contract costs under HKFRS 15, the Group
assesses and recognises any impairment loss on other
assets related to the relevant contracts in accordance
with applicable standards. Then, impairment loss, if any,
for assets capitalised as contract costs is recognised to
the extent the carrying amounts exceeds the remaining
amount of consideration that the Group expects to receive
in exchange for related goods or services less the costs
which relate directly to providing those goods or services
that have not been recognised as expenses. The assets
capitalised as contract costs are then included in the
carrying amount of the cash-generating unit to which they
belong for the purpose of evaluating impairment of that
cash-generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets and contract costs
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal and constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the
effect of the time value of money is material).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. The Directors have not come
across any significant areas where critical judgement are
involved in applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The Group'’s unlisted equity instruments, amounting to
RMB49,000,000 as at 31 December 2018 are measured
at fair values. Fair value being determined based on
unobserved inputs using valuation techniques. Judgement
and estimation are required in establishing the relevant
valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could
affect the reported fair values of these instruments. See
Note 6 for further disclosures.
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 4.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Provision of ECL for loan and interest receivables

Loan and interest receivables are assessed for ECL on an
individual basis. The measurement model of ECL involves
significant judgement and estimation, primarily including
the following:

- selection of appropriate model and determination
of relevant key measurement parameters, including
probability of default, loss given default and
exposure at default;

- criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default; and

— economic indicator for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s loan and
interest receivables are disclosed in Note 6.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimates for net realisable value of contract costs

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of contract
cost are approximately RMB136,921,000.

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties
under development according to their net realisable value
based on the realisability of these properties. Net realisable
value for properties under development is determined by
reference to management’s estimates of the selling price
based on the property repurchase agreement, less the
anticipated costs to completion. Based on management'’s
best estimates, there is no material write-down of
properties under development at 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and Hong
Kong. However, the implementation of the tax various
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the
PRC. There are many transactions and calculation for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such
determination is made.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB6,113,000 (2017: RMB5,641,000) and
approximately HK$10,334,000 (2017: HK$10,334,000)
available for offset against future profits in the PRC and
Hong Kong respectively. No deferred tax asset in relation
to unused tax losses has been recognised in the Group'’s
consolidated statement of financial position due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams. In case where
there are future profits generated to utilise the tax losses,
a material deferred tax asset may arise, which would be
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year in which such profits are recorded.

EXEHARR MG A RERMNE
ERE(E)

T RESNERRE(Z)
EHRETEIREZ (G5

2018512 A31H » BAKAZEE
E# A ARE136,921,0007T °

REBRFTZEMHEAIEREES
M AR FENFEERTWEZR
HfE - FRPMEZAERFEIZ
EZERERBEVERBRZE CGEFTE
B RMEGBFTTIKARET - BIE
BIRE 2 & IEME - 12018512 H31
BX2017F12 A31 BB REHP Y ELE
EAMOR ©

FriiziR

AEBERBERBTEESNAEN -
A - BERBENRITRF BRI
ME R RIBH AR & T AER - B
FEBBIETEZEIZ M EREE
FEEREHIA © Mz FEH I REHR
BREREEDARNEETE - B
EZRMR e EETHADRNMER
FETER R -

M2018% 12 A318 » AEE A K
Az 7 R B R B 7 9 oK 2 I B R B AR
HIAEE D 54 A AR6,113,0007T
(20174 : AR¥5,641,0007T) K49
10,334,000/ 7T(20174F : 10,334,000
FEIT) o AR AR I A SRR EE LATER) -
AEEL KRRERE MR R AER
HRE AR IAREIEERANELHRES
B o fH BB EE A R H R AT B A s B 0E
BE - ATRELEAREHREE
E - UBREREEEFNERERER
BIBRRER -

Annual Report 2018 Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT SEXEEER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in REFEBETNTERNARGERARER Y
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BREAEELS  WEBE(|ER
while maximising the return to shareholders through the Rk s AR A R KB o 24N
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s EEEREEIRE L FAR o
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and REBZEREBOIRR S NBITA
bank balances and equity attributable to owners of the B REARNBEA AE(LREZD  2he
Company, comprising issued share capital, other reserves EEIBITIEA - HipEE R EEE -
and accumulated losses.
The Directors review the capital structure on a regular EETHEEEALE - EAEEN
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the — = EEEEERRA N EREE
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of BARBENERS - BIEEE 2325
capital. Based on the recommendations of the Directors, NEFEBBBRNIRE « FHRETE
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through R EEE LA T ERERIREE
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share TE AR Ty EL BRSO R AR RS o
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS €MmTHE
a. Categories of financial instruments a. SR TRAER :
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
Financial assets HBHERE
Financial assets at FVTPL: R EEG A Bm s
HEEE -
Held-for-trading investments HIEEEIRE - 115
Equity instruments at FVTOC| BRARBEFAEMEE
WARIBRAT A 49,000 -
AFS investments A HERE - 178,390
Loans and receivables (including BN REWGIA(BE
cash and cash equivalents) BeMR&SEEE) 361,637 325,260
Financial liabilities MBaR
Other financial liabilities HEMEsasE
(at amortised cost) (R SEPC A ) 141,289 114,766
Financial guarantee contracts ISR AR 49,787 -
20184 BBARBRROERAT 125
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6.

126

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity instruments at FVTOCI, held-for-trading
investments, AFS investments, loan and interest
receivables, trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amount due from (to) an associate/
a non-controlling interest/a shareholder, bank
balances and cash, restricted bank balances,
trade payables, other payables and accruals and
financial guarantee contract. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
0] Currency risk

Other than those subsidiaries established in
Hong Kong whose functional currencies are
HK$, the functional currency of the Group
are RMB in which most of their transactions
are denominated. During the year ended
31 December 2018, approximately 12%
(2017: 100%) of the Group'’s turnover is
denominated in HK$. In addition, the Group
has certain financial assets and liabilities
denominated in HK$.

6.

&MIR(E)

b.

MEEREEEERRBER

AEENEIZSRTABRER
DR BEFAEMEZERAN
BRATR BHEEERE
AL ERE  BRERK
ME - YR - me hEM
FENER - U () —FH &
7,/ —RIEERIRR, S — B K&
RFYE - ROEHRERE X
PRHIIR & AR - BANARR - H
T SR N B B R S A 5 42
RER - @M T AFBEREH
ARE - BRETRT AR
MWERBEMSRR(EER
B R E R K E (B AR R
) EERARNIRBESE
B o NXED AT PR AL R
PREVER - EIREEE KT
ZERE G - AR KRB X
HoBREVE & ROFE I ©

G MR
()  EEEE

BRI B B AL M % E M
BAR(EgEE% A
BIT) N - AEBE 2
BEEEAARE - MK
BHRHAAREST
2 - EZ2018%12 A
3MBLEFE - AEEE
HEREN12% (2017 F ¢
100%) AVE TLETE © 1IE
SN REBHEBE T
BT ECTBEEK
afE-

Annual Report 2018 Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €MTE(E)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERSEERERKEZ)

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) iz ) AC=D)

() Currency risk (Continued) ) Bk E e (1)
The carrying amounts of the Group's R B AR HE SR AN
foreign currency denominated monetary HECEBREEREE
assets and monetary liabilities at the end of BEZEMBENT :
the reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE R

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT NS

HK$ BT 108,432 184,948

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT PN S

2,951 2,008

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors the
foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company is mainly exposed to the
currency of HK$.

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

AL E B B ESNE B
ISR o AR AEE
EEEERIMNERR
YEBN AR ERY
FEBRINERKR

o
3

RRE DT

5

KRR FEREIBITH
B o
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. @MIRE)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERSETEEERBE(Z)
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) s mEE (Z)
0] Currency risk (Continued) ) B e (42)

128

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% (2017: 5%) increase
and decrease in RMB against HK$. 5%
(2017: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjust their translation
at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
(2017: 5%) change in the foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in post-tax loss for the year and
a negative number indicates an increase in
post-tax loss the year if RMB appreciate 5%
against HK$. There would be an equal and
opposite impact on post-tax loss for the
year if RMB depreciates 5% against HK$.

HK$ BT

AR®TR

BREDT ()

TRFNAEEGAR
B B TU R BEFHE KR BT
E5% (20174 : 5%)
ZHERE DN o FT A
B E L & 5% (2017
F:5%)RAETEER
A B 1A 5B 3 5 B [ B
ZHE WRREEE
HEXSIEA L&) 2
il c BMRES TR E
BEARFEINEFHEEE
HE @ WHEXZ5%
(20174 : 5% ) & &)
BRMERRIIRE o

WAR®EEETIE
5% ' AT ESBERF

NERTREERLD - M
BEBRFARBRRE
BRI - AR LE
TR (E5% - AIEF R
BRI R AR KA
ReFE -

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETT

4,404 7,638
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

20184

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ir)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances and restricted bank balances
as detailed in Note 29 and Note 30
respectively.

The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate loan
and interest receivables as detailed in Note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group's exposures to interest rates risk
on financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this
note.

Bank balances and restricted bank balances
are excluded from sensitive analysis as the
Directors consider that the exposure of cash
flow interest rate risk arising from them is
insignificant.

EELARABRROARAE

6.

emMIRE)

b. HMBRREEEBREEE)
AR ()
() FEmEE

AEBAEZRERE
) 2= [ e B £ 29 B B
FE3070 Bl F it Y F B A
TIRTTAESR M PR IR
TREHAH -

AEE I ASE LR A B
BIRKM 275l & E
FE I 2R 3 K e e A B,
BN AR EERRE

LA
()
2

o

A % B B 3 S AE Y
RREE o AT E
12 6 B2 & AR 3 45
R E B H R E AT
R -

AEBETHRENH
[\ B BN AP R
BHETRAREEA -

HREFARERITHE
BRI X IR B RIT A EREE
AR RENRE R
TR - HORA BIERIT
RERR N R R BIRTT A5 8R
REREEDNF ©
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6.

130

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iir)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its investments in equity
securities measured at FVTPL. For equity
securities measure at FVTPL (2017: held-
for-trading) quoted in the Stock Exchange,
the management manages this exposure
by maintaining the investments with
appropriate level. In addition, prick risk
was monitored by the management of the
Group and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risks at the end of the reporting period,
excluding available-for-sale investments
measured at cost less impairment for the
year ended 31 December 2017. Sensitivity
analyses for unquoted equity securities with
fair value measurement categorised within
Level 3 were disclosed in Note 6(c). For
sensitivity analysis of equity securities with
fair value measurement categorised within
Level 1, the sensitivity rate is 10% in 2017.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments included in held-for-trading
investments had been 10% higher/lower,
the post-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2017 would increase/decrease by
approximately of RMB10,000 as a result of
the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments.

6.

EMIR(E)

b. HERREEBRRKEZ)
MR (E)
(i) BMERSRE

AEBREZRAREE
F AR 2R RAE
FIREmMERERR -
R ATATRIE AR B
Bt AB&=ETE(2017
FRBEEE) NBRA
BEME  BEEBSAB
HIRFEERKFEZREE
UL RS o LhAN - AEE
EEREEERERRAR
WiSREFERE LR

LA
o0
PR

HIEDHT

AN SURE DT TR I
MERRZRERRE
E - TEEEE2017F
12 A31 B IEFEIZAA A
BERBEET ER A
ERE - EHARERAE
AESBEAE =L
ETRABEFNBEE
DR HFE6QOHE -
ERDAREBEFENLE
BE— R RAESK
BEE DT 2017F 8
R A10% o

WETERIEEBEIRE 2
ERARATAZER L
T 10%  HE
2017F 12 A31HIEF
B2 BT EEEEF
EEBEREZAREE
gEymgm SR LA
E#10,0007T °
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

20184

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, other than those
financial assets whose carrying amounts best
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk, the
Group'’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, loan and interest receivables,
amount due from an associate, bank balances and
restricted bank balances. The carrying amounts of
financial assets at amortised cost stated in Note
6(a) represented the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risk associated
with its financial assets, expect that the credit risk
associated with loan and interest receivables is
mitigated because they have financial guarantee by
competent guarantor.

Trade receivable

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group
only trades with creditworthy third parties. In
addition, the management of the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model)
on trade balances individually. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group does not have
trade receivable.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as all the trade
receivables was due from the Sole Customer in the
construction of infrastructure and development of
properties segment.

EELORABRRROARAR

6.

EMIR(E)
b. HERREEBRRKEZ)
1SR MR R i ETF

R2018F 12 A31H » BZE
BRAEERAE M ATASREANE
BERBOIMEEEIN  AEE
NEERREEXKEEKER
&ﬁ@%%? FEWEF &ﬂ
8 BUR— B & QR HIE
ﬁﬁ%%&iﬁﬂﬁﬂ%%°
B 5 6(a) P 21 4% 5 $5 B A @9 BF
BEERAEEAEBRRERS
FAREEBITEEMS AEREK
XHBYHEENZTANEER
& o ALY EISH TR
MmBREMEEF AR
M EEMRBHNEERR - I
%%ﬁﬁ%fn&ﬂ%ﬁ%m
SERRE TR RERKES
%ﬁégm%%ﬁﬂﬁm%%
FER -

FEURE B

BREGFERR  AKE
@Ef BRIFNE=T#EITE
5o Wi REEEEER
&R & B M 5 RS E R F 95
RiZFEHEEBEREA (2017
F EEAEIRRA)HHERE
S REMETTRERE Bk
5 EERR ARENGEE
[\ B A PR o

MR2018F 12 A31H » KEEW
EEUARSK ©

20179128318 » AEEH
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VHEBROIH 2 E—FF o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other receivables/loan and interest receivables/
amount due from an associate/bank balances
and cash/restricted bank balances

For loan and interest receivables, the Group's
management manages and analyses the credit risk
for each of their new and existing customers before
standard payment terms and conditions are offered.
The management assesses the credit quality of
each customer based on customer’s background
information, financial position, past experience and
relevant factors. The Group also reviews from time
to time the financial position of the customers.

The Group also reviews from time to time the
financial position of the customers.

The credit risk on bank balances and restricted bank
balances are limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

For all other instruments including other
receivables, loan and interest receivables, amount
due from an associate, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition. The Group have
assessed and concluded that the risk of default rate
for the other instruments are steadily based on the
Group assessment of the financial health of the
counterparties.

6.

&MIR(E)

b.

MERREZERRYE Z)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

&MIR(E)

b. HERREEBRRKEZ)

SR mBR R i (BT (2)

AR ER B B R B R B AR Bl RT

comprises the follow categories: (HEFEATER
Internal
credit rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
R faid LIS RpBRE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
not have any past-due amounts -not credit-impaired
il REFOENERE L TEETRNE SHESEERR 1EREHEEER
-EHAEEHE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually settle  Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
after due date -not credit-impaired
ER2E EBAGERIMARERERZNHRARER PHRAEERR EAESREERR
-BEREENE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
initial recognition through information developed - not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired
internally or external resources
iz FERREEREAARBEEM 2HRAEEER HREEERR
(BARFINFERESHER) -ENRESRE -BHREEHE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit impaired Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired
B RERERNEELREERE SHEHEERR SHRSEEER
-HREEHE -HREEHE
Write-off There is evidence that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery
s EERTEHABAREHE HHEmeR WAL E

20184

BAGEARARRIMOARER
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to
ECL assessment.

EMIR(E)
b. HERREEBRRKEZ)
SR mBR R i (BT (2)

RSB A A

THEMEEBEN AN

e
SR o

s
= 5=

External Internal 12-month or Gross
2018 credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL carrying amount
12{8R 8
2018 Wi SMEEEER HBEERR 2URMERER FEdE
Note RMB'000
ARRTR
Financial assets at amortised costs
BRESRINMERE
Bank balances 29 Baa2-Al N/A 12-month ECL 149,258
BT TEm DEARSEEEE
Restricted bank balances 30 Al N/A 12-month ECL 87456
XRABTLES ol EAEHEERE
Other receivables N/A (Note a) 12-month ECL 15,181
bR TR (fitzEa) 12EARSEEER
Loan and interest receivables 27 N/A (Note ) 12-month ECL 118,971
EWESRFIE TR (fitzEa) NEARSEESE
Amount due from an associate N/A Loss Lifetime ECL 7,355
(credit-impaired)
- EARNE R B LHRHEEEE
(RfEERE)
Other item
AftEE
Financial guarantee 32 NA Loss Lifetime ECL 49,787
contract (Note b) (credit-impaired)
BERa N (D) TER BB FERAEEEE
(HREERE)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. emTR(Z)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERSEERERKEZ)
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EEEERREFGE)

(Continued)

Notes: Kt -

(a For the purposes of internal credit risk management, (a) HABEERREERENS -
the Group uses past due information to assess 7 = @) | B a6 HR A R AR B
whether credit risk has increased significantly since FERKRBE ERERARS
initial recognition. LRI -

Not past
due/ no fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
b3k
B EEEERNY it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT AR¥BTT AR®TT
(Note i)
(i)
Other receivables Hth fE Y kB - 16,569 16,569
Loan and interest receivables FEWE T RS - 119,181 119,181

(b) For financial guarantee contract, the gross carrying (b) R BERERAME - BRE
amount represents the maximum amount the Group REEAKSERERBASL
has guaranteed under the respective contract. BEROZS S
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

136

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following table shows reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for other

EMIR(E)
b. MHERRETEBRRBE(E)

1ERmBER REFG (&)

ERESI B B E R R R
MBS B R R -

receivables:

12-month ECL

1218 A

TR EEE

RMB'000

AREFTT

At 1 January 2018 201851411 =
New financial asset originated FrEs e Is & 2 124
A 31 December 2018 72018 12A31H 124

The following table shows reconciliation of loss
allowances that has been recognised for loan and

interest receivables:

TREHN D HEWEFREF B
FER B R B B IRk -

12-month ECL

1218 A
TRHEEEE
RMB’000
AREBFT
At 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 201712 /4318 -
REBBSFTERIFE395% 199
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 RIERE BT %8|
SEOTRAT FHEE 9,197
At 1 January 2018 — As restated 20181 A1 — K& 9,39
Changes due to financial instruments A1 A1H
recognised as at 1 January: HRem T AMNEE
— Impairment losses recognised —BEERREEE 1,826
Foreign exchange loss b i 5 242
At 31 December 2018 720184128318 11,464
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. E&MIAZE)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. HERRSEEERME(Z)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment - . 5
(Continued) Egﬁm&ﬁgﬁﬁ(nﬁ)
The following table shows reconciliation of loss TR EHMEK —HBEQ
allowances that has been recognised for amount TR IBRE B 1B B 1 BE
due from an associate:
Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
EREE
(HREERE)
RMB’000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2018 201851 H1H -
Changes due to financial instruments AR1A1H
recognised as at 1 January: HRem T AENEE
— Impairment losses recognised —BEWRREEE 4,365
New financial assets originated FrEs e s s & E 1,314
At 31 December 2018 7201812 H31H 5,679
The following table shows reconciliation of loss TREHE LA BERE BHE
allowances that has been recognised for the REEEEERYER
financial guarantee contract:
Lifetime ECL
(credit-impaired)
T HITEH
EEEE
(HBREERE)
RMB’000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2018 7201851 H1H -
Change in credit risk =i 49,787
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31H 49,787
Liquidity risk REELmE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group EEERBESRER  KEE
monitors and maintains a level of bank balance and ERWHERFRITEALTEERN
cash deemed adequate by the Directors to finance —MBIKFE - ZKFEHEER A
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of RHENANERE 2B - R
fluctuations in cash flows. ISR TR 2 o
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRANREBHBEBRT
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. BRFH - ZRTIBRAEER
The table has been drawn up based on the WEREEVBEEBENRTH
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities By aEnasr RMER
based on the earliest date on which the Group can ERERER - TRERERS
be required to pay. The table includes both interest mAMERAE o
and principal cash flows.
201854 BRARRRRAERAT 137
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. emTR(Z)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MERSEERERKEZ)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) brd g 1D,
Liquidity tables B ALK
Weighted Repayable
average on demand Total
interest or within undiscounted Carrying
rate one year cash flows amounts
ig REXHE FERGS
Figti% BOME REHE EEE
% RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
% ARETT ANRETT ARBTT
2018 20185
Trade payables TR N/ARER 85,324 85,324 85,324
Other payables and accruals Bt ENTRETER N/ARER 52,364 52,364 52,364
Amount due to a non-controlling e —4IHRAR R N/ATER
interest R 2,061 2,061 2,061
Amount due to a shareholder Ef—2REZE N/ARE R 1,540 1,540 1,540
Finandial guarantee contract BRERAR N/ATER 49,787 49,787 49,787
191,076 191,076 191,076
2017 20175
Trade payables EE NARER 110,825 110,825 110,825
Other payables and accruals AN RETER NATER 1,989 1,989 1,989
Amount due to a non-controlling e —43HmRAR R NANER
interest Eyr] 1,952 1,952 1,952
114,766 114,766 114,766

The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contract are the maximum amounts
that the Group could be required to settle under
the arrangement for the full guarantee amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the
guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of
the reporting period, the Group considers that it is
more likely than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. However, this estimate is
subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee
which is function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are
guaranteed suffer credit losses.

EAMBERERFKAREAR
SEREEZHEERLT I AR
BRIz HEETR(ERZE
FHEFBRBER) - RBRNH
SHRZEN  AEER SR
B PRB B R FRIRZ P HE
BRI o AT - AT AT BERR
FRETREFERELFRZ
AT (UL TYBURTR 32 5 75 FTRs
BB IR B 7 e MR 2 B R
EEBKRZAIRMN) MELE
flE =
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €MTE(E)
C Fair value measurements of financial C. EMTATAREESE
instruments

This note provides information about how the
Group determines fair values of various financial
assets and financial liabilities.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The Board is responsible for determining
fair value and the process of determining fair value.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The Board works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used).

Level 1

F—&
2018
RMB'000

IN-L el ARHTTT

BRAREH AR

Financial assets at FVTPL

2017
RMB'000

LB TE PR A AR S5 B AR A B T %
BYBEERMBRBNAA
EBENER -

REBEF Do T AR
WEMEAREBEFEZE - EF
Qﬁ#m&ﬁ%ﬁ&#m@ﬁ
BEEMNBEAE -

KRGt R BER - AEEF
ARMMZAERESE - &
REE—RBAE AEEHE
REBE=7AERMEMRE
ThE EFSHAERING
HEMEREEARIAEN
EERTGORERNHAE -

FREMBEEEZ L ALRETS
BERBEL N REHE

BEMEMKR - AEE DY
Wﬁ?ﬁ&@ﬁfﬁﬁ; T
KRR EMGEELAAE
BEAEE (CERMBZEE
RITRBABIR) ©

Level 3 Total

et #it
2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB'000
ARBTT PN Sl AR%TT PN-Sw

RMB'000 mGIVEAM  RMB'000

AR - - = - 115

Equity instruments at FVTOCI — RAABE AR
PEMANBRALE - - 49,000 = 49,000 -
- 115 49,000 - 49,000 115
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C.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. emTR(Z)
Fair value measurements of financial EMTAZAREBHENE(ZE)
instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that FEFHESEZLAREBEED
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis BEEREL N BEEE
(Continued) (&)
Fair value
ARERE
As at As at Valuation Significant
31 December 31 December Fair value technique(s) and unobservable
Financial assets 2018 2017 hierarchy key input(s) inputs
R2018E R2017F  QRRE  REEDR EXREE
MBRE 12A31R 12A318 4@ FERABE BABE
Listed equity securities - Asset- Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A
classified as held-for- approximately  F—# active market N
trading investments RMB115,000 WERMS FFTREAE
PERBEEERERN BE-
FRAES HWARE
115,0007C
Unlisted equity instruments at Asset- = Level 3 Market approach Discount of lack of
FVTOCI (Note) approximately F=1R aE marketability
BARBESARBRZERA  RMB49,000,000 RZmE RN E
M EmRAT AN ?) BE-
HARR
49,000,0007¢

140

Note:  An increase in discount for lack of marketability used
in isolation would result in a decrease in fair value
measurement of the unlisted equity investments
at FVTOCI, and vice versa. For the year ended 31
December 2018, a 1% increase/decrease in discount
for lack of marketability and holding all other
variables constant would decrease/increase the
carrying amount of the unlisted equity investments
at FVTOCI by RMB8,000,000 respectively.

Mt . FrERBRE TS RAMIE
BB LAREBUIRAREE
TAHMEEBRAMIELT
BRAKZEN AR BETER
D RZIA o B E2018
F12AMBLEEE B2
MERBYEITE LT
1% -+ M FATA Hith & S i 55
T RAREEFAEAM
2EKANIEETRAZE
EREER T A5 5
AR#8,000,0007T °
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) emTR(Z)
c. Fair value measurements of financial C. ERMTATZAREBENEZ)
instruments (Continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that FEFHESEZLARBMEY
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis BEEREL N BEEE
(Continued) (&)
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 KEERIIFE £— 8%
in current and prior year. =R A o
Assets-equity
instruments
at FVTOCI
BE—EBAR
BEst AEM
£ ON:D)
BRAT AR
RMB'000
ARETTT
At 31 December 2017 2017512 H318 -
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 RIER BB Y 5SRE R
FITRF AR 182,000
At 1 January 2018 M2018F1H1H 182,000
Reclassified as asset classified as held for sales B D AN B ABIEHENEE (130,000)
Disposal HeE (5,400)
Fair value changes BREEED 2,400
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31H 49,000
Included in other comprehensive income is an Hit 2 EKRABIEERARE
amount of approximately RMB2,400,000 fair BRHPBEAR AN BETALR
value gain relating to the unlisted equity securities 2B AR TEMNIE L
classified as equity instruments at FVTOCI held MIRAFEHFEENR R EER
at the end of the current reporting period and is =HARE2,400,0007T ¢ WE
reported as changes of “FVTOCI reserve”. HAMEAREEFAREMER
WA RSN ES -
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts BEERRB RSV BmARE
of other financial assets and financial liabilities RIBB AR 2 HA B & B
recognised at amortised cost in the consolidated ki BaBEs RABRARE
financial statements approximate their fair values. EEE o
20185% EBAABRERAERAT 141
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7. REVENUE 7.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as
follows:

Wy 2
FAREE 2 W DTEAT

Construction of infrastructure and AL ER
development of properties (Note) YIZEER (f5E)
Credit business SEHEK

Note:

All the revenue from construction of infrastructure and development
of properties was recognised at a point in time based on the contracts
entered into with a stated-owned enterprise located in the PRC (the
“Sole Customer”).

The relevant infrastructure and properties specified in the contracts
are based on the Sole Customer’s specifications with no alternative
use. Taking into consideration of the relevant contract terms, the legal
environment and relevant legal precedent, the Directors concluded
that the Group does not have an enforceable right to payment prior
to the completion of the acceptance and transfer procedure. Revenue
from construction of infrastructure and development of properties
is therefore recognised at a point in time when the completed
infrastructure and property is transferred to the Sole Customer, being
at the point that the acceptance and transfer procedure completed.

The Sole Customer made advance payments to the Group while
the acceptance and transfer procedure is still ongoing. The advance
payments result in contract liabilities being recognised throughout
the construction and development period until the completion of
acceptance and transfer procedure and the Sole Customer obtains
control of the completed infrastructure and property.

The Group considers the advance payments contain significant
financing component and applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing component
as the period between payments and transfer of the associated
infrastructure and property is less than one year.

The Group also applies the practical expedient of not disclosing
about the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations for contracts with customers as all revenue contracts are
for period of one year or less.

8. SEGMENTS 8.

The Group's operating segments, based on information
reported to the board of Directors, being the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM"), for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services
delivered or provided. No operating segments identified
by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
69,903 -
10,188 15,499
80,091 15,499

KB ERRIEER MMEEROMARATIR
EEONPEN—REELXE(THE—FR )T
VA=) St

K& R RT R RO AR R EL B 3R b S W) SE TR IR e
—EPMRBIEL - TEEMAR - K£E B8
MR OGN  AERRRBEELRGN
% BEREE  ARERBURNEFZRZ
A SRS SR AT SR BT THE D  EiE - R
IR R M M) SE B R AU AT B 3R T AR R b I
MEEE T HE—F PR (B3R N2 77T
H B RA ) HERR

M — R PRI R NIZF LT AASKE
{ERTRNRIA « BNFOREHA N RERERE
B LERPEAER  EERERNERFT
B R M — B P RS B 3R T AR R R ) 3 B04%
HERLE -

AEERASANFTIRBEEARMERD + HE
REREEE - THEEIMERRERDH
R HER - RERNREES R AR RN
MENBBBEE R —F -

AEETEREREEE  MRENLEH
BEFRIMAHNBRTRORENRHER - R
ERAERAR KNI R —FHIAT -

SEEH

REFHERD BRAFAEME - A&
EENEESRERDE TR E
BEWRRE EH 2 EH) TR
2R 2 AR SR A o
ESMELBIEEREE BT - X
A2 HE D -
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8. SEGMENTS (Continued) 8. SBEHE)

KRR AEERBEEBVKREE
BIISESSRAVAT & R Al RS D Epan T

EMREERMMEER

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reporting segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

- Construction of infrastructure and development of —

properties
— Credit business = EEXEK
= Securities investments = BHZE
Segment revenues and results DB RER

AT BAREBIZA IR E MR & 5 &F &
o H e MERE DT -

#E12A31HILLEE

Segment results

ABRA

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment:

For the year ended 31 December

Segment revenue

b L

Construction of infrastructure and

development of properties AMRERR R EEE 69,903 - 6,252 (24,459)
Credit business FEXH 10,188 15,499 9,084 28,563
Securities investments EHRE - = (30) (42)
Total 8=t 80,091 15,499 15,306 4,062
Share of (loss) profit of an associate Db L N R (BB )7 (85,940) 738
Impairment losses on other receivables  E:ft UG AT R BB (124) =
Impairment losses on amount due from  FEY— & A RIZUARYRE

an associate BB (5,679) =
Impairment losses on loan and interest

receivables WSS RS MREER (1.826) =
Other income HEfpl A 257 3,013
Unallocated exchange gain (loss) AORER NG (ER) 1 (24,991)
Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARIME(BE) 46 (2,003)
Depreciation bk (156) (147)
Staff costs BT (4,062) (3,491)
Other operating expenses HiniE 2% (5.318) (4,895)
Financial quarantee SRR (49,787) =
Loss before tax BRAER (137,282) (27.714)
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue KN EREN SR ZIEREINTE
generated from external customers. There were no inter- PrWE - AFEITES BEEHE
segment sales in the current year (2017: Nil). (20174 - &) °
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the LESIW TR RARAEEN S
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note TR AR (5 R AR S M iS5 sk R B o
3 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment results 3) o DEEFEIES O I HIA (EE)
represents the (loss from) profit earned by each segment wmA - WSRO —EEE A
without allocation of share of (loss) profit of an associate, Al (E18 ) m A ~ Efth E U A RE B
impairment losses on other receivables, impairment losses B EREFREFSRREEE - &
on loan and interest receivable, impairment losses on I — B N RIRIERRERE - B
amount due from an associate, other income, gain (loss) U A~ HEMTE A AU (EE)
on disposal of subsidiaries, certain depreciation, certain BEFHE  HTAHEEL K (B
unallocated exchange gain (loss), financial guarantee 18)  BBERLRPRITBHAE(BIE
and central administration costs including directors’ EEMEREIAR) o LI EIRD
emoluments and staff costs. This is the measure reported R ERIBT (MR EERE REEE
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and WEY L o

performance assessment.

20184
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8.

144

SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

SEMRHE(E)
SHAER AR

AT RAREIR A S@E MEEDHE
DHEENBEDN

Segment assets

Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties

Credit business

Securities investments

Total segment assets
Asset classified as held for sale
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated assets

Segment liabilities

Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties

Credit business

Securities investments

Total segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

SEHMRE

ERREER MERR
EEXE

HFIRE

D EVEERRR

DRERFEHENEE
Ao RREE

SHBAR

AERREERIMEER
EEFH
EHRE

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease
payments, interest in an associate, available-for-sale
investments, equity instruments at FVTOCI, deposit
paid for acquisition of properties, deposit paid for
capital contribution, deposits and other receivables,
bank balances and cash, amount due from an
associate and assets classified as held for sale; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than certain other payables and accruals, tax
liabilities, amount due to a non-controlling interest/
a shareholder, financial guarantee contract and

deposit received.

2018
RMB’000

A R®BFR

224,377 327,497
107,717 180,677
- 115
332,094 508,289
130,000 =
724,898 634,550
1,186,992 1,142,839
169,623 110,825
17 43
169,640 110,868
127,419 5,360
297,059 116,228

MEERDIRE RN EERM

DETYE  BELRE - &
MREMR  R—HHEQE
ZHEs - AHEERE  EZA
R EBEFARELEZEK AR
ATHE - WEBMEMS SRR
T TEMXAMEE e
K E A YR  SRITHEBREE
& B —REEBE QR RREAR
DERFEHENEENIME
EOHMNAEEE &

DBECTE T E M RN R M AR
EH - HBERE BN—2F
IR R, —RRR A - B
BHRERE R &R EWET & UIME
EORNFERRE -
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8. SEGMENTS (Continued) 8.
Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss
or segment assets:

SEMRHE(E)
HttFEBEH

STADE R R BBk D BEEE
e

Construction of
infrastructure and
development of
properties Credit business Securities investments Unallocated Total
ERBMRERNRE fBRRHE EHRE e #it

218
RMB'000

2017
RMB'000

2018
RMB'000

2017
RMB'000

2018
RMB'000

2017
RMB'000

218
RMB'000

2017
RMB'000

2018
RMB'000

2017
RMB'000

ABRTR s ABRTT I\ Sorl \BRTT

Impairment loss recognised ~ FEAERN
in respect of goodwil HERE - W 130 - -
Loss from changes in fai BEEEREN
value of held-for-trading MEEESN
investments Bl - - - - -
Loss from change in farvalue /A4 BlEs AR
of financial assets at FVIPL ~ HIBBGEN AL

EEEBER - = - - 30
Exchange (gain) loss B (Ws)BR - - (1531 (15130) -

ARRTT Wi delll\RETT WL ae A RRTT
- - -0 U
f - - - f
- - : 3 ;
- () 24991 (1532) 981

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included
in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

FHREFEFELEEAREBTES
E1E \*E/Mlﬁwgﬁaiz“*%é“?;r
NHERE

Construction of
infrastructure and
development of
properties Credit business Securities investments Unallocated Total
ERRNRERURER RREH BHRE E L) &t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB'000 WRGIVEAVGON RMB'000 MGIVEAVGOOM RMB'000 WVEAVEOM RMB'000 WGYEAVGOM RMB'000 VLAV
ABRTR INSpl RN (N Sel ARRTT NSv ARRTT INES ARRTT LE S0
Depreciation e 3 3 10 11 - - 103 133 156 147
Additions to non-current FrgEERE
assets (Note) Wit - 12 - - - - 9,25 - 9,25 12
Other income EAHA - (154) - - - (1) (257)  (1,466) 27 60
Share of loss (proft) of HMi-FRELR
an associate BIE(ET) - - - - - - 85940 (738) 85,940 (739)
(Gain) loss on disposal of HERBRA
subsidiares (Mz)EE - = - = - = (46) 2003 (4) 2003
Impairment losses on other ~ E-ftylzA)
receivables AEEE - - - - - - 124 - 124 =
Impairment losses on amount e — RS 23]
due from an associate BN ERE - = - = - - 5619 - 5609 =
Impaiment losses on loanand ~ EMERFI 840
interest receivables AEER - - 1826 = - - - - 1,826 -
Finandil quarantee HHBER - - - - - - a8 -8 -
Note:  Additions to non-current assets excluded financial Wit . FERBEERAETERCHETE B
instruments, deposit paid for capital contribution, deposit EEMNETE - WEMEASRET
paid for acquisition of properties and deferred tax assets. & MIRERIAEE °
2018%5% BEAARRRAERAT 145
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8.

146

SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical information

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the
Group operated in two principal geographical areas — the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location of
the assets.

Revenue from
external customers

DEWEEE)

WESHE

HZE2018FE N2017F12 A31 8 IEF
B AEEEMEEZEHEL S HE
BRI EEEE)REE -
AEERBEINIRFEMENE R IR

BERES - AREESERBEE
MERREEMERES -

Non-current assets’

SMEBER RIS FREBRE"
2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT ARETT AREFTT
PRC H 69,903 - 119,884 288,140
Hong Kong N 10,188 15,499 12 1,341
80,091 15,499 119,896 289,481

Non-current assets excludes financial instruments, deposit
paid for capital contribution and deposits paid for acquisition
of properties.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customer of the corresponding years

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is
as follows:

¢ FRDEETBHEESRTE JXEM
XAHET 2 R Y T X A RT

FRERTEH

EEFEREEFMNREEAERR
WZE10% BT ¢

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT

Customer A — Construction of infrastructure & PA — EmbaSpmiEs

MEER

and development of properties

69,903 -
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. Htk A
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Bank interest income ERITRBHA 77 46
Dividend income % B - 1,528
Investment income LEWA - 1,419
Sundry income FIBRA 180 20
257 3,013
10.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FrfR#RGAE
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Current tax BIHEAR IR
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B EEFTISR 1,730 152
— Hong Kong profits tax —BENEH 1,937 1,725
3,667 1,877
Deferred tax (Note 39) EERIB(H15#39) (1,888) =
1,779 1,877

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

R2018%3 8218 » BB EERB
2017 BB (BET) (BT GEHIE R
([ZER]) 3| AMBEHIFEH R
€ o ZEEN20185E3 A28 HEE/K
AR TRBATIZER - RIEM
BHFIERESE  GEREEEE
/9 E 2,000,000 7T K & SR B bt | i 4%
8.25% WY A - M #8:82,000,000
75 TT B9 JE SR B v M) 45 42 16.5% A9 B K
B o TRHEMBHFIEHEGED
EEERERN R BEEIZ165%
BB — T AL
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10.

148

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong Kong
profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Company
and the PRC subsidiaries are 25% for both years.

The tax charges for the years can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as follows:

10.

FRr8MMA3X ()

Hit + BARFERE © 52,000,000 7T
RO {E AT FE SR TR ) 15 12.8.25% Hy B &
7 - MBiE2,000,0005 7T K L 5t &
FRBLE 1% 16.5% T RIBF o

HZE2017F12A31BILFE - FAEF
BRI AT ER 2 FA16.5%AT & -

BERFEARLMBCEMERE
([RERBRE]) RCEMESRHEE
BEAER] - A A B A9 BT B A B R R
MEFE 2 THEA25% °

RiFEERERT - FAMGHAHE
BRERIE R 2 BRI T

Loss before tax

Income tax at applicable tax rates
Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Tax effect on tax reduction

Income tax expense

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFTT

BXIRBIE IR (137,282) (27,714)

HRRE AR R ER TS (35,859) (5,738)

SRR AR A T

M2 52,179 10,440

DR A R TS5 2 (14,520) (3,782)
RERRIEE BRI E 118 991

TR R R TS R (139) (34)
FR{SREA 1,779 1,877
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11.  LOSS FOR THE YEAR

11. FRAEE

Loss for the year has
been arrived at after charging:

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief
executives’ remuneration (Note 12)
Other staff cost (excluding directors’
emoluments)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits
— Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes

Total staff costs

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Auditor’s remuneration (including the
fee for PRC subsidiaries)
— Audit service
— Non-audit service

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases

Donation

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

FAEIE
EFkR

% EERTEOH
ABEOBS (A1712)
HBE TRA(TREES

Bis)
—#% - TENRWEF
— RECIEFIFTBIER

B TR

WE - BELERBITE

ZEENI S (BT
MEARNER)
— I BUR s
— IR ERT

BELEHENRE
HERZK

e

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTTT
1,652 1,583
2,089 1,690
321 218
4,062 3,491
156 147

902 942

93 7

352 177

- 200
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12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’
emoluments

Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive's
remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the applicable Listing Rules and Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December #BE2018%12A310

ents

12.

fig
RMB'000
AERTR

EE BT FRITRARRES
FRR

() EE -EERIFETARNM
&®

FRAREER LMRRRE]
ROIKENES EZEREE
TTABBFIMT

Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
allowances  henefits schemes
B
FRRRM HEER #8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTT ARRTT AR¥TT

2018 LLEE

Executive directors BTEE
Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman) RAR(ZE) 100 258 18 376
Deng Xiao Gang (Note v) W@ i) 100 150 18 268
Huang Zhen Kun (Note iy) AR 16 pLiE] 25 284
Leng Xiao Rong (Note i) RINR (W) 50 9% 9 153
266 745 70 1,081

The executive directors' emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

EXARHTEEME RN RERAAARASEN R ERARANRS -

Non-executive directors EHTER

Li Yu Xiang (Note i) ZRE(Hitv) 15 - - 15

Yin Zong Chen FRE 30 - - 30

Ye Zhi E (Note i) ERE(W:ti) 15 - - 15
60 - - 60

The non-executive directors” emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

LA ESME RN RS REARAEZARANRT -
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12.  DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 12. B¥ -EX . IEFBRAEBRES

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) HEB(Z)
(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’ (a) EE EERITETASHEM
emoluments (Continued) &)

Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
allowances  benefits schemes

BiR

g FaRAk g L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AE®TR AE®TR AE®TR AE®TR

Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTEE

Chan Ming Sun Jonathan Rshg 120 - - 120
He Qing Jia (Note i) EEH ) 15 - - 15
Yu Guan Jian (Note j RER) 18 - - 18
Guo Lu Jin (Note i BEE(Htin) 61 - - 61
Gao Hong Hong (Note i B (W) 53 - - 53

267 - - 267
Subvtotal Dt 593 745 70 1408

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

EXARBUFATEEME R N RFREAATE SRR -

Supervisors EE

Fang Wei Ran HiER 10 74 8 92
Huang Yong Jing BXE 10 9 15 17
Wang Xing Ye THE 15 - - 15
Zhang Yun Feng RiEE 10 - - 10
Chen Jung Feng Bkl 10 - - 10
Sub-total it 55 166 23 244
Total 4] 648 M 923 1,652
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e BRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE
12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 12. EE EE -FETHASRES
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) HEB(Z)
(@) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’ () EE -E=ZRFTETASHM
emoluments (Continued) & (&)
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
Fees allowances  benefits schemes Total
SRINEN
ik FoREH SRR &5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTTL
For the year ended 31 December #32017512A310
2017 LR
Executive directors BiTES
Zhang Jing Ming (Chairman) KHEA 2/ 100 257 17 374
Deng Xiao Gang Gil=2 100 225 18 383
Huang Zhen Kun (Note iy) EHEB(Wiiti) 30 20 25 295
230 122 60 1,012
The executive directors' emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.
TR TEEMEBEXNHEAARARA S BN SR E R MR -
Non-executive directors FHTES
Li Yu Xiang (Note i) EEE(Witv) 30 - - 30
Yin Zong Chen FRE 30 - - 30
60 - - 60
The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.
AR TESME R AR S REA R AZEMREMR o
Independent non-executive directors B FH{TES
Chan Ming Sun Jonathan lsha 120 - - 120
He Qing Jia (Note i) B 30 = = 30
Yu Guan Jian (Note ) SEtE) 120 = = 120
270 2 : 270
Sub-total Vit 560 122 60 1,342

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as directors of the Company.

EXARBUFATEEME R A RFREAATESMIRRMR -
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FREMBHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE2018F12A31HILFE
12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 12. EE EE -FETHASRES
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued) ﬁﬁﬁ(,{%}
(@) Directors’, supervisors’ and chief executive’ () EE -E=ZRFTETASHM
emoluments (Continued) & (&)
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
Fees allowances benefits schemes Total
RINET)
we He kg HE 58 fek
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL AREFT AREFTL AREFTL
Supervisors Ex
Fang Wei Ran TER 10 72 8 90
Huang Yong Jing EXE 10 91 15 116
Wang Xing Ye THE 15 - - 15
Zhang Yun Feng KBl 10 - - 10
Chen Jung Feng Egi& 10 - - 10
Sub-total IVt 55 163 23 241
Total 8 615 835 83 1,583
There was no arrangement under which a director H = 20184 220174 12 A 31

or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017. No emoluments have
been paid to the directors and chief executives as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Notes:

i Retired on 11 February 2018

ii Appointed on 12 February 2018
iii Appointed on 28 June 2018

iv Resigned on 28 June 2018

v Resigned on 4 March 2019

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

HIEFE @ WEREENEE1T
XA B PUEE ok [B] 32 P EE 1 {a) B
SHLHE - HE2018F &2017
F1R2ANBLEFE  BERE
ERFEBITERA B S FEAIEN
& EEMAREE S INAL
EE B EE S E AR EBAL

KFH1E -

et -

i R2018%F2 A11BERE

i R2018F2 A 12 A EZR(T
if R20185F6 H28 B EZ(E

iv 201846 A28 AEHT
v R201963 A4 R BHT
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GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(b)

154

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group
during the year include three directors (2017: three
directors), details of whose emoluments are set out
in Note 12(a) above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining two (2017: two)
highest paid employees who are neither a director,
supervisors nor chief executive of the Company are
as follows:

12.

EE BT FRITRARRES
wmER(E)

(b)

Salaries, allowances and bonus
Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

¥ RBERIEA

RRBRIET IR

IEERRFHER

FRAEERERSFEER
H=FEE(2017F: =%%
) ARAGESHEEA LX
BisE12@) - &R - B TR %
(201745 : MB)IERQFE
£ EERRaTHRABNK
B EEMFMFBOT

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
638 692

15 27

653 719

Nil to RMB1,000,000

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the Directors, supervisors, deputy chief executive
officer or any of the two highest paid employees as
an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
Directors, supervisors, deputy chief executive officer
and the two highest paid employees has waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during each
of the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
Apart from the Directors, deputy chief executive
officer and supervisors, the Group has not classified
any other person as chief executives during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

=z AK%1,000,0007T

T T 5IEE -

Number of employees

BEAR

-:“:I 2017

2 2

#H E20184F 2017 12 A 31
BIEFE A&EEHERE
£ EE - FBITHEHETUEM
2 &= 5 W E B S B2 /E
BB IASRMAARER 2 88
B kBB EE (B - B E2018F &
201712 A31BIEEE - #
BMEE  EERETHREHEK
W= e B NEXR =
BEERME - HE2018F Kk
2017F12A31BLLEFE @ BE
£ EITBARHRESI - K
SETEGEMEMATIE
BEBITHRAE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

13.  LOSS PER SHARE 13.
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to

the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

BERER

ARAHEEANEEBRERBRIR
AT SIEAS -

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Loss for the year attributable to owners of KA FEA A EIEEE
the Company E51E (139,215) (32,832)
2017
‘000
T
Number of shares Bin® A
Weighted average number of ordinary FLEREARETm S/
shares for the purpose of basic earnings TR AR hnAE
per share T Er 1,469,376 1,469,376

No diluted loss per share for both 2018 and 2017 were
presented as there was no potential ordinary shares in issue
for both years.

14. DIVIDENDS 14.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during 2018, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period (2017: Nil).

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

20184 K201 7F 8 B E B 31T
B RUE2YZMEFEZS
fEEE RS -

BR
R2018F » EF G NREXTERIK
BEMKREFARR R ET@EAARE - M

B R B R DA SR IR 2 R B () AR
B(2017%F : ) -
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mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HZE2018F 1231 B ILFE

15.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% - BERER
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
improvement  equipment vehicles in progress Total
&l BER
HERE BOERG RE ERIE -]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL ARETT  ARETRL ARETT  ARETR
CosT [5%.3
At 1 January 2017 201751818 25 224 1,459 - 1,708
Additions NE - 12 - - 12
Disposal HE - (57) = = (57)
Exchange adjustments B 5 AR 2 2) = = 4)
At 31 December 2017 2017128318 23 177 1,459 - 1,659
Additions NE 134 118 - - 252
Acquired on acquisitions of BN B A R
subsidiaries (Note 35) BB (Wi#35) - = = 48,581 48,581
Exchange adjustments B H AR 1 1 - = 2
At 31 December 2018 ®2018%12A318 158 296 1,459 48,581 50,494
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZHIER
AND ACCUMULATED RitHE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2017 201751818 10 190 423 - 623
Provided for the year (Note) FEREBET) 5 17 131 = 153
Eliminated on disposals P ER S = (57) = = (57)
Exchange adjustments [EH AR ) 2) = = 3)
At 31 December 2017 2017124318 14 148 554 - 716
Provided for the year (Note) FERBET) 1 18 131 = 160
Exchange adjustments BN AR - 1 - - 1
At 31 December 2018 #2018%12A318 25 167 685 - 877
CARRYING VALUES EEE
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A318 133 129 774 48,581 49,617
At 31 December 2017 R2017%128318 9 29 905 - 943
Note: Included in depreciation provided for the year of et - FAFERERHAR4000T

approximately RMB4,000 (2017: RMB6,000) is capitalised
in contract costs (2017: properties under development)
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, as these furniture, fixtures and office
equipment and motor vehicles are used at the construction

site.
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(20174 : AR¥6,0007T) fE722018
F12A31BGEERBRRAKRFREL
FRAN(20174F : BRAME)BTER
£t BERERM  HEREEBEARS
BN EIIRSER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

15.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15. Y% BEREHEZ)
The above item of property, plant and equipment are A EWE  MEREBEHEBEEILNER
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates SER B EFREHRITE ¢
per annum:
HEEE RHHAS20%
Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the (R SED=-% )
lease term or 20% Gk EBER 8-20%
Furniture, fixtures and 8-20% PN
office equipment RE 8-20%
Motor vehicles 8-20%
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS FOR LAND USE RIGHTS 16. BN ERTHEREHTRSHE
LOCATED IN THE PRC s1e
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TIRE B EL ST
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBFT
Non-current asset IEMBNVE E 9,000 =
At 31 December 2018, the property lease payments for M20184E12 B318 « =@ AR T Hb
land use right held for own use are located in the PRC and ERENYMEBENRCRBE - &
the Group is in the process of obtaining the land use right EEFEE S RREDS -
certificates.
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mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

17. GOODWILL 17. @8
RMB’000
ARETIT
COST 5% 3
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 and R2017F1 818 ~ 2017F12A318 &
31 December 2018 2018%12A31H 45,779
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT et {E
At 1 January 2017 R2017%F1 418 20,000
Impairment loss recognised EHERRERE 24,459
At 31 December 2017 20175 12A31H 44,459
Impairment loss recognised BHERRERSE 1,320
At 31 December 2018 72018%E12H31H 45,779
CARRYING VALUES IRE{E
At 31 December 2018 %2018%12A31H -
At 31 December 2017 M2017F12A31H 1,320

Impairment test on goodwiill

o 8 i (B Y ek

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill with
indefinite useful lives set out above have been allocated
to two individual cash-generating units ("CGUs"),
comprising one subsidiary engaged in the construction of
infrastructure and development properties segment and
one subsidiary engaged in the credit business segment.
The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) allocated to these units are as follow:

SUBERIAAM S - a0 £ XAt e 4R
HERNOEHED 2 EEMIEER R
TELBEM((ReEERM]) 2%
REMRIEER MY EER D B —
B QB RREEEE D B —FE
B AR - BEREEGRRHRE
B DI EIA T UL E BN -

Construction of infrastructure and
development of properties
Zhongfang Chaozhou (“Unit A")

Credit business
Chung Hwa Finance Limited (“Unit B”)

EREREER R
MERERE
55 ([ AR ])

ERRS
FEEEFRAA
([BEEfiL |)

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
- 1,320

- 1,320

Annual Report 2018 Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

17.

20184

GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment test on goodwill (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of RMB1,320,000 (2017:
Nil) in relation to goodwill arising on acquisition of the Unit
B. The principal activity of the Unit B is provision of credit
business with the money lender licence in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recognised an impairment loss of RMB24,459,000 in
relation to goodwill arising on acquisition of the Unit A.
The principal activity of the Unit A is the land development
project in Chaozhou (the “Project”). The Project cover
three construction phases (i.e. phase |, phase Il and phase

I11).

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

Unit A

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the profitability
of Unit A was adversely affected due to the following
factors: (1) there are no acceptance of completion of the
constructed land during the year; (2) the trade receivables
are long outstanding and the settlement is slow; and (3)
country government has yet to be entered the procedures
of bidding of phase Il and phase Ill of the Project, the
timetable for construction of phase Il and phase Il of
the Project cannot be determined and the Group was
uncertain on the timing of acceptance schedule of the
remaining land area of 624 acres of the Project which is far
beyond the original timeframe.

Under these circumstances, the Directors decided to fully
impair the goodwill arose from the acquisition of Unit A
and impairment loss of approximately RMB24,459,000
has been recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.

EELORABRRROARAR

17.

[} {6V
AR ENRE)

HE2018F12A31BIEFE » A&EEH
LR U B B BE {1 E A O P A SRR (B S
BARY1,320,00070(20174F : ) ©
BEMIAF B A A ERRBR
BAERBEERER -

HE2017F12A31BILFE  AEH
FUREE AN E A R BRI E R 1B
ARBE24,459,0007T - ABBNHEB
BAERNEMNLmAZEE ([J/A)) -
HE S = EE T HET(BNE—H - 5
—HIRE=H) -

tRBReELBMAIRESENEE
REFERBERERBANT

AEf

HZE2017F12A31B IEFE - @R -
(MR FRITEZFECER TR
QEKERHAREERESERE
18 ROBEIRBTHAEAEE —H
M=HNRIZRERF  MELETES
THE BN =HRNERER B REET
HEBEEH T ibEiEe24 K 2
a2 RE(HRBRERER) - ABM
R EFIRE N R B TFIFE o

FHSEAXT EBRERBREK
BABNELEVEHERBEBBHAR
#524,459,000 T E REZ=2017F 12 A
31HIEFEEEARER °
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o)

Bt 3% SRR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

17.

18.

160

GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment test on goodwill (Continued)
Unit B

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
had determinated not to renew the money lender licence
in Hong Kong and scale down the credit business upon the
expiration of the money lender license on 12 September
2018. Under this circumstance, the Directors decided to
fully impair the goodwill arose from the acquisition of Unit
B and impairment loss of approximately RMB1,320,000
has been recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the recoverable
amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period, and adopting
the pre-tax discount rate of 10.22%. Unit B’s cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady
3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is
based on the unit's past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying
amount of Unit B to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of Unit B.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

17.

18.

[} {6V
AR ENRE)
BEfr

HZE2018F 12 8A31BIEFE » AR
ARAETEERBHNERR - K
2018F 9 R 12 A B R E M & 48R
EEER - EHBERT EFRTEH
I BEB B EE A Y P B R EE R AL E -
WREE20185F12 A31 B ILEEME
mAPRERBEREELHAR1,320,000

ﬁo

HE2017F12A31BIEFE » &8
Z AW ElSEIIREERAEERNSE -
ZTEHAEE B ERFHNTTG
EEEGNRESRE - ARBAIIE
R10.22% ° BEM N AFHEHIRS
= TERIH AR E R38R 3% HEET o
i R EIRBEAB T RGBS
o WEBTLERTEN T RS
RE - FREENTENEMEZRR
BEIBSRA R AT (B IETEE
EREFNR)ERE - ZEMatiREE
UHBRAREREEEAMIZERERN
TEEIGH - BEEEME @ U EEAR
RHER A IR fe B T2 BB BN
RIBRE 4B (B BB AL A AT IR Bl 4B 5E o

R—RBELTNER

Cost of investment AR
Share of post-acquisition (losses) profits

and other comprehensive income

BRI EEE

Impairment loss recognised

DIEWFER (B1R) 8 I
Hi 2w WA

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB‘000
AR®TT ARETIT
150,000 150,000
(85,161) 779
64,839 150,779
(3,561) (3,561)
61,278 147,218
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GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

18.  INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 18. MRN—RBREATIHER(Z)
Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting N5 B A R A HA R M B AL N BRI EETS
period are as follow: U

Proportion of Proportion of

Countryof  Principal place  ownership interest  voting rights held

Name of entity registration of business held by the Group by the Group  Principal activity
FREHFF FEERE
i {£10 BiEX FTEERBE AAEERLE RRELH FTERE
o I
Shishi Shen Guo Tou PRC PRC 30% 30% 30% 30% Operation of commercial

Commercial Property ey F complex
Company Limited (“Shishi EEGEAE

Shen Guo Tou")
ARABREAESXER

AR AHRER])
Summarised financial information of an associate —RHBEAFNHMBEEEEE
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s REEBE QTN BEERBEEST
associate is set out below. The summarised financial X o AT E R B 2 158 & A A
information below represents amounts shown in the R 15 7 7 B 7% 3l 25 22 B 4R L B0 B 75 3
associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance FKFIRHESEE ©
with HKFRSs.
The associate is accounted for using the equity method in Bt A R AR ARG A B IwE A
these consolidated financial statements. R o

Shishi Shen Guo Tou 2017
AlRER RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT

Current assets TRENEE 749 1,122
Non-current assets ERBEE 429,058 711,089
Current liabilities mRBAE (64,444) (54,772)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (161,100) (166,710)
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o)

Bt 3% SRR MY

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

18.

162

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 18. N—REBREATINES (&)
Summarised financial information of an associate —MEBENFNMESEEE2)
(Continued)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
#HE20185F HZE20176F
12A31H 12A31H
WL E WFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
Revenue g A 9,744 16,681
(Loss) profit for the year FR (8 ))& (286,466) 2,462
Other comprehensive income FAREM
for the year 2EA - =
Total comprehensive (expense) income FREE(FX)
for the year WA 4858 (286,466) 2,462
Dividends received from the associate FREHE N A]
during the year IWEEY AR B - -
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial Lt ERE B ek

information to the carrying amount of the interest in
an associate recognised in the consolidated financial

statements:

E B — F?H‘éﬁ%’&

Net assets of Shishi Shen Guo Tou
Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in Shishi Shen Guo Tou

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in Shishi Shen Guo Tou

ORRBERFEE
REENARRBERH
BRI

REBER A RRBE R
R at A BRE (E

e
S
m

&
Em O RREE S

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
204,263 490,729
30% 30%
61,278 147,218
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mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS it HERS

Available-for-sale investments comprise: A ERE B
2017
RMB’000
ARETTT

Unlisted investments classified as non-current assets: 93 AIEREEENIE FHKE ¢
— equity securities (Notes a and ¢) —RAFBS (Hiatakc) 48,390

- 20% equity interest of Hai Yue Real Estate — B EEHE20%[x

(as defined in Notes b and c) (BZ=RZH7EbLEC) 130,000
178,390

20184

As at 31 December 2017, the unlisted equity
investment represents the Group’s equity interest in
a PRC private limited company engaged in banking
business.

As at 31 December 2017, the unlisted equity
investment represents 20% equity interest in
Guangzhou Hai Yue Real Estate Development
Company Limited (“Hai Yue Real Estate”). Hai
Yue Real Estate is a company with limited liability
established under the laws of the PRC and is
principally engaged in developing, constructing,
selling, renting and managing of commercial
building, namely Dongshan Plaza (the "G Z
Property”) located in Guangzhou, the PRC. Hai
Yue Real Estate is not regarded as an associate
of the Group because the Group has no right to
appoint directors of Hai Yue Real Estate according
to the shareholders’ agreement.

They are measured at cost less accumulated
impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so fluctuated that the Directors are of the opinion
that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

EELARABRROARAE

MN20174128318 - JELMR
RIGE RN EE R — R B FA
ABRAB (HEEAIRERTT
BR7S ) KRR AE -

R20175128318 - JELTR
RIEEENSESEHEE
ERAR([BEEHE])20%
fiE - BEEME S —RIRIE
RESEBIGEMA S B RET
AR EEEREFENE (R
R BEMNEILES (&
M%) mER - 2% #
€ HERETEER - BER
HEEN IERIEASEE 2 B & A
A RRABRERRHEASE
Bt EENZTEEEMEZ
=3

BERRARER BE AR
ZitREN 2 RREREEAR
REEMGFHBERSHEK -
EERR AABEEARTE
fliat ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

20. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BoRRETARM2E AR
*IR

Unlisted investments: JELEMIRE

OR
— equity securities (Note a) —RAE S (M ita) 49,000
Notes: Mzt
(a) As at 31 December 2018, the unlisted equity investment (a) R2018F12A318 « FEEMARAER
represents the Group’s equity interest in a PRC private limited BRAEEN—HTELAFRAR
company engaged in banking business (the “Investee”). The ([EIREF | - HEBRIRMEIBITR
Directors have elected to designate this investment as at BIRKE - EFEERGHREET
FVTOCI as it is the Group's strategy to hold these investments RIEABEG AELMSEBAG
for long-term purposes. g REARAEENRBEEHLEFR
BRERIIRE
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Investee HZE2018F12A31HILEFE * &
imposed a 10% shareholding limit on minority investors. &8 BRE B IN10% AR AE R
To comply with the requirement, the Group disposed of #ll o RETHTE - ANEEDEERNH
its certain unlisted equity securities in the Investee at a BEFNETIELEMRAES - RE
consideration of RMB5,400,000, which was also the fair value A AR5 400,0007T ¢ IMAEE R H
as at the date of disposal. A cumulative gain on disposal of EEHNAREE - HENRA KR
RMB112,000 has been transferred to accumulated losses. AR¥112,0000E B ZE REHE1E -
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered (b) HZE2018F 12831 IEFE - &
into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third SEEBUF=FIVEERE
party to dispose of all of the unlisted equity interest in of Hai TEBEEHMERMERARK
Yue Real Estate with carrying amount of RMB130,000,000, 130,000,000 7T ) & &P 3E 1 ik i -
which had been carried at cost less impairment before P S B DR A AR R B DI BR o 45
the disposal. The balance has been reclassified to “Assets HREBMO BRI FEHENEE ]
classified as Held for Sales” (Note 21). (fisE21) »
As at 1 January 2018, the carrying amount of the Group's R2018F1A1RH  AEBREE
investment in in Hai Yue Real Estate amounted to FHENKRENEEMEALSARK
RMB130,000,000. Details of the investment in Hai Yue Real 130,000,0007T - BN /EE R E
Estate are disclosed in Note 19(b). K E R IE SR EE19(b)
21.  ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 21. SHBIBHEHENRE
During the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE2018F12A31ALLEE
On 12 September 2018, Shenzhen Tai He Chuang Jian M2018F9A12H « Bl HRE AR
Investment Development Company Limited* ;&I ZE4& BREBRREERETEAR(ERIN] - K
AR ERREMEE AT (the “Vendor I1”), being a AREEMBAR)EE T ([RAEM])
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the I HE W= ([ HEmE ) - &t
disposal agreement (the “Disposal Agreement 1”) with BHNEBGREREmE 7 1I1E &4t
the purchaser (the “Purchaser lll”), whereby the Purchaser RELE8EEHE20%RE - KE
Il has conditionally agreed to purchase and the Vendor Il A AR ¥ 133,000,000T ([ HH &5 515
has conditionally agreed to sell 20% equity interests of Hai 1) - BT EZHIBRRES BHIR 12
Yue Real Estate at the consideration of RMB133,000,000 BRAALE - SISO BERFEE
(the “Disposal 1"). The Disposal I, which is expected to ENEE  WNERSUBRAKES
be sold within twelve months after the reporting date, 275 - FEEFHEMRE IR FEBELE
has been classified as an asset classified as held for sale EREFE - R EERREERE -
and is presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The net proceeds of disposal are
expected to exceed the net carrying amount of the assets
and accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised.
Deposit of RMB20,000,000 had been received from the BB A IIEET £ A K#20,000,000
Purchaser Il and included in trade and other payables as JC - WET ARR20184F 12 531 HAEUK
at 31 December 2018. Details of the Disposal | has been IR R E A FE (TR » B E FIA
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 12 RIEFIEE N A AR A A 5220184
September 2018, 5 October 2018, 1 November 2018, 6 9H12H - 2018410 85H * 20184
December 2018, 28 December 2018 and the Company’s 1MA1H 201812 A6H * 20184
circular dated 18 January 2019. 12 A28 A NERARARBAIA2019
F1R18HMMEKL

The transaction was completed on 4 March 2019.

N

X HEN2019FE3 A4H K o
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21.  ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Continued) 21. SHEBESREMNSE
During the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE2017F12A31H L FEE
On 15 March 2016, Shenzhen Shen He Chuang Jian M2016E3 8158 « FYm L MalE
Investment Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen BEERERAT((EYxH] - ~Q
Shen He"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, FEEANB AT BEYE=F(H
entered into the disposal agreement with an independent BT THERZ Bt EABAIE
third party (the “"Buyer”), whereby the Buyer has HRIZEBE MR E KERE L
conditionally agreed to purchase and Shenzhen Shen He ERGRE2MEBRITHERN REA
has conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued share AR®44,000,0007T ([ HEEIEI]) -
capital of Cheng He Chuang Jian at the consideration of WA BB EEXR AT EIRE o
RMB44,000,000 (the “Disposal II”). The principal activity
of Cheng He Chuang Jian is investment holding.
The disposal was completed on 5 May 2017, on which HEZR2017FE5 ASHA TR » WA &l
date control of Cheng He Chuang Jian has passed to the EHEHEERZAERER A o
Buyer.
On 5 February 2018, Shenzhen Shen He entered into a 201842 A58  FIIh AR T H =T
supplementary agreement with the Buyer, in which both NETRE BLhEFERERESR
parties mutually agreed that the consideration reduced to BT FHE ARKA2,000,0007T °
RMB42,000,000.
The results of Cheng He Chuang Jian for the period from WA BIZN2017FE1 B1BE20174F5
1 January 2017 to 5 May 2017, which have been included BoHEEmMEE (B AGAEBRER
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other HiarEmKER)EH AT -
comprehensive income, were as follows:
Period from
1 January 2017
to 5 May 2017
20174
ER=ES
20174
5 A58 HifE
RMB'000
ARBETTT
Other operating expenses E i &2 (5)
Loss for the period H A g 18 (5)
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Cheng HEslENEE RN EERBER
He Chuang Jian at the date of disposal are disclosed in E{ERHFE36HEE -
Note 36.
201844 EBAARRROERAT 165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

22.  DEPOSIT PAID FOR CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION 22. RERIABTE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

Deposit paid for capital contribution to

Shenzhen Zhong De Logistics Company ([BEDE TS
Limited (“Zhong De Logistics”) s SHYET S

On 11 May 2017, Shenzhen Shenxi Investment &
Development Company Limited (“Shenzhen Shenxi”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the capital contribution agreement with Shenzhen
He Hui Huang Development Company Limited (“SHHH
Development”) and Shenzhen Newpont Investment
Group Limited (“SND Investment”), pursuant to which
Shenzhen Shenxi, being the new investor, agreed to make
capital contribution in the total sum of RMB155,000,000
(the “Capital Contribution”) to Zhong De Logistics, in
which RMB5,000,000 will be contributed to the registered
share capital while RMB150,000,000 will be contributed as
the capital reserve of Zhong De Logistics. Upon completion
of Capital Contribution, Shenzhen Shenxi will hold 20%
equity interest in Zhong De Logistics.

Zhong De Logistics is a company with limited liability
established under the laws of the PRC. Zhong De
Logistics is currently engaged in an integrated logistics
park development project (the “Logistics Project”). The
Logistics Project will be developed into an integrated and
multifunctional logistics park, providing comprehensive
range of integrated logistics and warehouse storage
facilities and service. The major asset of Zhong De Logistics
currently consists of the land use right of a parcel of land
located at Henggang Street, Longgang District, Shenzhen,
with a gross floor area of approximately 236,518.85
square meters. The construction work of the Logistics
Project has been started since 2013 and the construction is
expected to be completed before 31 December 2019. It is
expected that the logistics park will starts operation in June
2020.

Details of the Capital Contribution has been disclosed in
the Company’s announcement date 11 May 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, RMB150,000,000 (2017:
RMB150,000,000) represented the deposit paid to
Zhong De Logistics and the Capital Contribution has not
completed as the related registration procedures was in
progress. The Capital Contribution has not been completed
due to the fact that the existing shareholders of Zhong De
Logistics have pledged their equity interest to banks and
not yet released.

AR R ER AR

150,000 150,000

MR2017F5 8118 » FINHILERE
BRERARAD(RIEE ] - AXQAF2
BB AR BRINTEERERE
RAR(TRINESEBEER ) XOFRYIH
FIHBREEBARRA R ([ RINFHIBER
g DD E W - Bt - RYILE
(fEBFREE)ABMBRYTEE
4aza A R#155,000,0007T([E#E ) -
Hrh A R#5,000,0007T 5 AGEME
K AR 150,000,0007T 5 E AL
BREYRNERANTE o WEETK
% FYILEEFAE REYIR20% K&
7% o

FBEYREBBERBRAREKINAER
NAEl > REYRBIERESEEYR
BHEFZEEE ((YRER ) - MRE
BeRA— s BEZIENY
REE - REZ2ENEEYRRE R
BREZEMRG ZEVRETBEE
B REARNFEYITERE RS ETE
EEETE#)236,518.85F KK — 1B
THRTHERE - YREE TEE
M2013FFREN T - mIBHATE R 57
201912 A31HATE T - B iR
R8I 202056 A FIIA L E -

EEFRBERARAHEA201745
A11BMAERESEE -

2018512 A31H - AR#150,000,000
JC(20174 : AR ¥ 150,000,0007T ) ¥
SN TREDROTS - RBEREH
MR EEETS  BUEE W AR
Ko BRBEMTRHRBRED HE
LHRREEA TIRT B WM ARERED
FE BUEEHMARTK °
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23.  DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTIES 23. WEYEMIFFETE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETTT

Deposit paid for acquisition of WEEmI(ExE R MHTa)

Properties | (define in Note a) I HET € 140,000 140,000

Deposit paid for acquisition of WEEM I (FE & RMIEED)

Properties Il (define in Note b) s MET & 96,736 =
236,736 140,000

Notes: Mzt -

(a) On 15 November 2016, Beijing Shen Shang Investment & (a) MR2016511 A158 @ St EHIKRE
Consulting Company Limited* (“Beijing Shen Shang”), a BABRAR([ILREE] - A27)
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the 2EMBAR) B RFRAEEE
acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) BRAR(TALTEAPR |) T2 U %
with Beijing Zhong Tou Chuang Zhan Property Limited* (T EBimag ) - Bt - EPERE
(“Beijing Zhong Tou"), pursuant to which Beijing Zhong EHERIIREERERERAY
Tou agreed to sell, and Beijing Shen Shang agreed to acquire % o MERIREEIE2,800F 5 KIE
a commercial premise with the construction area of 2,800 BREMFE AT B ZE5000F 5 KE
square meters (with the right to use 5,000 square meters of BISZEAYE - AL RTIER
car parks at the basement level two, being part of Phase 3 BERXEEFERERGERZNIEIRS
of the ancillary facility project of Beijing International Zone RERSREEREREEE 38N —
Convention Center* to be constructed in Beijing Shunyi ([l  BeREAARK
District Tianzhu Airport Commercial Zone* (the “Properties 152,800,0007T ° B U FEY ZI805F
1”), at a cash consideration of RMB152,800,000. Details of BRAAG B A2016%11 A 158
the acquisition of the Properties | has been disclosed in the B AEFHKE
Company’s announcement date 15 November 2016.

At 31 December 2018, the balance of RMB 140,000,000 M2018F 12 A31H » EHARE
(2017: RMB140,000,000) represented a refundable deposit 140,000,000 7T (2017 F : AR #&
paid for the acquisition and the market value of the Properties 140,000,000 7T ) ¥& 5t W B8 B 4 AT iR
lis approximately RMB173,800,000. The acquisition is Bi®  MEINTEOARARE
expected to be completed on 31 December 2019. 173,800,000 7T ° T8 EA UL g = IE R
2019%F12 A31HTEMK °

(b) On 9 February 2018 and 17 August 2018, Beijing Shen Shang (b) 7201842 H9H k2018584178 -
Investment & Consulting Company Limited* (3k 5U&71% EREEREBAERAR(TRA
BiEHARAT) (the “Purchaser IV”), a wholly-owned V] ARRZENBAR)E=)" 5
subsidiary of the Company, and San He Jing Jiao (the “Vendor (BB T P2 RS e R
II1”) entered into the property acquisition agreement and Ttk (AR R ERREN]) - &
supplemental agreement (collectively referred to as the it BRNERGREZELEEmMEFIV
“Properties Acquisition Agreements Il”) pursuant to BIRMREWEYE([HEN]) - 3]
which the Vendor Ill have conditionally agreed to sell, and SR EAARE110,000,0007T °
the Purchaser IV has conditionally agreed to acquire, the
properties (the “Properties II”) at the cash consideration of
RMB110,000,000.

At 31 December 2018, RMB96,736,000 represented a MR2018F 12 A31H - AR K
refundable deposit paid for the acquisition. 96,736,000 7T 15 HEU AR ATZ (S B AT R
BiE o
@ English name for identification purpose only @ T AT E R
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24, PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24, BEhE
2017
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Properties under development which TR 128 B M7 AL it
are expected to be completed and AtRECRRRME
available for sale within 12 months BEUTEER:
comprise of the following:
Construction costs and expenditure SREERK A
capitalised BEARIEHE 198,796
The properties under development are all located in the BRPYEDICAPE -
PRC.
25. CONTRACT COSTS 25. BHEF
2018
RMB’000
AR®TT
Construction costs and expenditure capitalised AN E AR 136,921
Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2018 mainly 72018F 12 A31 BB E AR E KK
relate to land leveling cost, road facilities and electricity REZHETHTES - BREHERHE
supply, rainwater and wastewater facilities and land B KK REN L ERE R -

requisition cost.

Contract costs are recognised as part of cost of sales in AR ER A IE B Y BfE 8
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period REBRRTPERBH D HEEKR -
in which revenue from the related project is recognised. FARBERTRABNE MK A 5
The amount of capitalised costs recognised in profit or A AR63,651,0007T © F AN ES
loss during the year was RMB63,651,000. There was & R AN HA V) 4 B 2 B "B R AR
no impairment in relation to the opening balance of HIR(E °

capitalised costs or the costs capitalised during the year.
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26. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 26. BHEEERKRS
2017
RMB'000
AREETTT
Listed investment LigE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB LM ZBAFES 115
The fair values of the above listed securities are determined it FTRE S AR BEIIRRERD
based on quoted market bid prices available at the Stock RNEFZ PP EABERTE -
Exchange at the end of the reporting period.
In the current year, the Group disposed of all listed RAEE  AEBEHEMB LMK
equity securities with the consideration of approximately KEH - RELHARS5,0007T (8
RMB85,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$102,000). A EH4102,00087) - AR EEZE
loss from change in fair value of approximately RMB30,000 " &5 18 49 A R 30,000 7T (AB & 49
(equivalent to approximately HK$33,000) has been 33,0008 70 ) E A F E 0 B 2= Mg
recognised in profit or loss for the current year. R o
27. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 27. BRERERFE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TTR ARET T
Fixed-rate loan and interest receivables FELEERWERNFE 119,181 179,556
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (11,464) (199)
107,717 179,357
As at 31 December 2018, the loan receivables arising from M2018F 128318 » RIEEEKEL
credit business are unsecured, bear fixed interest at 8% MEKER AEER - ZEEFHE
(2017: 8%) per annum. 8% (20174 : 8%)FHE °
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27.

170

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27.

The maturity profile of these loan receivables from
customers (including interest receivables), net of
impairment losses recognised, at the end of reporting
period, analysed by the remaining periods to their
contracted maturity, is as follows:

BlRERRFIR(E)

RBEPRR  ZERREFPESR (B
YRS ) R B R ER IR A 4
FM AR THENRMIERET

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Repayable: R THIEIRINER
Within 3 months =RAA
Over 3 months but less than 1 year A= EAELR—F

As at 31 December 2018, accumulated impairment losses
included in the carrying amount of loan and interest
receivables is RMB11,464,000. Details of impairment
assessment are set out in Note 6.

The loan and interest receivables outstanding as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

6,606 39,476
101,111 139,881
107,717 179,357

M2018F12A318 » st AR E R &
FEREEENRTREBEAARE
11,464,0007T ° B B@RE GBS
B EE6 ©

M2018F 2017512 A31H HAEE
KPR E R FI B LABTTAHE -
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28. TRADE RECEIVABLES 28. [EIRIRZ:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETTT
Trade receivables FEW AR TR - 128,701
Less: Allowance for credit losses W EEEERE - -
- 128,701
The Group has not specified the credit period to its trade AEBUTEAEZESEFIEEREE
customer. The following is an aged analysis of trade B o PARE HACRIR IR B8 ez A HA (4
receivables net of allowance for credit losses presented AEEZWATER B )& EUER K
based on the repurchase agreement date at the end of (MBREEEEEE) NEREDTTIBR
the reporting period, which approximated the respective T
revenue recognition date:
2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER#®TT ARETTT
0-30 days 0230k - =
Over 1 year —FMF - 72,000
Over 2 years R £ - 56,701
- 128,701
All of the trade receivables were related to a sole customer B FE U BE Sr B B P SR e R SR e M
of construction of infrastructure and development of BRNy — L HR o HE—
properties segment. The Sole Customer is a stated-owned 2EA— AP EYEE ¥R
enterprise located in the PRC and has long-term business NEBREEALKEEZ - 252 A
relationship with the Group. The Directors consider that FEURBE 2= B AR K o
the trade receivables have low credit risk.
The trade receivable balance was fully settled during the FEURBE 444 B R EL 2018412 A 31
year ended 31 December 2018. B | EEREREEN -
29. DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 29. iT&REMEKSE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’OOO
AR®TT AREETTT
Other receivables (Note) E b EUGRIA (M 2E) 16,390 2,384
Deposits His- 55 52
16,445 2,436
Note:  Included in the other receivables, amount of approximately Bt : HEEWRREEEASHARE
RMB 15,000,000 represented a loan to Guangzhou Leyou 15,000,000 672019411 A7 HET
Internet Technology Co. Ltd* (BE)H %L B B ARARHY B R A R) SN TENE = BN G R AR
an independent third party that entered into on 7 November RERABNER - ERIRFNX
2019. The loan bear interest rate at 8% per annum with a 8%t B + AEN\EA - EXHEEE
term of eight months and is guaranteed jointly and severally B ERA R R RERHER -
by a competent guarantor.
*  For identification purpose only * (EREF
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30.(a)

30.(b)

31.

172

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances and cash are mainly denominated in
RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranged from
0.01% to 0.35% (2017: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.
The bank balances are deposited in creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

The amount represents advanced payments received from
the Sole Customer in respect of Project and restricted for
settlement of various costs under approval.

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables represented construction payables on
construction comprises construction costs and other
project-related expenses which are payable based on
project progress measured by the Group. The suppliers
have not specified the credit period granted to the Group.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the
end of the reporting period:

30.(a) RITRBRRAE

RITEB AR T EAARKE
W EREMR T BEHRT - ARET
EEEmAMAREMER - AW - RE
B AHCINEE R IRHDRCEE - B
[ENMMEEERE)  AREREBRE
RELLINEXRTORITHARERL
BEEAMEE -

RITERZRFFL MBI EN T
0.01% £0.35% (20174 : 0.01% =
0.35%)5TE F B o RITARFRIIHER
BEXNLEBEERITMIRTT -

30.(b) 32 PR ISR T HEER

31.

ZEREREERARE-FEPHR
B - WRRHIFESHET AT EMN %
REM -

FEfT AR

ENER BB ERFAX BRREE
AEkEMERBBRS - HREAK
BEtEMEEEE N - HEHLE
BT AEBEEEES -

PATS 1A ¥ o5 HA R B A R A R ik
DT

Within 90 days
Over 90 days

SOPNA
90K

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
85,324 110,825
85,324 110,825
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32.

33.

20184

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

A bank loan provided by Putian Licheng Branch of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (“ICBC") to
Shishi Shen Guo Tou is guaranteed by the Group. The
maximum amount guaranteed by the Group under the
financial guarantee contract is RMB49,787,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the bank
loan has been expired and ICBC has filed an arbitration
against Shishi Shen Guo Tou. Details of the arbitration
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 11 September 2018. The Directors have performed
impairment assessment and concluded that there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
of the financial guarantee contract. Accordingly, a loss
allowance of RMB49,787,000 has been recognised for
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group, which
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL (credit-
impaired).

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

32.

33.

MEGiREESR

B TERIT (I TRRT)BEBR
XTRARREREH‘RORTER
HASBEER AKBREVHE
REFMAERNESEE/ARE
49,787,0007T °

HZE2018F 12 A31 B IEFE - B1T
BREREH - ITERTEamERg
REME - BEEMREOFBIHRAE
ARHEIA2018F9A11HHAE °
EFDETREN S YREEER
R EMISERE R & X ERREE
EZ®me At ERAEEBETH
PHERERAERBEEHEARE
49,787,0007T * JHiEIEE R F BITEH
EEBHB(HEEERBENSETE -

AR

2018
RMB’000

AR®TR

Construction of infrastructure
and development of properties

Current Mk

There was no balance of contract liabilities as at 1 January
2018. As at 31 December 2018, the RMB84,299,000
represents the advance payments made by the Sole
Customer.

The Sole Customer made advance payments to the
Group while the acceptance and transfer procedure is still
ongoing. The advance payments result in contract liabilities
being recognised throughout the construction and
development period until the completion of the acceptance
and transfer procedure and the Sole Customer obtains
control of the completed infrastructure and property.

EELARABRROABRAE

E 3

84,299

84,299

R2018FE1A1BHYEALNAEGELE
£ o N2018F 12 A31H - AR
84,299,000 LI —&E P IEH A9 TE(T
SKIE ©

fE— B P ERKR N EFINEETTE
[AAKEELTAMNKIEA - BYFEE
FaNBERNEEAZRRERABEA
R BEERRRNEF TR EME—
BEPEGE R TEMRME R ENE
BRI o
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34.

35.

174

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 3. EMtEASRREHEH
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREETTT
Other payables and accruals (Note a) i ANE O
FEET &M (fita) 21,977 1,989
Payable for construction cost of office Vi /N = 5 N
JETRIA 12,920 —
Amounts due to former shareholders for
Guangdong Xinmao and Chaozhou R EREBXRAMNES
Jiafu (Note b) RTAR SR SRIB (HT7Eb) 17,467 =
52,364 1,989

Note: Hist -

(@) As at the date of acquisition of Guangdong Xinmao and (a) REEEREXRAMNES (EER
Chaozhou Jiafu (as defined in Note 35), there were a MEE35) B AR - B 16 BT fE BD
government grant of approximately to RMB10,962,000 with £ #) AR¥10,962,0007T © AR“S
conditions. Since the conditions has not been fulfilled, the EHREERK  BMZeBEEFHE
amount has been reclassified as other payable. ZHAMEK »

(b) The balances with former shareholders of Guangdong Xinmao (b) B ER 28 15 SR E = AT AR SR R A& B

and Chaozhou Jiafu are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
have no specific terms of repayment.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

On 16 November 2018, Shenzhen Tong He Chuangjian
Investment Development Company Limited* (3T [E
BREKREHRAMREMTAT), (the “Purchaser1”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
the share transfer agreement (the “Share Transfer
Agreement 1) with vendor (the “Vendor 1”), pursuant to
which Vendor | conditionally agreed to sell and Purchaser |
conditionally agreed to acquire the 90% equity interest of
Guangdong Xinmao Biotechnology Company Limited* (&
REXAVRIR AR AR) (“Guangdong Xinmao”) at a
total consideration of RMB8,800,000. Guangdong Xinmao
is engaged in the bioengineering technology research, sales
of plant fat, plant extracts, plant superfine powder and
solid beverages. Guangdong Xinmao was acquired so as
to continue the expansion of the Group’s construction of
infrastructure and development of properties operations.

35.

REIRAR RS R B E

BB FRMEATMREE

M2018%F11 168 » FHlmEA A
EREBRERETARNERI]
ARARZENBAR)EES (B
1) AT S A% (085 2 17 ([ BR 4 el 1 5l
1) Bt EABKERELEME
FIBEBRERERBERSXEMEHL
ERAE([REEE)0%ME &
KRB A ARES,800,0007T - EREZX
WEAY TR HEERER
MIEWIREY) - EYEBMAN - B
B NEERSXEEEERTAS
ERER IR R EERER
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35.

20184

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

On 16 November 2018, Shenzhen JuSheng Chuang
Jian Investment and Development Limited* (Z&IIITHE
IR EIRREABMR AT, (the “Purchaser 11"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the share
transfer agreement (the “Share Transfer Agreement
I1") with vendor (the “Vendor I1”), pursuant to which
Vendor Il conditionally agreed to sell and Purchaser Il
conditionally agreed to acquire the 90% equity interest of
Chaozhou Jiafu Packaging Materials Company Limited*
(BMNTEZEREMHARAXE) ("Chaozhou Jiafu”)
at a total consideration of RMB3,000,000. Chaozhou
Jiafu is engaged in sales of packaging materials, daily
necessities, plastic products, environmentally friendly
materials. Chaozhou Jiafu was acquired so as to continue
the expansion of the Group’s construction of infrastructure
and development of properties operations.

The above acquisition has been accounted for acquisition
of assets.

Consideration transferred

Cash Re

EELARABRROARAE

35.

EBUEIE L FIRERE(E)

R2018F 11 A16H @ FIIMBEKE
ZRAERAR(EAN] - XAFREE
MEAR)EES ([BEHN))ET LG
R ([ BRI mamiman ) - Bt
ESIEQRERELEME S IEGKY
EEWEBNTEEREEMBERA
Al ([BAMEE |)00%HE - BREA
AR#3,000,0007T  BHINER EBH
EHERREMA BRAAE - B
m o REME - WEBMNES S T
EREFRAEENER L EEER N E
RS o

A EWFE AR EEARR ©

Cil B

Guangdong Chaozhou
Xinmao Jiafu Total
RREE BMMES #aat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AR®TRE ARWTRT
8,800 3,000 11,800
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35. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF 35. EBKBMHBLATIKEEEZ)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date R RZOREBREAKIE
of acquisition are as follows: TE

Guangdong Chaozhou
Xinmao Jiafu Total
BERER MMES #at

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
AR®TRE AR®TRT ARWTRT

Prepaid lease payments BREERK 1,500 1,500 3,000
Construction in progress EEIR 18,651 29,930 48,581
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 14,807 25,203 40,010
Amounts due to former shareholders FESRIIR R I (7,371) (10,096) (17,467)
Amount due to the Purchaser | and the FERERIREAI
Purchaser Il IR (11,000) (22,200) (33,200)

Payable for construction cost of office i) N = N

O FE (S 3RI8 - (12,920) (12,920)
Other payables EAb R (6,787) (7,980) (14,767)
Fair value of net assets acquired Pk g & =R

~RBE 9,800 3,437 13,237
Non-controlling interests FEE AR RE RS (1,000) (437) (1,437)
Total consideration BB 8,800 3,000 11,800
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35. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF 35.

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Net cash inflow on acquisition of Guangdong Xinmao
and Chaozhou lJiafu

Cash consideration paid ENESRE
Less: Bank balance and cash acquired B TR IRTT A RS
MIR&

As of 31 December 2018, Guangdong Xinmao and
Chaozhou Jiafu has not commenced its business or
operation and is still in progress of construction of plant.

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36.

During the year ended 31 December 2018

On 23 July 2018, the Company entered into the
disposal agreement with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser V"), whereby the Purchaser V has conditionally
agreed to purchase and the Company has conditionally
agreed to sell the entire equity interests of Shenzhen Shen
Jian and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Xiaoma Chuang
Fu Interent Information Service Company Limited* to
the Purchaser V at a consideration of RMB130,000. The
disposal was completed on 17 September 2018.

*  for identification purpose only.

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

EBUEIE L FIRERE(E)

KERREXRAMEETHHR &R
ABH

Guangdong Chaozhou
Xinmao Jiafu Total
BRER MMEE st
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TE AR®TR AR®TT
(8,800) (3,000) (11,800)
14,807 25,203 40,010
6,007 22,203 28,210

MN20185 12 8310 » EREK KN
EENARBAEESREE - WIHE
BIERER o

HERBEAT
#$F2018F12A31HILEE

201878238 » "ARI BB E
=H BBV HEw® - Bt
BEAVERHERZEEmMARRHFIK
HHEFRILERE2EHNBARE
MNFEZELBBEERBEERA
AEHRETFEAV REAARE
130,0007T ° HEER2018F97178
TehK ©

* s -
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36.  DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEMEBLAR(E)
During the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued) HBE20185FE 128310 ILEE(E)
The results of the Disposal Group for the period from 1 Y &= E 201841 B 1A E201849
January 2018 to 17 September 2018, which have been A17 BRI (D A e B R
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and H{ﬁj%@ﬂ&ﬁ?&%&)éﬁ@]ﬁﬂ? : '

other comprehensive income, were as follows:

RMB’000
AR®TT
Other operating expenses Hibe X 2
Loss for the period HiEsiE 2
Consideration received =744/
RMB’000
AR®TT
Cash received BES 130
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control BEERGRHEERABRSH -
was lost:
RMB’000
AR®TT
Other receivables HAb YR 2
Bank balances and cash RITEEBR LIRS 82
Net assets disposed of FrtEEEFE 84
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEHB 2 EfkaR :
RMB’'000
AR®TT
Consideration received U E 130
Net assets disposed of T EEEFE (84)
Gain on disposal s s 46
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELER T LT REH
RMB’000
AR®TT
Cash consideration ReRE 130
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of ¥ : FTHERITEBRKRIES (82)
48
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

36. HEMEBARE)

During the year ended 31 December 2017 #H#E2017F12A31HILFE
(a) Disposal of Cheng He Chuang Jian (a) HERSEE
As disclosed in Note 21, on 5 May 2017, the Group SN2 1T EE - 20174
disposed of its subsidiary, Cheng He Chuang Jian 5H5H @ AEBHEHKB A
at a cash consideration of RMB42,000,000. The net A AaE BEREAAR
assets of Cheng He Chuang Jian as at the date of #:42,000,0007T ° & AIZR
disposal were as follows: HEABNEEFEHIINAT
Consideration received: SUHEE -
RMB'000
ARETTT
Cash received 2R & 42,000
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control EXLHEHENEEREE
was lost: DT
RMB'000
AREETTT
Available-for-sale investment AMEHERE 50,000
Bank balance and cash RITEBRERS 873
Other payable H 0 FE R (6,870)
Net assets disposed of FTHEEEFE 44,003
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—FNE L EETE -
RMB’'000
AREEFTT
Consideration received and receivable 2 R pE AR (B 42,000
Net assets disposed of I EEEFE (44,003)
Loss on disposal HEEE (2,003)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEERHE AT -
RMB'000
ARET T
Cash consideration HEREB 42,000
Less: Bank balance and cash disposed of W TR ERITERMIRS (873)
41,127
20185% EBAAREROGERAT 179
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36.

During the year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued)
(a) Disposal of Cheng He Chuang Jian (Continued)

The impact of Cheng He Chuang Jian on the
Group's result and cash flows is disclosed in Note
21.

(b) Disposal of Shenzhen National Asia Fund
Management Limited (“National Asia”)

On 13 October 2017, Shenzhen Shen He
entered into the disposal agreement with 8
independent third parties (the “Multiple Buyers”),
whereby Multiple Buyers have conditionally
agreed to purchase and Shenzhen Shen He has
conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued share
capital of National Asia at the consideration of
RMB9,867,000.

The disposal was completed on 17 October 2017,
on which date the control of National Asia was

passed to the Multiple Buyers.

The net assets of National Asia as at the date of

HERBLAT(EZ)
#FE2017FE12A31HILEE(E)
(a) HEHSEZEE)

BAARUAKREXENEAS
MENFERME21RE -

(b) HEFRNTERIZNEEEE
FRLE([EEZEMN])

R20174E10 8138 » FIE
MmMEsEBYFE=H([SHEE
KDL ERE - Bt %
EERE B EHRERE mE
IEMEBEHRELEER
DNEHBEBRITRA - REAR
AER#9,867,0007T °

HEDR2017F10 8178 5%
B &8 o BRI A HIHE
BEEZTZEER -

BREMNEERHANEES

disposal were as follows: BT :
Consideration: 15 :
RMB’000
AREETTT
Consideration RE 9,867

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control

EXLHEBBNEERERE

was lost: S -
RMB’000
AREFIT
Amount due from Shenzhen Shen He FEWCREYI L AN FR I8 9,860
Bank balance and cash IRITHBIIRE 7
Net assets disposed of I EEEFE 9,867
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEMEBLAR(Z)
During the year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued) HF2017F12831HILEE (&)
(b) Disposal of Shenzhen National Asia Fund (b) HEFINTERINESZE

Management Limited (“National Asia”)
(Continued)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:

FRAE(EEZEN]) (&)

HE—EHE L mZ Kas -

RMB'000

AREFTT

Consideration received and receivable B R ERAAE 9,867

Net assets disposed of FTHEEEFE (9,867)

Gain on disposal & Es =
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELRR D TAFE -

RMB'000

AREETTT

Cash consideration ReRE 7

Less: Bank balance and cash disposed of W TR ERITERMIRS (7)

Note:  Pursuant to the deed of settlement signed by
Shenzhen Shen He and Multiple Buyers on 16
October 2017, the consideration of RMB9,860,000 is
settled against with the amount due from Shenzhen

Shen He.

37. SHARE CAPITAL

Bfat - BRBEFILMEZEERR
201751016 AEENGEE
2% - KB AR¥9,860,000
7T B JE WORE I Sk A 508 45

7t

2018 2017
Number of Number of
shares shares Amount
Bin&E BhEE 25
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®EFT
Authorised, issued and EE BERTR
fully paid: B8R :
— Domestic shares of —FREEARK
RMB1 each 1THAER
At 1 January and MA1RR
31 December 12A31H 864,000,000 864,000 864,000,000 864,000
—H shares of RMB1 each ~-SREEARE
1T RIHAR
At 1 January and MA1ER
31 December 12A31H 605,376,000 605,376 605,376,000 605,376
Total oy 1,469,376,000 1,469,376 1,469,376,000 1,469,376
20185% BEAARRRAERAT 181
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38.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

38. FFiERRiESD

Share of net

assets of

subsidiaries

SHEMEAT

PRE

RMB’000

AR%TT

At 1 January 2017 R201751H18 85,267
Capital Reduction (Note) WA (H1aE) (59,718)
Share of other comprehensive expense SMEEMEEREZ (3,295)
Share of profit for the year DMEF R F 3,241
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 25,495
Adjustment for ECL assessment (Note 2) TEE BB R AR (M 22) (3,457)
As restated on 1 January 2018 1K2018%1 A1HE7 22,038
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) WHEKT B A R (#/5E35) 1,437
Share of other comprehensive income SMEEMEERA 1,568
Share of profit for the year DG F N A 154
At 31 December 2018 72018%12A31H 25,197

Note:  On 16 January 2017, Chung Hwa Finance has passed the
special resolution to approve the proposed reduction of its
share capital from HK$200,000,000 to HK$50,000,000 (the
“Capital Reduction”). The Capital Reduction was completed
on 21 February 2017. Upon completion of the Capital
Reduction, the issued share capital of Chung Hwa Finance has
been decreased to HK$50,000,000 while the number of issued
shares has remain unchanged. Chung Hwa Finance was
remained owned as to 55% by Kingma Overseas and 45% by
Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited, respectively. Details of
the Capital Reduction has been disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 23 January 2017.

it -

R2017F 18160 - FEEFEREB
BRRAZER  fLEEZBERAH
200,000,000 7T &l )& Z 50,000,000
(T ]) - BB R201742 A
21AFERK - WBRTEKE - FEEE
B ETIRAE 250,000,000/ 7T
MEBEITIROEB EIFTE - REF
ENapaeBEIRTECEER
BRABEES5% R45%HEZ - 5
RS - BERARQRBHA
2017F 1 H23BHRAE ©

182 Annual Report 2018 Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

39.

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

The following is the deferred tax asset recognised and the
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

RIERARE

AT REERBNVECHAEERER
REREMBEFENEEITN

ECL provision
ARER
BiRE MW

RMB’000
AR®TR

At 1 January 2017
Charge to profit or loss

At 31 December 2017 and 2018

In accordance with the PRC laws and regulations, tax losses
could be carried forward for five years to offset against
its future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets relating to
unutilised tax losses are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow such deferred tax assets to be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had estimated unused tax losses of approximately
RMB6,113,000 (2017: RMB5,641,000) and approximately
of HK$10,334,000 (2017: HK$10,334,000) available for
offset against future profits in the PRC and Hong Kong
respectively. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the unused tax losses due to the unpredictability
of future profits stream. The tax losses arising from the
PRC operations will expire in five years after the relevant
accounting year end. The tax losses arising from other
operations do not expire under current tax legislation in
the relevant tax jurisdiction.

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

R2017F1A18
ERCERE [

1,888

M2017E K%20185%12 A31H 1,888

RIBFREDERRER - BEEER &
EoFIKEE A EMERRFDE -
EHENABAHEBENELEHREE
B REEBE TR m A A fE
REELHBEEERSS AR H SR
22 o
RERERR - AL BRI+ E
REBHRI MG REHAR
HEED B ARE,113,000 7T
(20174 : AR#5,641,0007T) &4
10,334,000 7T (20174 : 10,334,000
BIT) © MR RBETERRICEFR » B
R AR AREEEERELEHREE
E- - hEEBRELENHEEEREH
S FEREEAFER EEMEBRE
ERBEEERESERER E#E
HIRITRE TS EM ©
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS 40.

The Group maintains various retirement schemes for
its employees. The retirement scheme for employees of
the PRC office is a mandatory central pension scheme
organised by the PRC government, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group. Contributions
made are based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries and charged as expenses when the employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contribution.
The employer contributions vest fully once they are made.
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in fund under the control of trustees. The Company
contributes 5% (2017: 5%) of relevant payroll costs,
capped at HK$1,500 (2017: HK$1,500) per month, to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, in which contribution is
matched by employees.

41. OPERATING LEASE 41.

The Group as lessee

BFEFIEER

AEEAHEBRIZTRMRAKEF
T8 AEERFRZHERAERE
8 28— T i B AR A 2 sa 1
RIGRRETE] - ZETEIC EEEASE
BvEEDRATMN - R TIEEER
BEFMMzEIHETE  YNEEIR
HSEAZZZEH-T T RISEFT
Ak - BEHF—BEL 2
HEEME AEEARBAEHNEE
BEEBFRUBESTE - AFEINEE
BFER—EAITAZHNES &
AEBEENFHBE - AARIHESR
HESRAHRESHEIEBERGT SR
AR5% (20174 : 5% ) {EL - LR
41,5008 7T (20174 : 1,500/87T) °

Minimum lease payments paid under FARBELEHEE T
operating leases during the year HIREENR

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are
negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms at two years
(2017: two years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

#EHR
FREEREEA
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
352 177

FRARBLEEASE L HTHHEREN
REEHERAAEEREETET
BEMANES BHOKETHEESER
B AERE (20174 : W) °

REEIR - A& ERE T HEEAL
A0 2 A T B B B B 2 5k 3R S {E e A
FAEAENT -

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_ZFERF
(BiEEEMT)
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2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT
425 194

273 153

698 347
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42.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. BEEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the RIREER » NEBBIUTERFRIE :

following capital commitments:

Capital expenditure contracted for but not A F3IEBEHE 4B

provided in the consolidated financial W ARRERE B SRR A

statements in respect of: BENERRE

(i) Capital contribution to Zhong De () MEREWREE
Logistics (Note 22) (K1a22)

(iiy Capital contribution to Guangzhou (i) mMEMNNSEIE
Xiaoma Chuang Fu Internet BERE SRR
Information Service Company BRARNEE
Limited

(iiiy Capital contribution to Shenzhen (iiiy ALFEIITRE 8IS
Shenhe Chuangli Investment and KEERBR AR
Development Company Limited A (Hat44(i)
(Note 44(iii))

(iv) Acquisition of Properties | (iv) WEEWZ

(Note 23(a)) (Ktat23(a))

(v) Acquisition of Properties Il (v) UEsHIZEI

(Note 23(b)) (HizE23(b))

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
5,000 5,000

- 50,000

200,000 200,000
12,800 12,800
13,264 =
231,064 267,800
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43.

(a)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017, the identified related party which has
transaction with the Group was as follows:

Name of the Company
fERB

Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited

PEEEEEARAT

Shishi Shen Guo Tou
yay ihNEiEs

Beijing Lichuang Future Technology Company
Limited
RN EIRRBHAR A F

During the year, the Group entered into the
following transaction with related party:

Name of related party

43. BREAREXS

H ZE20184F 220174 12 A 31
BIEFE  BAEEETRS
MEHERIBEERT

(a)

Relationships with the Group
HAREBE

A non-controlling interest of the Group

AREBFHERRR

An associate of the Group
REHHEE N )

A shareholder of the Group

Chung Hwa Finance Holdings Limited

TEEEREARAT ERE

The Directors are of the opinion that the above
transactions were negotiated on a normal
commercial terms and conditions that would be
available to third party.

*  For identification purpose only
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Management fee

A EEER
R A EE R BE TN
TR

RESER
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEmT EPN-EST
1,315 2,020

BEERR - LAXZIRE=
77 S Y IE 78 3 AR R M 16k
HHHERS -

* (EREF
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HZE2018F12A31HIEFE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 43.
(a) (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the balances of
related parties are as follows:

Name of related party

REAXH(E)

(a)

Amount due from an associate e — B & A A RIR
— Shishi Shen Guo Tou — ARRBIE
Amount due to a non-controlling JE — R IEIERR
interest IR R RIE
— Chung Hwa Finance Holdings —HEFELE
Limited BRAT]
Amount due to a shareholder FER — R AR FRIA
- Beijing Lichuang Future Technology ~ —d4b R HAIRREH
Company Limited BRATA

Note:  The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The key management comprises all the Directors
and supervisors, details of their remuneration are
disclosed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration of Directors and key executives
are determined by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

(b)

(%)

REEHR - BE T AR
T @

WESEE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT

1,676 4,365
(2,061) (1,952)
(1,540) =

Rrat - RHRREER  REIEAR

FREERARMOTH
ZEBEANEBREERESER

EE WEZHFMARRER
IREMIEMRMEEI2

EEZRT2THABNEMD
RERMEARRRTRRE B
MZESETE -
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HZE2018F 1231 B ILFE

44.  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

General information of subsidiaries

Particulars of the subsidiaries held by the Company at 31

December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/ ~ Class of
registration/  shares Paid-up/issued
Name of subsidiaries operation held registered capital
ERaL/
B/ FifsRi B#E/B1H
WELFEHR R BM ifEs
Zhongfang Chaozhou (Note v PRC /A RB200,000,000
hEAN (Wit v) hE TR ARE
200,000,000
Chaozhou Construction and PRC NA RMB1,000,000
Development Company Limited* % NER ARE
AR eR RS ARAA 1,000,0007C
Beijing Shen Shang PRC /A RMBI,000,000
1REE e AER ARE
1,000,000
Shenzhen Shen Wu Investment & -~ PRC /A RMB1,000,000
Development Company Limited* 6 TR ARE
MITLREERARAR 1,000,000
Shenzhen Shen He PRC NA RMB1,000,000
gl e R AEE
1,000,000
Shenzhen Shen Shang Chuang PRC VA RMB1,000,000
Jian Investment Development il ARE
Company Limited 1,000,0007
MImiHeRR R RRRAT
Shenzhen Juxi Chuangjian PRC N/A RMB1,000,000
Investment and Development & NER ARE
Company Limited Y2 B¢ 1,000,000
BRAZRRRAA
Shenzhen Shenxi Chuangjian PRC NA RMB1,000,000
Investment and Development i TER ARE
Company Limited 1,000,007

R BERRARRARLA

188

44,

B2 EIREAR
ARNE L F— R R

M2018F 2017512 A31 B AR Al
BHKIBARMFAERINT

Proportion of
Proportion ownership interest voting power held Principal
held by the Company by the Company  activities
FATRE
EINGEEE L L L) REERE  EERE
Directly Indirectly
1}
2017m 2017m 07
100%  100% - - 100%  100% Property
development
nEER
- - 100% 100%  100% 100%  Not commence
busingss
ERex
100%  100% - - 100%  100% Investment holding
REAR
100%  100% - - 100%  100% Inactive
ERek
100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Inactive
ghex
- - 100%  100%  100%  100% lnactive
gk
- - 100%  100%  100%  100% lnactive
ghez
- - 100%  100%  100%  100% Investment holding
RER
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HZE2018F 1231 B ILFE

44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/  Class of
registration/  shares Paid-up/issued
Narme of subsidiaries operation held registered capital
#Mad/
B/ FifsRi B#E/BfH
HELFER R B ifEx
Shenzhen Shenhe Chuangi PRC NA RMB200,000,000
Ivestment and Development TR AEE
Company Limited (Wote i) 200,000,0007
MR e RESRARAR
(W)
Shenzhen Zhonghe PRC A RIB1,000,000
MRa e AER ARE
1,000,000
Shenzhen Shenlian Investment PRC NA RMB1,000,000
Development Company Limited el AR ARH
(Note i) 1,000,000
MITRREERARAT
(W)
Shenzhen Tonghe* PRC /A RMB10,000,000
plEe e Bl ARE
10,000,00070
Tai He Chuang Jian PRC NA RMB1,000,000
FaflE i iy ki ARH
1,000,000
Xiaoma Chuang Fu (Note i) PRC NA RIB50,000,000
NEEIE (Widi) E iR ARE
50,000,007
Shenzhen Ju Sheng Chuang in -~ PRC N/A RMB1,000,000
Investment and Development & NER ARE
Limitec* 1,000,000

HITERHAAERERDA

2018 EBHEARREROGERAEF

44, MEBATHSE)

FRMEARN—REH(E)

Proportion of
Proportion ownership interest voting power held
held by the Company by the Company

KLRRE
FLRRRARRRGLA RRRLA
Directly Indirectly

B i
01 m 017 m 017

Principal
activities

ERRE

100%  100% - - 100%  100%

- - 100%  100%  100%  100%

- 100% - = - 100%

- - 100%  100%  100%  100%

- - 100%  100%  100%  100%

- = - 100% - 100%

- - 100%  100%  100%  100%

Inactive
FE 3

Investment
holding
e

Investment
management

and consulting

REEEEN

Investment
holding
R

Investment
holding
T

Internet
technology
development

L

Investment

holding
REfR
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44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 44. MEBLATHEWS(Z)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued) EENBATIN—RBEIE (&)
Place of
incorporation/  Class of Proportion of
registration/  shares Paid-up/issued Proportion ownership interest voting power held Principal
Name of subsidiaries operation ~ held registered capital held by the Company by the Company  activities
et/
B/ i v B#E/BfH KLRRE
KBLRER ERE W if#s FLRRRARRRGLA RRELA  EERE
Directly Indirectly
Ef 3
o I B
Guangzhou Xinmao (Note vj PRC N/A RMBS 800,000 - - 90% - 90% - Not commence
ERERMin) hE i AEE business
8,800,0007C EEiz
Chaozhou Jiafu (Note ) PRC N/A RMB3,000,000 - - 90% - 90% - Not commence
ANEE W) hE i AEE business
3,000,0007C EEiz
Kingma Overseas HK Ordinary U5$20,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100%  Securities
255 Bk Eak 20,0057 investment
E5RE
Chung Hwa Finance HK Ordinary HK$50,000,000 - - 55% 55% 55% 100%  Credit husiness
hEEE B LRk 50,000,007 EEXK
Sichuang Overseas HK Ordinary U5$20,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100%  Securities
BEE Bk Eak 20,0005 investment
E5RE
Kingma International Ltd. BVI Ordinary US$1 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Notcommence
SEERERLA ABROES  ERR (B3 business
ggex
Sichuang International Ltd. HK Ordinary USy1 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Notcommence
BeERERAA 3 Eak (B3 business
ggex
Modern Key International Limited ~ BVI Ordinary US$1,000 - - 100%  100%  100%  100% Notcommence
REFRERLA ABRAEE  ERR 1,000%7 business
ggex
World Ease Investment Limited HK Ordinary HK$1,000 - - 100% - 100% - Not commence
(Note j &% Lk 100037 business
EfREARA gz
W)
@ English name for identification purpose only e RN R BBEHRER
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GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

General information of subsidiaries (Continued)

All of the above subsidiaries are limited company which
the places of operations are the same as their places of
incorporation.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the reporting period or at any
time during the year.

Note:

(vi)

20184

It was newly incorporated during the year ended 31
December 2018.

The registered capital has not been paid up at 31 December
2017.

The registered capital has not been paid up at 31 December
2018.

It was disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2018.
Details are disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 26 October 2018, due to the implementation of the
Group's overall development strategy, the Board approved
the resolution regarding the reduction of the registered
capital of Zhongfang Chaozhou, from RMB400,000,000 to
RMB200,000,000.

It was acquired during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Details are disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EELARABRROARAE

44,

BB FRER(E)

FRMEARN—REH(E)

B LB AR RAERAR B
ERIMEL G A R AR R

BMEMBRRETEMNRNREHRK
REREREREARERENERES o

Bt

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

REZE2018F12 A31 B I FE#Ht
kL -

R2017512 8318 @ EMELRHE K
BUR -

MR20185F 12 A31H » MELRHE K
BUR -

HEEREE2018F12A31HIEFE
B - FBRBEBENGE M BRI
36 °

MR2018F 10 A26 8 © AR B g AN
SEMNBREERRE  EBSHE
EEBFREHMNOFMEARSRA
R ¥ 400,000,000 7T Bl & = A R #&
200,000,000 CHIREEZE ©

HEEREZE2018F12A318LEFE

IefE - BEEFBEERGRE PIEIREW
FE35 °
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GEMBEHRREE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 44. MEBLATHEWS(Z)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEHEXFERBIESHIFERIHEL
material non-controlling interests Gl
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned TR AN EBEES S A AR
subsidiary of the Group that have material non-controlling B3R BB A TS
interests:
Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interest and
and principal voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
EMEIBER FARRRRENRAR
HELFER TRERME HERERMLA AREFIRMGHEN RitFERES

2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTR QUM RV ARETT NSRS

Chung Hwa Finance HK 45% 45% 154 3241 23,760 25,495
B &
Guangzhou Xinmao PRC 10% - - - 1,000 -
REER e
Chaozhou Jiafu PRC 10% - - - 437 -
ANEER e

154 3,241 25197 25,495
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44,

20184

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intra-group eliminations.

Chung Hwa Finance Limited

44, MEBATHSE)

HREXFREREGHFZEMEL

FIR9EE (2)

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests of Chung Hwa

Finance (Note)

B A5 B G B K S 1 AR 2R O B
BRBIMMBERBEESITX » A
THHBER MR EREARER LR

RIS EE ©
REETERLF
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETIT
MENEE 383,181 369,471
IEREEE 11 21
REEE (319,195) (301,640)
ERBALE - =
RAREE AE(h iR
40,237 42,357
RECE IR R
(H1az) 23,760 25,495

Note:  As per the capital contribution agreement, non-controlling HBist -
interest will not share the pre-acquisition reserve of
approximately RMB11,198,000. No gain or loss on a deemed

disposal have been recognised in equity.

EELARABRROARAE

B EFE B - IEERES ST E S
16 W B A1 18 49 A R %6 11,198,000
TC o R AT ERNBRE AR

Y
e
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HE2018F12A318ILFE

44. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 44. MEBLATHEWS(Z)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have REEXERBRESNIIEZEHEL
material non-controlling interests (Continued) TS (&)
Chung Hwa Finance Limited (Continued) REESERAE(E)
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETTT
Revenue WA 10,188 15,499
Expenses I (9,846) (8,296)
Profit for the year F R A 342 7,203
Profit attributable to owners of RATHEB ANEGRT]
the Company 188 3,962
Profit attributable to the non-controlling REEE IR
interests of Chung Hwa Finance FEEE R 154 3,241
Profit for the year FREF 342 7,203
Other comprehensive income (expense) RAEIER AEGEAL
attributable to owners of the Company 2EBRA(FZ) 1,915 (4,026)
Other comprehensive income (expense) REEEERAR
attributable to the non-controlling IR AE R RS
interests of Chung Hwa Finance Limited HEi 2w A (FAx) 1,568 (3,295)
Other comprehensive income (expense) for FANHAMBEERA
the year (A%) 3,483 (7,321)
Total comprehensive income (expense) RATRHEE AEEERE
attributable to owners of the Company WA (FAZ)4a%a 2,103 (64)
Total comprehensive income (expense) REEE IR
attributable to the non-controlling FER2mEmWA ()
interests of Chung Hwa Finance 1aEE 1,722 (54)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FAZEBA(FAXR)
for the year #aEE 3,825 (118)
2018 2017
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREETTT
Net cash inflow from operating activities LESEENIR S TMA
st 71,872 12,694
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEEEIR SR F5E (77,583) (2,356)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing BEEEIR S
activities A ) F 8 1,609 (7,046)
Net cash (outflow) inflow Re&ORE) mAFE (4,102) 3,292
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HE2018F12A318ILFE

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 45, FATMERRE

COMPANY
2018 2017
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR#®TT ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B R R E 443,698 644,688
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 31 -
443,729 644,688
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A YNGR 436,200 688,483
Other receivables H b el sk 15,061 1,464
Bank balances and cash IRTTHESBRNIR S 142 429
451,403 690,376
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENE R
Other payables and accruals Hib R R ETE B 32,065 2,149
Amount due to a subsidiary B — B A R FIA 378,310 329,939
Tax liabilities HRIBEE 4,799 4,851
415,174 336,939
NET CURRENT ASSETS S ERE 36,229 353,437
NET ASSETS BESHE 479,958 998,125
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR R
Share capital R 1,469,376 1,469,376
Reserves s (@) (989,418) (471,251)
TOTAL EQUITY HiEs 479,958 998,125
The Company’s statement of financial position was RARWBBRAK  KEEFERN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 29 20193 A29 R iz IR HEE L - W
March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: BTIESREEE :
Zhang Jing Ming Leng Xiao Rong
REEA BIE
Director Director
EE EBFE
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mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

45, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Reserves

45. ELATFIMBRAERZ)

(a (=1
Statutory
Share surplus
premium reserve
EERR
BinidfR [ES
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREBTT
(Note i) (Note i)

(Ktati) (Htatii)

Accumulated
losses Total
REtBiR #at
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARKETIE ARETT

At 1 January 2017 201761818
Profit for the year, representing FREF - RRFAZE
total comprehensive income NGt

for the year

At 31 December 2017 and 20176128318 &
1 January 2018 20181 A1H

Loss for the year, representing FAFBE  RRFNZE
total comprehensive expense MR

for the year

At 31 December 2018 72018% 128310
Notes:
(i) Share premium

Share premium comprises surplus between the
value of net assets acquired and the nominal
value of domestic shares issued as a result of the
incorporation of the Company as a joint stock limited
company and the share premium from the issuance
of H-shares.

(i) Statutory surplus reserve

The Company is required to set aside 10% of its
profit after taxation prepared in accordance with
the PRC accounting standards regulations to the
statutory surplus reserve until the balance reaches
50% of their respective paid up capital or registered
capital, where further appropriation will be at the
Directors’ recommendation. Such reserve can be
used to reduce any losses incurred or to increase the
capital.

320,476 103,215 (904,729) (481,038)
_ - 9,787 9,787
320,476 103,215 (894,942) (471,251)
= = (518,167) (518,167)
320,476 103,215  (1,413,109) (989,418)
Hisz -

(i) BEE

(ii)

s BEeE KB FEE
BEMARRERRNGH
PRARIEMAZMEITHA
BEREEZHENEER AR
BEATHRRPREE AR R4 ME -

EERBAED

RIEFESERER - &R
ARIBERF BN PR
10%EREAERBATES -
HIABRENHESADH
BRI EARES0%
E—FTHBEESBESE
o AAFES A LBERD
B A ) BB s g Ak
z]go
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46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

20184

Acquisition of additional shares of Chaozhou
Rural Credit Cooperative*

On 3 January 2019 and 24 January 2019,
Zhongfang Chaozhou acquired 34,420,335
shares of Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative*
in aggregate held by independent third parties
with the total consideration of approximately
RMB63,931,000.

Upon completion of the acquisition, Zhongfang
Chaozhou will hold 59,720,335 shares of
Chaozhou Rural Credit Cooperative*. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 24
January 2019 and 28 January 2019, respectively for
details.

Adjustment to the model of transaction
regarding the capital contribution in Zhong De
Logistics

On 12 March 2019, Shenzhen Shenxi, SNP
Investment, SHHH Development, Zhong De
Logistics, Lu Hancai and Ma Xinan (both being
independent third parties) entered into the
supplemental agreement to adjust the capital
contribution in Zhong De Logistics where the
transaction to acquire 20% equity interest in Zhong
De Logistics through capital increase by Shenzhen
Shenxi was changed to acquisition of 33.33%
equity interest in SHHH Development by Shenzhen
Shenxi from Lu Hancai and Ma Xinan respectively.

The transaction is deemed completed upon
completion of the registration procedures with
the industry and commerce bureau. Shenzhen
Shenxi will hold 66.66% equity interest in SHHH
Development in aggregate and become the
controlling shareholder of SHHH Development and
indirectly hold 20% equity interest in Zhong De
Logistics.

EELORABRRROARAR

46.

REMKRESH

(a) WKEIAMNTERFSEHASER
wtE SRR IR
M201941 A3H K&201941 H

(b)

248 - FEBMEBILIE =7
W g RN T [ R AT A 1EHE
A 434,420,335 IX 17 - 42
REH A ANR63,931,0007T °

REKUEER - BN S
BEMTERNEHAA EET
59,720,335 0 - B RAFFIE
HRAAFIBED BIA20195F
1H248 K%2019%1 828 B

At -

BEPREIRERAXHBAR
B

MR2019F3 8128 » FIIik
B ORYIFHIRE - RYIEE
BER - BEMR - BUFE=
HEZEARBYE=ZTEEmM
RER T ARREYR
AEFIERS  BRYILERE
B S R 20% A i &9 32
SERAEFIELES B R EZE
A REEERERIEGIEEE
E33.33% % -

TR FYEBEEEN T e
BEELE  RRARSTK @ &
L EEETHERIEEE
%R 66.66% 1 - KAFIIE
1R R AR AR - BRE
BHREYR20%M 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A318ILFE

o)

46. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued) 46. HREHEKEEHEZ)
(o) Proposed disposal of Shen Wu Investment and (0) BEMHETHBREIREREL
its subsidiaries =l
On 26 March 2019, the Company and an 201943 H26H » AR —j;ﬁg
Independent Third Party (the “Transferee”) entered By E=H((2EN )&
into a non-legally binding letter of intent regarding TEERYNERAN E’;Hﬂggqyﬁﬁf
share acquisition (the “Letter of Intent”). FEEGREEDE
Pursuant to the Letter of Intent, the Transferee BEZIRE  SEHEBED
conditionally acquired 100% equity interest in Shen Ui B Sk 4 35 8 100% PR 4 & H
Wu Investment and its four subsidiaries, namely VRSB A T (Eld %;i@h . EFI
Kingma Overseas, Chung Hwa Finance, Kingma EHEZE  2EBRBREAERA
International Ltd. and Modern Key subject to HERE) - \’g,,\;_?%%{\m
certain conditions. In the event that both parties fail o (MEFNBSAZEEIT6RE
to reach any material agreement within six months AARKReEKREE % - Al
from the date of the Letter of Intent, the Letter of BEEQHRILE o
Intent shall terminate automatically.
(d)  Acquisition of a property in Hebei Province d) UeESTieaE
On 18 March 2019, San He Jing Jiao and Beijing R20194F3H18H @ = A 1%
Shen Shang entered into the compensation B BRI REERT - 4
agreement pursuant to which it is agreed that San T A RN 1A B E
He Jing Jiao shall additional deliver the rights to use KL ARV B HR IR ) ¥ 1
one car parking space as compensation for delay in HEHEEEZENMHE - RARE
processing the real property ownership certificate. BH W ETREEREE A
As at the date of this report, the application of real IR > FEEHA 20194 A=
property ownership certificate is in progress and is X o
expected to complete in April 2019.
47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 47, BRI EHELAEHYHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TR AEBEREEBELAE
arising from financing activities, including both cash HNEEH(BFERERIFERELEE)F
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing 5 AmE EfELaEABEKA
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future BERAEEZEBESTERSEA
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated MEEHAEBRSRENRSRE -
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
Amount due to
a shareholder
FEft— BB R
]
RMB'000
AR®TR
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 20171 H1H K%2017412H318 -
Financing cash flows BERERE 1,540
At 31 December 2018 7201812 H31H 1,540
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Financial Summary

MBRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Revenue

Sales taxes on turnover

Cost of sales

Other income

Gain on disposal of assets
and liabilities classified
as held for sale

Impairment losses on goodwill

Impairment losses recognised
in respect of interest
in an associate

Impairment losses on amount due
from an associate

Impairment losses on other
receivables

Impairment losses on loan and
interest receivables

Finance cost

Exchange gain (loss)

Loss on disposal of convertible
instruments designed as
financial asset as fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value change on convertible
instruments designed as
financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

Loss from charge in fair value of
held-for-trading investments

Loss from change in fair value of
fixed assets through profit or loss

Gain (Loss) on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss on disposal of
held-for trading investments
Financial guarantee
Administrative and other
operating expenses
Share of (loss) profit of an associate

(Loss) Profit before tax
Income tax expenses

(Loss) Profit for the year
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) Profit attributable to
owners of the Company

20184

WA

EXREHER

HERAR

HiA

HEDBERREREL
BERARI RS

BEZHERR

L — e A Al
R RERR

Felk— k& A RIURR
HERR
HitBRHERERR

LB B S AR E
B

HTRA

I 5 s (B 1R)

HERTE ARDAEE
STABGMABEE
MAAR TAMEE

HERRARBERA
BERNFTBEER
ARTENRR
(BEZ

FEEEREZ
RABEEFHNER

sTARSHEEEERS
EEZSNER

8 A A ket (85 18)

HERHEREREN
B

MR

TRRABEERS

JEfh— B AR
(BR)&H

FRIAAT (1R )R 7
FEHRX

FAER)&F
FRERHE

e NCE 2N
(B8R &%

EELARABRROARAE

FeEE%K
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NSl ARETT AR®ETT  ARETT ARETRH
80,091 15,499 108,370 311,400 86,248
- = (468) (765) (431)
(64,966) (2,066) (78,707) (293,945) (80,932)
257 3,013 538 2,077 2,042
- = = = 45,677
(1,320) (24,459) (20,000) = =
- = (3,561) = =
(5,679) = - _ _
(124) = = = =
(1,826) = = = =
- = (51) (531) =
1,532 (9,861) 16,898 11,578 =
- = (1,141) = =
- = = 1,084 =
- 42) (30) (7,917) =
(30) = = = =
46 (2,003) = = 3
- = (993) (9,377) (561)
(49,787) = = = =
(9,536) (8,533) (8,864) (9,880) (6,830)
(85,940) 738 4 _ _
(137,282) (27,714) 12,032 3,724 45216
(1,779) (1,877) (5,881) (6,497) (1,155)
(139,061) (29,591) 6,151 (2,773) 44,061
154 3,241 3,802 = =
(139,215) (32,832) 2,349 2,773) 44,061
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Financial Summary

MBRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets

Current assets
Current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Capital and reserves:
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable

to owners of

the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

200

FRBEE

MBEE
nBAE

B EEFE

BAL -
B
E

ARBEAA
Bt

EZE e 5o

gD

ReMBkAE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IN-L sl ARETT ARBETT AR®TT ARETT
557,519 617,871 516,734 334,997 127,209
629,473 524,968 755,668 588,349 642,273
(297,059)  (116,228) (151,734) (134,624) (181,551)
332,414 408,740 603,934 453,725 460,722
889,933 1,026,611 1,120,668 788,722 587,931
1,469,376 1,469,376 1,469,376 1,224,480 1,020,400
(604,640)  (468,260) (433,975) (435,758) (432,469)
864,736 1,001,116 1,035,401 788,722 587,931
25,197 25,495 85,267 = =
889,933 1,026,611 1,120,668 788,722 587,931
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Glossary

ERAAR

In this report (other than the Financial Statements), unless the RAFRE(MBERERBEIN)  BXERBA
context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have 5 A TAZAEUTEE -

the following respective meanings.

“2017 Corresponding Period”

(20174 RIER]

“2018 Financial Year”

[2018F B FE |

“Articles”
[AEIEE]

“Beijing Hua Xia Ding”
[EREES ]

“Beijing Lichuang Future”

e N BIARK
“Beijing Shen Shang”
[Er0E R |

“Beijing Zhong Tou”
Blatikd

“Board”

[E%g]

“Chaozhou Jiafu”

[ E=

“Chaozhou Jinshan”

[ 2 1 |

“Chen Sui Industrial”
[RIEE

“Cheng He Chuang Jian”
[ &8I ]

“Chung Hwa Finance”

[ g

“Company”

PN

“Director(s)”

==

for the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE2017F1283181EFE

for the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F 128318 IEFE

The Articles of Association of the Company
NA R EIRZMAA

Beijing Hua Xia Ding Technology Company Limited*
EREERBZARAF

Beijing Lichuang Future Technology Company Limited*
ERDEIRRBEBRAF

Beijing Shen Shang Investment & Consulting Company Limited*, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company
EREEREHRAERAR AR EERBAR

Beijing Zhong Tou Chuang Zhan Property Limited*
ERPREEREXEARAA

the board of Directors

=g

Chaozhou Jiafu Packaging Materials Company Limited*
MMNTERBEMHERAR

Chaozhou Jinshan Investment and Development Company Limited*

BN ERILRERERRAT

Shenzhen Chen Sui Industrial Investment Company Limited*
RYTHERIBEEREBR AR

Shenzhen Cheng He Chuang Jian Investment and Development Company
Limited*
RS BRI EERBR AR

Chung Hwa Finance Limited (formerly known as Newpont Finance Limited), a
licensed money lender in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders Ordinance
HEFEERAF(FIBFREERRAR)  REBE(GREAMEHDOEBFIER
(EUN

Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited*
BB ARERRMDERAT

the directors of the Company

RABES
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ERAAR

“Domestic Shares”
[RER]

"EGM”

[ AR RIAE

“General Mandate 2017"

[2017—ARASHE |

"Group”
[REE

“Guangdong Xinmao”

[BR#EX]

“Guangzhou Leyou”

[EMEEN |

“Hai Yue Real Estate”

[ B E |

“Hong Kong”
[&E]

“Hou Feng Trading”
[RE2E 5]
“H-Shares”

[ HA% |

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

[(BE=77 ]

H
|

202

domestic shares with a nominal value of RMB1 each in the share capital of the
Company which are subscribed for in RMB

RRRBAFFREEARK I THAER - UARERE

an extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be convened and held to
approve the proposed re-election of directors and supervisors

AREpitEEREEREFTEEMN AR MBITZIRREIRE

the general mandate granted to the Directors by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 13 June 2017, pursuant to which the
Directors are authorised to allot, issue and deal with each of the H-Shares and
Domestic Shares with an aggregate nominal amount of up to but not exceeding
20% of the then aggregate nominal amount of H-Shares and Domestic Shares,
respectively

RARTF2017F6 A 13E BTHRFIBFAS FERRE TESFHN —RIETE
Bt EFERERE  BTREEARESSENEBHRRANERERFE
EE20%HIHAR B2 W& AR

the Company and its subsidiaries

AATREKBAT

Guangdong Xinmao Biotechnology Company Limited*

BEREXEVRBR AT

Guangzhou Leyou Internet Technology Co., Ltd*

EMNEE BB E R A A

Guangzhou Hai Yue Real Estate Development Company Limited*

BENEERHMERRER DT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
I A RAMBEERRITTH R

Hou Feng Trading Company Limited*
RYHELESERARF

overseas listed foreign ordinary share(s) of the Company with a nominal value of
RMB1 each, all of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
subscribed for and traded in Hong Kong dollars

AARSREBAREITT 2RI EINE SRR - 2EEBRAMER LM R

BTREIES

the independent third party(ies) who is/are, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, information and belief having made all reasonable enquiry,
independent of the Company and its connected persons (as defined under the
Listing Rules)

REL—YIRBERE  REFRA - SBLEE  BURARRINEBEA
T(ERR TR BILE=7
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ERAAR

“Ju Xi Investment”
[BREEE ]

“Kingma Overseas”

[£ 5850

“Listing Rules”

[ EmARA

“Model Code”
[1E2E<F Al ]

“Modern Key"”
[ 3R E B

"PRC"
[

“RMB"
[AR®]

“San He Jing Jiao”
[ =R m%B ]

"SFO"
[ &7 AR A

“Share”
[ A& n

“Shareholders”

[BCR

“SHHH Development”

[RYEIEEHE

“SNP Investment”

[ARYFHRFHIRE |

“Shen Wu Investment”

[EmsE |

“Shenzhen Shen He”

[ARILA ]

Shenzhen Ju Xi Chuang Jian Investment and Development Limited*, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company
AIMBEREBRRERAR - XAR2EWB AR

Kingma Overseas Investment Development Corporate Limited

EHEBIMREBRAERAT

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
EHBETAZBRETESF R ZNIRE TR

Modern Key International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
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the People’s Republic of China
REE AR HAAE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FEEEEB AR

San He Jing Jiao Property Development Company Limited*

=SARBEHEREGRAT

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the law of Hong Kong)
B MEEGRO(FBEPISTNE)

H-Share(s) and Domestic Share(s)
HA% & A& I

holders of the H-Shares and Domestic Shares

HE N R E R A A

Shenzhen He Hui Huang Development Company Limited*
AT EEEERAR LA

Shenzhen Newpont Investment Group Limited*
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Shenzhen Shen Wu Investment & Development Company Limited*, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company
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Shenzhen Shen He Chuang Jian Investment Development Company Limited*
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Glossary

ERAAR

“Shenzhen Shen Jian”
DRIk ]
“Shenzhen Shenxi”
[RYIEE ]
“Shenzhen Tong He"”

[FIRAE ]

“Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long”

[RYIE ZEE |
“Shishi Shen Guo Tou”
[ FmREI % |

“Stock Exchange”
[ B2

“Tai He Chuang Jian”

“Zhong De Logistics”
[RiEmiR ]

“Zhongfang Chaozhou”
[ =N |

“Zhongfang Chaozhou Jing Nan
Industrial Park Project”

[hEBMERIREER |

“Zhongtou Construction”
akgc il

*  For identification purpose only

204

Shenzhen Shen Jian Investment Development Company Limited*, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company
RYTLRREEREGR AR XA ENBAR

Shenzhen Shenxi Investment & Development Company Limited*, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

RYTLBREERBRAR - ARRIEZENBAR

Shenzhen Tong He Chuangjian Investment Development Company Limited*, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

RITRAEREEREREMLRR  ARF2ENBAR

Shenzhen Wan Zhong Run Long Investment Company Limited*

AN ERBEEREERDF]

Shishi Shen Guo Tou Commercial Property Company Limited*, an associate of
the Company
AMABIRERAEREBRAR - AAEZEE AT

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEMERHMARAT

Shenzhen Tai He Chuang Jian Investment Development Company Limited*, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
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Guangzhou Xiaoma Chuang Fu Internet Information Service Company Limited*,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

BN/ NGRIEEMEERRISARAR  KAR2ENEAT

Shenzhen Zhong De Logistics Company Limited*
YT REYRBRAF

Zhongfang Chaozhou Investment Development Company Limited*

R E MR EFRERRA A
a infrastructure construction project in Jing Nan Industrial Park, in Chaozhou
RIS B TR E B R ieiE R IE B

Shenzhen Zhongtou Construction Investment Company Limited*
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